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Corporate Information
NEER

DIRECTORS

Executive:
Foo Piau Phang, Chairman
(appointed on April 1, 2015)
See Chi Kwok, Group Chief Executive Officer
(appointed on April 1, 2015 and
resigned on July 21,2015)
Chan Pau Shiu Yeng, Shirley (resigned on April 15, 2015)
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Kao Ying Lun (retired on August 26, 2015)
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(retired on August 26, 2015)
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

Yang Xiongsheng, Chairman

(appointed on August 26, 2015)
Zhao Yuhong (appointed on August 26, 2015)
Li Quan (appointed on August 26, 2015)
Lo Kai Yiu, Anthony, Chairman

(retired on August 26, 2015)
Kao Ying Lun (retired on August 26, 2015)
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NOMINATION AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
COMMITTEE

Foo Piau Phang, Chairman

(appointed on April 15, 2015)
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Group Financial Summary
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Nine-month
period ended
December 31,

Year ended March 31,

BZE
+t=A=+-—H
Lh@EA BE=A=T—HLEE
2015 2015 2014 2013 2012
HKS$’'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M
BEHET BERET BEEHET BEEET BE¥EET
RESULTS #4
Turnover & %58 536.6 1,100.4 1,352.4 1,578.2 1,597.1
Loss before taxation
BrRELATE 1B (86.1) (57.2) (52.1 (15.8 (25.3)
Taxation Fi18 (0.1) (9.8) (16.7) (13.1) (5.1)
Loss for the period/year
AHR FEEE (86.2) (67.0) (68.8) (28.9) (30.4)
Attributable to: 57 B
Owners of the Company
RREMEE A (86.2) (67.0) (68.8) (28.9) (30.4)
Non-controlling interests
FEPER = - _ _ _ ~
(86.2) (67.0) (68.8) (28.9) (30.4)

Loss per share &% E518
— Basic and diluted

(3.32) HK cents
AL

(2.59) HK cents
AL

(2.75) HK cents
AL

(1.16) HK cents
VAL

(1.22) HK cents
AL
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As at
December 31, As at March 31,
S
+ZA=+-—H MR=B=+—H
2015 2015 2014 2013 2012
HK$’'M HK$'M HK$’'M HK$'M HK$'M

BEEET BEEET BEEET BEEET BEEET

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

EEREE
Total assets & & 519.5 655.7 828.2 1,057.9 1,017.6
Total liabilities 2 & & (188.0) (245.7) (848.4) (514.7) (440.4)
331.5 410.0 479.8 543.2 577.2
Equity attributable to owners
of the Company
KR AR AEIEER 331.4 409.9 479.7 543.1 577.1
Non-controlling interests
FEFEAR R 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1
331.5 410.0 479.8 543.2 577.2
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alrman’s
Statement

TREHESE

&
FOO PIAU PHANG & #E
Chairman FJ&

Dear Shareholders, BMEME -

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | am pleased RAEZERXRESSIREEAEFHHE —
to present the Group’s annual result for the T-hAF A= BLEAEAR
nine months ended December 31, 2015, as the FEXE  REARVMBEER=A=

result of change of fiscal year from March 31 to +—HE®XRA+-_A=+—H-
December 31. o

10
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NO MAJOR SHAREHOLDERS CHANGED

On April 15, 2015, Jiangsu Hongtu High Technology Co.,
Ltd. (“Jiangsu Hongtu”), a joint stock company incorporated
in the PRC whose shares are listed on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange (Stock code: 600122), through its indirect wholly
owned subsidiary, Hongtu High Technology Int’l Inc. (“Hongtu
(Seychelles)”) holds 1,310,896,765 shares of the Company,
representing approximately 50.42% of the entire issued
shares of the Company. No major shareholders change in the
nine months ended December 31, 2015.

Jiangsu Hongtu is principally engaged in 3C retailing,
industrial manufacturing, real estate business, as well as
system integration. The main businesses of the Jiangsu
Hongtu’s group of companies consist of products retailing
business, which involves in operation of regular chain
retail stores, dealing with computers, digital products,
communications products, network and server devices, office
automation equipment, as well as software and IT related
books; industrial manufacturing business, which provides
optical cables, electric cables, printers and communications
equipment, among others, as well as real estate business,
which is involved in the development and operation of high
end residential properties.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

As the result of slow recovery of the global economy,
compounded by weak consumer sentiment and sluggish retail
market, the Group has recorded a decrease in both turnover
and gross profit for nine months ended December 31, 2015
(the “period”).

The Group’s total turnover for the period decreased to
HK$536.6 million, which was primarily due to the difficult
retail market conditions in America and Europe, and
severe competition in the children’s tablet segment. Due to
changes in the product and channel mix, clearance sales of
slow-moving inventories and aging items as well as rising
labor and material costs, gross profit for the period decreased
to HK$107.8 million, while gross margin dropped by 0.7
percentage points to 20.1%.
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHREE

The Group continued to place significant effort on executing
stringent cost controls and streamlining its organizational
structure and operational processes. Total operating
expenses of the Group, including research and development
costs, distribution and selling expenses, and general
administrative expenses, amounted to HK$203.5 million for
the period, comparing to HK$344.8 million for the year ended
March 31, 2015.

The Group was able to continue making significant
improvements in its cash management during the period. The
group has no bank loan by the end of December 31, 2015.
The Group’s net cash position decreased from HK$216.8
million as at March 31, 2015 to HK$169.4 million as at
December 31, 2015.

OUTLOOK

Despite the negative impact of the global economic turmail,
the Group remains confident and has launched a number
of initiatives and projects underlining this sentiment. It is
focusing on streamlining factory operations, driving more
OEM/ODM businesses to improve margins, setting up
“Smart Service” business unit to provide customized pre-
manufacturing services and investing in wearables and
medical technology to differentiate ourselves from our
competitors. The Group also maintains its commitment
to employ stringent controls over inventory and operating
costs, while continuing to develop innovative products and
explore new markets. There will also be a Brookstone-IDT
synergy effect as we introduce Brookstone products into our
distribution channel and provide manufacturing service to
Brookstone at the same time.
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Oregon Scientific (“OS”)

OS will continue to focus on business growth through
launching new products, expanding geographically,
developing its sales channels and strengthening business
relationships with strategic partners, while continuing to
enhance internal operational effectiveness and efficiency.
Leveraging its core competence and learning new skills and
technologies among the teams will also be one of the focuses
to uplift internal professional performance.

By in light of the stagnant economy in our key market
economies, we are prepared to support our channel partners
to overcome the difficult times and expand market presence
during the year.

Connected products with apps performing personal services
are embedded in consumers’ daily lives, and OS will ride on
our existing core competencies in technological innovation
and fashionable design, to continue to bring more connected
products to our customers and ultimately to capitalize on the
new business opportunities.

In the T&W category, OS will continue to put emphasis on
and allocate resources to strengthen the leading position of
the brand in this category. There are several new products in
the pipeline which will be introduced in Fall 2016, with style in
line with our identity and most importantly, highly interactive
with users to bring different experience to consumers.

The W&B category will continue to be the focus of the Asian
markets. However, OS will prepare to meet the growing
demand in Europe, particularly in Italy and France for aroma
diffuser and sleep enhancement products.

13

Oregon Scientific ([0S )

OSKHEBH INEBHBER  #HEHFER - F
BTG RIHERE - MREEBBHNEE
1R RRNEERAANSEERERNEG - &
EERZOBRF N RESKEEEZ2E MR R
Mg RER T —  UIRARNPEERE -

EXEMHRBEEBETAT - BT EHE
EBBHIERR  REREMTSERE -

EEERFHRERAREANEHEARBHR
B ZEBABREENHRELETD - OSEHE
HBEBNROHEFT - BIREAFTRIME & &
it REPRHEEZ M RRE M MRE R AT
EEEOE S

MR R XRER - OSHEBIRNER @ &
Foa LUt B an BRI R RV BB AL o BREHT
EmBR T RFREEEREDL - n Mgk
WMEBHRMARBORRLEERZR  ERPG
BE®  RHEEETRIANER -

RREEERERBER - BN IS HEE R I
EmBERIeERE - AW OSHBUNBER - %

BRI 0P KRBT R AT -



IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED E B AR A ]

Chairman’s Statement
FEHREE

As for the SLP category, OS will aim at significant growth by
continuing to leverage the mature OID technology utilized by
“SmartGlobes” to apply on other kids’ products and develop
more customized projects with strategic channel partners. OS
will continue to expand this category into new markets such
as the Middle East and South America.

E-commerce remains a key growth engine for OS. In order
to maintain success, we continue to improve the online
shopping experience and extend our customer reach with
new affiliate channels and market platforms. To complement
these efforts, we are rolling out marketing initiatives through
our social and digital media to increase traffic and market
awareness.

Value Manufacturing Services

VMS will continue to be the major revenue contributor
of the Group. It operates based on its proven strategy —
centering on two well-established drivers: SFH and Energy
Management. The SFH business will continue to benefit from
the growth of wearable business worldwide although that
market is becoming increasingly competitive. It is anticipated
that this trend will be sustained thus the Group shall continue
to commit resources to provide innovative products with
the latest technologies, supporting both our existing and
potential new customers. While continuing to strengthen our
quality and service to ensure customer retention, this year
the group will put a focus on acquisition of new accounts.
Additionally, devices related to the Internet of Things (“IOT”)
concept are gaining momentum, and the Group is currently
investing together with business partners on development of
new products to be supported by our in-house technical and
manufacturing capabilities.
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Making use of our traceability expertise in the manufacturing
process and being a qualified Food and Drug Administration
(“FDA”) factory, VMS will continue to serve customers from
the health and medical industries. In order to maintain a
better profit margin, VMS will continue to focus on inventory
control, while streamlining operations in order to become
more efficient and bolster our competitive position.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | wish to express my
gratitude to our shareholders and business associates for
the continued support. | also want to extend our deep
appreciation to our management team and staff members
for their hard work and dedication during the past financial
period.

Foo Piau Phang
Chairman

March 24, 2016
Hong Kong
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Due to the change in the reporting period end date of the
financial year, this reporting period only covered nine months
of the Group’s business performance. The global economic
environment has remained sluggish, particularly in the retail
market. Consequently, the Group has recorded a decrease
in both turnover and gross profit for the period from April
1, 2015 to December 31, 2015 (the “period”). The loss for
the period has increased to HK$86.2 million, compared to a
loss of HK$67.0 million for the year ended March 31, 2015
(FY2014/15).

The Group’s total turnover amounted to HK$536.6 million
(FY2014/15: HK$1,100.4 million), which was primarily due to
the difficult retail market conditions in America and Europe.
Gross profit totaled HK$107.8 million (FY2014/15: HK$228.7
million) and gross margin slightly dropped by 0.7 percentage
points to 20.1%.

OPERATIONS REVIEW

The Group continued to place significant effort on executing
stringent cost controls and streamlining its organizational
structure and operational processes. Total operating
expenses of the Group, including research and development
costs, distribution and selling expenses, and general
administrative expenses, amounted to HK$203.5 million
(FY2014/15: HK$344.8 million).

SALES BY MARKET %520 2 tHESE

Nine-month Period ended December 31, 2015
BE-_Z-—H2F+-A=+—HIEAER
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Operations Review
E A1)

Other gains and losses during the period were recorded as
losses of HK$6.0 million, mainly from the deregistration of a
subsidiary, while gains of FY2014/15 amounted to HK$46.5
million.

The Group was able to continue making significant
improvements in its cash management during the period.
The decrease in average bank loans and other borrowings
resulted in a substantial decrease in interest expenses from
HK$2.5 million to HK$0.1 million — a decline of 96.0% when
compared to March 31, 2015. The net cash position of the
Group decreased from HK$216.8 million recorded in March
31, 2015 to HK$169.4 million as at December 31, 2015.

Taxation amounted to HK$0.1 million (FY2014/15: HK$9.8
million). Tax for the period mainly comprised a provision for
Hong Kong profits tax of HK$0.1 million made during the
period.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Oregon Scientific (“OS”)

The Time & Weather (“T&W”) category continued to be the
key contributor in terms of sales revenue and margin to OS.
Three major lines were introduced during the period, the
“Alize” Weather station, the “Proji” Projection clock and the
“Prysmachrome” sleek weather station as well as several
new color versions of our iconic products, which were well-
received by the customers. The substantially weakened Euro
and other currencies such as the Russian Ruble and Brazilian
Real in year 2015 affected the sales revenue. The current
depreciation also affected the purchasing desire of FOB
customers who pay in US dollars and, in turn, our margin.

The Smart Learning Products (“SLP”) category accounted
for 18.6% of total OS sales revenue. The “SmartGlobes”
collections were still the key revenue and margin contributors
for this product category, and also continued to be the
leader in the electronic learning category in the market as it
garnered the most important toy award in Spain, the “Toy of
the year 2015”. Several new versions were introduced with
sophisticated features such as 2.4” LCD screen, 7” LCD
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screen and enriched content to improve image, broaden
the consumer base and stay ahead of the competition. The
new Smart Anatomy, which masterfully matches the study of
human anatomy with games to encourage kids to explore and
learn, was successfully launched to good product reviews.

The Sport, Fitness and Health (“SFH”) category accounted
for 7.4% of total OS sales revenue. We made the strategic
decision to not expand this category due to strong
competition. Our focus is to customize gift promotion projects
for B2B corporate accounts.

The Wellness & Beauty (“W&B”) category accounted for 9.3%
of total OS sales revenue. During the period, we experienced
challenges in delivering new products. Nonetheless two new
models were brought to market — the AuraBreeze aroma
diffuser with a mood light and soothing sound, and the
BlisScent aroma diffuser, a genuine handmade stylish glass
cover with dissolving lighting effects to create a relaxing
ambiance.

E-commerce continued to be an area of increasing focus for
OS, as this channel enables us to build stronger relationships
directly with consumers, understand their needs and provide
quick feedback. The year 2015 was a challenging year due to
the substantially weakened Euro, and the aggressive online
pricing from resellers added challenges in this business. But
we also had reasonable growth in key markets such as the
UK because of the good collaboration with leading online
platforms to leverage the traffic and user reviews.

To further strengthen the brand presence in global markets,
OS has exhibited at IFA in Berlin, one of world’s leading trade
shows for the consumer electronics and home appliances
sectors.
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Operations Review
E A1)

Value Manufacturing Services (“VMS”)

Sales revenue from VMS for the period from April 1,
2015 to December 31, 2015 totaled HK$344.9 million,
which accounted for 64.3% of the Group’s total revenue
(FY2014/15: HK$751.7 million). The decrease in revenue
was mainly due to several reasons: (1) one of the major
customers of the SFH product category closed its electronics
business during the period; (2) the decrease of ODM and
OEM customers for all product categories due to the weak
global economy; and (3) the change of the Group’s business
strategy of dropping the low-margin OEM business line.

In terms of business segment performance, SFH continued
to be the largest product category, accounting for 71.8%
of VMS revenue. The telecommunication products category
was the second-largest product category based on sales.
This performance is in line with the Group’s product strategy,
which is to focus on SFH products such as GPS watches,
activity monitors, blood glucose meters, fithess computer
consoles and heart rate monitors. The majority of these
products are apps-based and connected to smart devices.

WORKING CAPITAL

The inventory balance at December 31, 2015 was HK$140.4
million, decreased by 15.8% compared to the HK$166.7
million at March 31, 2015. The inventory turnover days
increased to 90 days (March 31, 2015: 70 days).

Trade debtor balances at December 31, 2015 was HK$99.9
million, increased by 14.0% compared to the HK$87.6 million
shown at March 31, 2015. Trade debtor’s turnover days
increased to 51 days (March 31, 2015: 29 days).

LIQUIDITY AND TREASURY MANAGEMENT
At December 31, 2015, bank balances and cash of the

Group, including short term bank deposits, were HK$169.4
million (March 31, 2015: HK$235.7 million).
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During the period, the Group generated its funds mainly
from operating activities and bank borrowings. The net cash
position (bank balances and cash less total bank borrowings)
at December 31, 2015 amounted to HK$169.4 million (March
31, 2015: HK$216.8 million). The Group maintained sufficient
financial resources to meet all working capital requirements
and finances of its commitments.

The Group’s exposure to foreign currency stems mainly
from the net cash flow and net working capital translation
achieved in its overseas subsidiaries. Hedging of foreign
currency exposures is arranged through a combination of
natural hedges and forward forex contracts. At December 31,
2015, there were forward contracts in place to hedge against
possible exchange movements of future net cash flows.
Speculative currency transactions are strictly prohibited.
Management of currency risk is the responsibility of the
Group’s headquarters in Hong Kong.

DEBTS AND GEARING RATIO

There were no bank borrowings as at December 31, 2015
(March 31, 2015: HK$18.9 million). The borrowings as at
March 31, 2015 consisted of short term bank loans only.
They are mainly denominated in HK dollars and on floating
rates bases.

The debts incurred by the Group are mainly used for
general corporate purposes, including capital or long term
expenditures and working capital requirements.

The gearing ratio (total borrowings over total equity) as at
March 31, 2015 amounted to 4.6%.

CHARGES ON GROUP ASSETS

At December 31, 2015, there were no finance charges on the
Group’s assets.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

Capital expenditure on property, plant and equipment for the
period from April 1, 2015 to December 31, 2015 amounted
to HK$8.9 million (FY2014/15: HK$15.1 million) which was
all used for business operations and product development.
Source of funds were financed by internal resources and
borrowings.
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Operations Review
E A1)

There were no material acquisitions or disposals of
subsidiaries and associated companies in the course of the
period from April 1, 2015 to December 31, 2015.

DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the period from April 1, 2015 to December 31,
2015.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At December 31, 2015, the Group had no contingent
liabilities (March 31, 2015: nil).

HUMAN RESOURCES AND REMUNERATION
POLICY

As at December 31, 2015, the Group had 1,893 employees.
The Group fully recognizes the importance of its employees
who contribute significantly to its success and continues to
maintain and upgrade the capabilities of its workforce by
providing them with adequate and regular training.

The Group’s remuneration policy is to provide compensation
packages at market rates which reward individual’s
performance and attract, retain and motivate high quality
employees. The compensation packages offered by the
Group are comparable with other organizations of similar
size and business nature and are reviewed annually. The
components of employee’s remuneration package consist
of base salary, double pay, fringe benefits including pension
scheme, medical insurance, life and personal accident
insurance, employee compensation and business travel
insurance as well as incentives like discretionary cash bonus.

Details of the schemes and the number of options granted
to the Group’s employees are set out in note 25 to the
consolidated financial statements from page 149 to page
156. Details of retirement benefits schemes operated by the
Group are set out in note 29 to the consolidated financial
statements on page 169. In Xixiang, Shenzhen, China
where the Xixiang facilities are located, staff welfare rates
are set with reference to the prevailing labour laws in China.
Accommodation and leisure facilities are also provided to
local staff at Xixiang facilities.
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The Group’s remuneration philosophy for senior executives is
based upon creating a strong link between performance and
reward in accordance with the following principles:

1. Fixed salaries and benefits are set at median-market
level against comparator groups of companies selected
on the basis of similar size and business nature and
benchmarked with the prevailing market conditions; and

2. Performance-related bonus is linked to the achievement
of pre-defined performance targets including financial
targets, performance index and pre-agreed management
objectives.

The emolument of the directors is recommended by the
remuneration committee with reference to companies of
comparable business type or scale, and the nature and
quantity of work at both Board and Board Committee levels
(including frequency of meetings and nature of agenda items)
in order to compensate directors reasonably for their time and
efforts spent. The directors’ emolument is approved by the
Board pursuant to the mandate granted by the shareholders
at annual general meetings. Remuneration are paid to
a director for appointment as a member of a particular
committee. Executive director and Non-executive directors
receive no base pay, benefits, bonus or pension except
reimbursement for expenses incurred in connection with their
directorship of the Company. No individual director is allowed
to participate in the procedures for deciding his/her individual
remuneration package. Full details of the remuneration of
and fees paid to the directors for the nine months ended
December 31, 2015 are set out in note 9 to the consolidated
financial statements from page 124 to page 127. All directors
are entitled to participate in the share option schemes of the
Company (if any). Details of the schemes and the number of
options granted to directors of the Company are set out in
note 25 to the consolidated financial statements from page
149 to page 156.

Foo Piau Phang
Chairman

March 24, 2016
Hong Kong
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Employee Development and
Corporate Social Responsibilities

ETHRETEISEML

EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT

To cope with economic volatility, competition and complexity
of the business environment, we are experience inevitable
changes across our operations. We have sought to achieve
more professional employee development closely aligned to
our corporate objectives and new business model through
Leader and Forman Training, Mindfulness training and skill set
training. Through this initiative, we aim at driving the business
and engaging the workforce, building talent and leaders for
TODAY and TOMORROW, and developing a high performance
culture that boosts business performance.

LEADERSHIP DEVELOPMENT

We focus on equipping leaders at all levels to enhance team
effectiveness and staff engagement. Members of our top and
senior management teams are frequently invited to share
their experiences and business insights at brainstorming
seminar to ensure that we are all aligned with the Company’s
directions and strategies. We share best practices by inviting
legal consultant and management to share experience in
handling issues that with potential legal risk. We also provide
training and development on performance management,
while coaching and mentoring skills are provided to ensure
continuous improvement.

EMPLOYEE WELLNESS & ENGAGEMENT

To improve employees overall physical and mental health
and well-being, we have tailor-made a series of customized
employee wellness programs promoting smart living and a
healthy lifestyle. Experts of various disciplines are invited to
deliver sharing sessions covering a variety of interests, such
as healthy diet, mental health, English corner, mindfulness
training, etc.
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITIES

The Group has been actively promoting awareness of our
social responsibilities to our employees. Since 2005, the
Group has been presented the award of the “Caring Company
Logo” for ten consecutive years by the Hong Kong Council of
Social Service in recognition of our care for the community.

CARE FOR THE COMMUNITY

We concern on the sustainable development of our society
and see the relationships between the environmental
protection and society to our next generation. We worked
with Green Sense and Hope Worldwide in 2015 to participate
in the fund raising event of flag selling day and No Air-Con
Night to show our support to the environmental protection.

Children are another target group that we serve and believe
every child deserves a happy childhood. This is our first
time to work with Hope Worldwide Hong Kong to join their
birthday and Christmas party in their centre to play games
and bringing gifts to children who seldom travel outside of
their neighborhood.
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Board of Directors
=

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

FOO PIAU PHANG

Chairman and Executive Director, the Chairman of Nomination
and Corporate Governance Committee, a member of the
Executive Committee of the Board, aged 54. Mr. Foo is
the Senior Vice President of Sanpower Group. He also
holds the positions of the Chairman of Brookstone, Natali
Healthcare Solutions and An Kang Tong Elderly Healthcare at
Sanpower Group. Prior to joining Sanpower Group, Mr. Foo
served at Hewlett-Packard as the Senior Vice President and
Regional Managing Director for Asia Pacific & Japan. Before
that, Mr. Foo had experience in a variety of roles, such as
President and Chief Executive Officer at Hasee Group Ltd.,
President at Dell Inc. (China), Managing Director at Gateway
Inc. (China) and Production Engineer at General Motors
(Singapore).

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

XIN KEXIA

Non-executive Director, aged 47. Mr. Xin is the President of
Jiangsu Hongtu and HISAP. Before joining Sanpower Group,
Mr. Xin served as Vice President at Yuexing Group, Vice
President at Gome Electrical Appliances Holding Limited and
a member of the senior management at Haier Group Co.,
Ltd. Mr. Xin graduated from the Senior Executive Program of
Tsinghua University.

SONG RONGRONG

Non-executive Director, aged 38. Mr. Song is the Chief
Financial Officer of Jiangsu Hongtu and the Vice President
of HISAP. Formerly, Mr. Song served as the regional general
ledger accountant and regional chief financial officer of HISAP.
Mr. Song received a Bachelor’s degree in accounting from the
China University of Mining and Technology.
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WANG YANG

Non-executive Director, aged 36. Ms. Wang is the Vice
President of Sanpower Group and is mainly responsible for
cross-border investment execution. Formerly, Ms. Wang was
an investment banker at Citigroup Global Markets Limited and
Barclays Capital Inc. Prior to that, she worked at the World
Bank’s International Finance Corporation (IFC) and advised
on equity investments in the PRC. Ms. Wang has received
a Master’s degree in finance from Peking University and a
Master’s degree in Business Administration from Wharton
School of the University of Pennsylvania.

Ql MIAO

Non-executive Director, aged 37. Mr. Qi is the Senior Director
of Sanpower Group and is mainly responsible for strategy
planning and execution. Formerly, Mr. Qi was an associate
partner at Inventive Strategy Consulting and Director at
Huawei Technology Co., Ltd. Prior to that, he worked at
Ernest and Young (China) Advisory Limited and advised on
strategy and business transformation projects in the PRC.
Mr. Qi has received a Master’s degree in Electrical Engineering
from Technical University of Dresden and a Master’s degree in
Business Administration from Peking University.

SHI CHANGYUN

Non-executive Director, aged 41. Mr. Shi is the Vice
President of Sanpower Group and is mainly responsible for
the Chairman Assistant Office and Manufacturing Business
Division. Formerly, Mr. Shi was the EVP of Tengen Group &
CEO of Tengen Electric Company. Mr. Shi has received an
EMBA degree in China Europe International Business School
and a Master degree in Chemical Engineering from Tsinghua
University.
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Board of Directors
=

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

YANG XIONGSHENG

Independent non-executive Director and the chairman of
the Audit Committee, aged 56. Mr. Yang is the chair of the
accounting department of the school of business of Nanjing
University, professor, doctoral tutor. He is currently an
independent non-executive director of Shenji Group Kunming
Machine Tool Company Limited (stock code: 300) and an
independent director of Solareast Corporation (stock code:
603366). He had worked for Lianyungang Finance School and
Lianyungang audit bureau. From 1995, he has worked at the
accounting department of Nanjing University. Presently, he is
the chair of the accounting department of Nanjing University,
the vice president of the fifth council of Chinese Institute of
Finance and Cost for Young and midcareer professionals,
deputy secretary-general of Accounting Society of China,
vice president of Accounting Society of Jiangsu Province,
advisory expert of accounting standards for China Accounting
Standards Committee under the Ministry of Finance;
adjunct doctoral tutor at Nanjing University of Science and
Technology, adjunct professor at Anhui University of Finance
and Economics. The main research areas of Mr. Yang:
internal control, basic theory of accounting, financial
management and management accounting. Presently, he
has published more than 200 papers, monographs and more
than 20 textbooks. He directly involved in the research of
specific control criterion and drafting work of the Internal
Accounting Control Standards-Basic Standards by the
Ministry of Finance, and he undertook a number of key
scientific researches for the Ministry of Finance. Mr. Yang was
graduated at Xuzhou Normal University in 1981, and he has
doctorate of accounting at Dongbei University of Finance and
Economics.
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ZHAO YUHONG

Independent non-executive Director, the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee and a member of the Audit
Committee, aged 48. Ms. Zhao is an Managing Partner
at Bohai Harvest RST (Shanghai) Equity Investment Fund
Management Co., Ltd. Ms. Zhao has spent her career
working for a number of international and Chinese investment
banks. Her previous positions include Managing Director
in Investment Banking at BOC International, Managing
Director in Investment Banking at CLSA Asia Pacific Markets,
Executive Director in China Investment Banking at JPMorgan
Securities, Director in China Investment Banking at Credit
Suisse. Ms. Zhao obtained an MBA degree from York
University (Canada), a Master of Arts degree from University
of Western Ontario (Canada) and a Bachelor of Arts degree
from Dalian University of Technology (China).

LI QUAN

Independent non-executive Director, a member of the Audit
Committee and the Nomination and Corporate Governance
Committee, aged 51. Mr. Li is a seasoned international
banker across commercial and investment banking in
London, Hong Kong and mainland China. He served as the
Chief Executive Officer of Australia and New Zealand Bank
(China) Ltd. till August 2014, now retaining a non-executive
role. From 1998 to 2014, as the Country Executive, Dr. Li was
responsible for establishing and managing all The Royal Bank
of Scotland (“RBS”) business in China. He played a significant
role in many strategic projects. Over his time in China, he also
served as Non-executive Directors on the Boards of Suzhou
Trust Ltd. and Galaxy Futures Brokerage Ltd., Chairman of
RBS Leasing (China) Ltd., and a member of Advisory Board
of China European International Business School. Dr. Li was
educated both in China and the United Kingdom, holding a
Ph.D. in Strategic Management from Aston Business School,
a Master of Science degree in Industrial Management from
Birmingham University and a Bachelor of Engineering degree
from Beijing Institute of Technology. Dr. Li also serves as an
independent non-executive director on the House of Fraser
Group board.
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DUH JIA-BIN

Independent non-executive Director and a member of the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination and Corporate
Governance Committee, aged 58. Mr. Duh is an angel
investor in technology and telecom related start-ups, and has
active participation in several companies and funds in US,
Asia and China. From 1998-2006, Mr. Duh served as Vice
President of Cisco Inc. and President of Cisco China. Mr.
Duh was the President of Microsoft China during the period
from 1993 to 1998. He also served at Hewlett-Packard for
over 10 years and held a variety of managerial positions in
sales, marketing and engineering. Mr. Duh is a graduate of
the National Chiao Tung University with a bachelor’s degree
in engineering and holds an Executive MBA jointly offered by
Kellogg School of Management of Northwestern University
and Hong Kong University of Science and Technology
(Kellogg-HKUST). He is the Chairman of the advisory board of
New York University and Nanjing University’s joint institute.
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The directors (the “Directors”) of IDT International Limited
(the “Company”) are pleased to present to the shareholders
their annual report and audited financial statements of the
Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) during the nine
months ended December 31, 2015.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company.
Its principal subsidiaries are engaged in the investment
holdings, design, development, manufacturing, marketing
and distribution of lifestyle electronic products. Details of the
principal activities of the Group are set out in note 31 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Details of segment information are set out in note 6 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the nine months ended
December 31, 2015 are set out in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on page 84
and further analysis is given in the accompanying notes to
the financial statements.

DIVIDENDS

No interim dividend was paid (2015: Nil) during the nine
months ended December 31, 2015.

The Directors have resolved not to recommend the payment

of a final dividend (2015: Nil) for the nine months ended
December 31, 2015.
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GROUP FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of
the Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 6.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company
during the nine months ended December 31, 2015 are set
out in note 24 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in reserves of the Group and of the
Company during the year are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on page 86, and the financial
information of the Company on page 176, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At December 31, 2015, the Company did not have reserves
available for distribution as calculated in accordance with the
provisions of the laws of Bermuda.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

During the nine months ended December 31, 2015, the
Group spent an aggregate amount of approximately HK$8.9
million (2015: HK$15.1 million) on the acquisition of property,
plant and equipment for the purpose of business expansion.

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment
of the Group during the year are set out in note 13 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements.

BANK BORROWINGS
Details of the bank borrowings of the Group as at December

31, 2015 are set out in note 23 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements on page 147 of this annual report.
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DONATIONS

During the nine months ended December 31, 2015, the
Group made charitable and other donations of HK$12,000
(2015: HK$94,200).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the nine months ended December 31, 2015, the
aggregate percentage of purchases attributable to the
Group’s five largest suppliers in the year accounted for
approximately 21% of the Group’s purchases and the
purchases attributable to the largest supplier accounted for
approximately 7% of the Group’s purchases.

During the nine months ended December 31, 2015, the
aggregate percentage of turnover attributable to the Group’s
five largest customers was approximately 29% of the Group’s
turnover and the percentage of turnover attributable to the
Group’s largest customer was approximately 11% of the
Group’s turnover.

None of the directors, their associates or shareholders, who
to the knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the
Company’s share capital, had any interest in any of the five
largest customers.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the nine months ended
December 31, 2015 are:

Executive:
Foo Piau Phang, Chairman
(appointed on April 1, 2015)
See Chi Kwok, Group Chief Executive Officer
(appointed on April 1, 2015 and
resigned on July 21, 2015)
Chan Pau Shiu Yeng, Shirley (resigned on April 15, 2015)

Non-Executive:
Xin Kexia (appointed on April 1, 2015)
Song Rongrong (appointed on April 1, 2015)
Wang Yang (appointed on April 1, 2015)
Shi Changyun (appointed on September 15, 2015)
Qi Miao (appointed on December 7, 2015)
Gao Huan
(appointed on April 1, 2015 and

resigned on November 19, 2015)

* Raymond Chan, JP (retired on August 26, 2015)

Independent Non-Executive:
Yang Xiongsheng (appointed on August 26, 2015)
Zhao Yuhong (appointed on August 26, 2015)
Li Quan (appointed on August 26, 2015)
Duh Jia-Bin (appointed on August 26, 2015)
Lo Kai Yiu, Anthony (retired on August 26, 2015)
Kao Ying Lun (retired on August 26, 2015)
Jack Schmuckli
(retired on August 26, 2015)
Kenichi Ohmae (retired on August 26, 2015)

* Re-designation of Dr. Raymond Chan from the executive
Chairman and the Group Chief Executive Officer to a non-
executive Director of the Company with effect from April 1,
2015.
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In accordance with Bye-Law 89 of the Company’s Bye-Laws,
any Director appointed as an additional Director or to fill a
casual vacancy shall hold office only until the next following
annual general meeting of the Company and shall be
eligible for re-election but shall not be taken into account in
determining the Directors or the number of Directors who
are to retire by rotation at such meeting. On September 15,
2015, Mr. Shi Changyun was appointed as non-executive
Director. On December 7, 2015, Mr. Qi Miao was appointed
as non-executive Director. All of them were eligible and, will
offer themselves for re-election at the next annual general
meeting of the Company.

In accordance with Bye-Law 97 of the Company’s Bye-Laws,
Mr. Xin Kexia, Mr. Song Rongrong, Ms. Wang Yang will retire
from office by rotation as Directors at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election.

The Company has received annual confirmation of
independence from each of the independent non-executive
Directors pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities (“Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”). The Company
considered all the independent non-executive Directors as
independent.

DIRECTORS BIOGRAPHY

Biographical details of the existing Directors are set out on
pages 32 to 36 of this Annual Report.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the independent non-executive directors has entered
into a service contract with the Company for a term of three
years which can be terminated by either party giving a three
month’s written notice to the other party. Under such service
contract, each of the independent non-executive directors
is subject to retirement by rotation at the annual general
meeting of the Company in accordance with the Company’s
Bye-Laws, and is entitled to a fee of HK$200,000 per annum
subject to such adjustments as the Board of the Company
considers appropriate and the approval of the shareholders at
annual general meeting of the Company.

None of the Directors has a service contract which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment
of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

There were no contracts of significance to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which
a director of the Company had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at
any time during the nine months ended December 31, 2015.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or in existence during the nine
months ended December 31, 2015.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

None of the directors or chief executives of the Company or
any of their associates had, as at December 31, 2015, any
interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)) which were notified to the
Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part
XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which
they were taken or deemed to have under the provisions of
the SFO) or which were recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company under section 352 of the SFO or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

The share option scheme adopted by the Company on
August 28, 2002 (the “2002 Share Option Scheme”) has
expired on August 27, 2012 and a new share option scheme
(the “2012 Share Option Scheme”) was adopted by the
Company on August 29, 2012. The outstanding share
options granted under the 2002 Share Option Scheme prior
to such expiration has lapsed. For details, please refer to the
Company’s circular dated March 25, 2015.

Details of each of the 2002 Share Option Scheme and

2012 Share Option Scheme are set out in note 25 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements.
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The 2002 Share Option Scheme —EE_EFBERETTE
Details of the movement in the share options granted under BHE—_ZT—HF+-_A=+—HILA@EA ' &
the 2002 Share Option Scheme during the nine months BEoEE - FEERETEFEENEREE
ended December 31, 2015 were set out below: B
Number of share options
BREHE
Exercised Lapsed
Exercise price Outstanding at during during  Outstanding at
Participants Date of grant  Exercisable period per share 04.01.2015  the period  the period 12.31.2015
W-B-1%F W-E-1%F
mA—H +=B=+-H
28AL REAH ThBE BRITEE HATE  BRTE BRAR W RATE
(M/D/Y) (M/DHY) (HK$)
(R/B/%) (B/B/F) (BET)
Former Directors 11.30.2005  12.01.2006 - 11.30.2015 0.529 7,280,000 - 7,280,000 -
RES
7,280,000 - 7,280,000 -
Employees 11.28.20056  11.29.2007 - 11.28.2015 0.548 676,000 260,000 416,000 -
=3=] 11.28.2005  11.29.2008 - 11.28.2015 0.548 676,000 260,000 416,000 -
12.01.2010  12.01.2012 - 11.30.2020 0.222 625,000 250,000 375,000 -
12.01.2010  12.01.2013 - 11.30.2020 0.222 625,000 250,000 375,000 -
12.12.2011 12.12.2013 - 12.11.2021 0.104 500,000 - 500,000 -
12.12.2011 12.12.2014 - 12.11.2021 0.104 500,000 - 500,000 -
04.18.2012  04.18.2015 - 04.17.2022 0.136 500,000 500,000 - -
4,102,000 1,520,000 2,582,000 -
Other Participants 11.28.2005  11.29.2007 - 11.28.2015 0.548 208,000 - 208,000 -
(Consultants) 11.28.2005  11.29.2008 - 11.28.2015 0.548 208,000 - 208,000 -
Hth2EAT 12.01.2010  12.01.2012 - 11.30.2020 0.222 750,000 250,000 500,000 -
(BER) 12.01.2010  12.01.2013 - 11.30.2020 0.222 750,000 250,000 500,000 -
12.12.2011 12.12.2013 - 12.11.2021 0.104 2,250,000 1,750,000 500,000 -
12.12.2011 12.12.2014 - 12.11.2021 0.104 2,250,000 1,750,000 500,000 -
6,416,000 4,000,000 2,416,000 -
TotaI
@t 17,798,000 5,520,000 12,278,000 -
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During the period under review, 5,520,000 share options were
exercised, 12,278,000 share options were lapsed, no option
was granted or cancelled under the 2002 Share Option
Scheme.

As at December 31, 2015, there was no outstanding share
option of the Company.

The 2012 Share Option Scheme

Details of the movement in the share options granted under
the 2012 Share Option Scheme during the nine months
ended December 31, 2015 were set out below:

REEHE BE_SZ _FEREE
5,520,000 88 I% #E 2 17 F ~ 12,278,00017
BEARAE T Ak ~ WBIR sk i B A o

“E-AFtTZA=1T—B ARFRLEH
RITEEBRHE -

—E - FEREE
BE_T—AF+ZHA=T—HIEAEA &
BT - —FEREFEREOERESZ S
BT :

Number of share options

EREHE
Exercise Exercised Lapsed
price  Outstanding at during during  Outstanding at
Participants Date of grant  Exercisable period per share 04.01.2015  the period  the period 12.31.2015
R-T-5% R=2-5%
MA-H +=ZA=t+-H
ZHEAT R AH el BROEE HATE  BRTE HRXX AT
(M/DYY) (M/D/Y) (HKS)
AR/B/%) (R/B/F) (B%TT)
Employees 03.27.2013  03.27.2015 - 03.26.2023 0.130 500,000 500,000 - -
| 06.27.2013  06.27.2015 - 06.26.2023 0.134 2,500,000 2,500,000 - -
07.07.2014  07.07.2015 - 07.06.2024 0.172 750,000 250,000 500,000 -
07.07.2014  07.07.2016 - 07.06.2024 0.172 750,000 250,000 500,000 -
4,500,000 3,500,000 1,000,000 -
Other Participant 12.03.2012  12.03.2013 - 12.02.2022 0.131 1,000,000 1,000,000 - -
(Consultant) 12.08.2012  12.03.2014 - 12.02.2022 0.131 1,000,000 1,000,000 - -
Hit38EAL
(B/)
2,000,000 2,000,000 - -
Total
st 6,500,000 5,500,000 1,000,000 -
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The closing market price per share immediately before July 7,
2014, the date on which the share options were granted
under the 2012 Share Option Scheme, was HK$0.162.

No option was granted to the Directors under the 2012 Share
Option Scheme during the period.

No option was cancelled under the 2012 Share Option
Scheme during the period.

During the period under review, 5,500,000 share options were
exercised and 1,000,000 share options were lapsed. As at
December 31, 2015, there was no outstanding share option
of the Company.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Details of share options granted to or exercised by the
Directors during the nine months ended December, 2015 and
their outstanding balances at December 31, 2015 are set out
in the sub-section entitled “Share Option Schemes” above
and also in note 25 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the nine months
ended December, 2015 was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the
Directors or their respective spouse or children under the
age of 18 to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at December 31, 2015, the following persons (other than
the Directors or the chief executives of the Company) had
interests or short positions in the shares and underlying
shares of the Company as recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO or as
otherwise notified to the Company were as follows:

FERR

R-T—RE+-A=+—H BALAEF
HATR@EIN - THALTRAR A2 B BAR
BIRRIA TR - FE A2 BURIRE 5 R 55
336HE/ET R 2 BRMAEHRRBNG AR
AZERRART -

% of the issued

No. of share capital

Name shares held 2 BITRA

=18 FrERMEE Aot

Jiangsu Hongtu High Technology IE R B SRR D

Co., Ltd (note 1) BRATR (H7E1) 1,310,896,765 (L) 50.42%

Jiangsu Hongtu High Technology IEZBE SR (BF) KK

(Hong Kong) Co. Limited (note 2) BRAR (KiE2) 1,310,896,765 (L) 50.42%

Hongtu High Technology Int’l Inc. Hongtu High Technology Int’l Inc. 1,310,896,765 (L) 50.42%

Chan Pau Shiu Yeng Shirley (note 3) FR#1Z4 (f/7i#3) 130,412,067 (L) 5.02%

Raymond Chan (note 3) BRAE S (f15#3) 130,412,067 (L) 5.02%

Notes: B 5T -

(1) Jiangsu Hongtu High Technology Co., Ltd. holds 100% of the ) IHZESREROEBRARFTEIHEAES
equity interests of Jiangsu Hongtu High Technology (Hong B (B8 BROBRAR (MI&EBHE])
Kong) Co. Limited (“Hongtu (HK)"). Therefore, it is deemed to 100% Atz - AME R ARG LG RER
be interested in the interest held by Hongtu (HK). TR MR ©

(2) Hongtu (HK) holds 100% of the issued share of Hongtu High (2) I# =8 & B AHongtu High Technology

Technology Int’l Inc. (“Hongtu (Seychelles)”). Therefore, Hongtu
(HK) is deemed to be interested in 1,310,896,765 shares by
virtue of its shareholding of Hongtu (Seychelles).

(3)  Mrs. Chan Pau Shiu Yeng, Shirley (“Mrs. Chan”) is the wife of
Dr. Raymond Chan (“Dr. Chan”). The personal and corporate
interests of Mrs. Chan are disclosed as the family interests of
Dr. Chan. The personal and corporate interests of Dr. Chan are
disclosed as the family interests of Mrs. Chan.

The letter “L” denotes the entity’s long position in the shares.
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Save as disclosed above, the Company had not been notified
by any person (other than the Directors or chief executives
of the Company) who had interests or short positions in
the shares and underlying shares of the Company as at
December 31, 2015 which were required to be disclosed
to the Company under Part XV of the SFO or which were
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
under section 336 of the SFO.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

On 8 May 2015, Oregon Scientific Inc., an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, and Brookstone
Purchasing Inc., an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
Sanpower, entered into the Sale and Purchase Agreement
pursuant to which Oregon Scientific agreed to sell the
Products to Brookstone Purchasing. During the period from
May 2015 to March 2016, the accumulated amount of sales
amounted to approximately US$749,864 (equivalent to
approximately HK$5,848,941). For details, please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated April 6, 2016.

CONVERTIBLE SECURITIES, OPTIONS,
WARRANTS OR SIMILAR RIGHTS

Save for the share options set out in the sub-section entitled
“Share Option Schemes” above and also in note 25 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements, the Company had no
outstanding convertible securities, options, warrants or similar
rights at December 31, 2015.

Other than the issue and exercise of share options pursuant
to the share option schemes of the Company as explained
above, there was no issue or exercise of any convertible
securities, options, warrants or similar rights of the Company
during the nine months ended December 31, 2015.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

Details of the Group’s retirement benefits schemes are set out
in note 29 to the financial statements.
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REMUNERATION POLICY

Details of the Group’s remuneration policy are set out in the
section of “Operations Review” from pages 24 to 25 of this
annual report.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by officers of the Group (the “Code”)
on terms no less exacting than the Model Code contained
in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. Having made specific
enquiry of all directors, they have confirmed that they fully
complied with the required standards set out in both the
Model Code and the Code throughout the nine months ended
December 31, 2015.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Group’s corporate governance principles and practices
are set out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 51
to 81 of this annual report.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the nine months ended December 31, 2015, neither
the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-Laws or the laws of Bermuda which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis
to existing shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors as at the
date of this report, the Company has maintained sufficient
public float throughout the nine months ended December 31,
2015 as required under the Listing Rules.
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AUDITOR

The financial statements have been audited by Messrs.
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, who retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment. A resolution will be proposed
at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company to
re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditor.

On behalf of the Board

Foo Piau Phang Qi Miao
Chairman Director

March 24, 2016
Hong Kong

50

= EED

RNARZAERERCHEE o B[R SEMAD
TEZ BBEE MHAEREREES
B2 o —THEAEREY « EMR A LTRTA
REMZRABRENARREERRRAFAS
ETURE -

REEFS
SRES TBFK
T EF

—E—-XF=ZHA-+MWmA
&5



Annual Report For the nine months ended December 31,2015 & Hz= T —AF+_-_A=+—HILNEA

Corporate Governance Report

TREAMES

The Group is committed to achieving high standards
of corporate governance to safeguard the interests of
all shareholders and to enhance corporate value and
accountability. Throughout the nine months ended December
31, 2015 under review, the Company has applied the
principles and complied with all code provisions and where
applicable, the recommended best practices prescribed in
the Corporate Governance Code (“CG Code”) in Appendix
14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the
“Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), except for code provisions
A.2.1 (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer) and Code
Provision A.6.7, this Code provision stipulates, inter alia,
Independent Non-executive Directors and other Non-
executive Directors, as equal Board members, should attend
general meetings and develop a balanced understanding of
the views of shareholders, which would be explained in the
relevant paragraphs of this report. This report describes its
corporate governance practices, explains the applications of
the principles of the CG Code and deviations during the nine
months ended December 31, 2015 under review.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Board

During the period between April 1, 2015 and April 15, 2015,
the Board comprised twelve directors of whom three are
executive directors (including the chairman) and five are non-
executive Directors and four are independent non-executive
directors. Following the close of offers on April 15, 2015, the
Board comprised eleven directors of whom two are executive
directors(including the chairman) five are non-executive
directors and four are independent non-executive directors.
For the period between July 21, 2015 and August 25, 2015,
the Board comprised ten directors of whom one is executive
Director (including the chairman), five non-executive directors
and four are independent non-executive directors. For the
period between August 26, 2015 and September 14, 2015,
the Board comprised nine directors of whom one is executive
Director (including the chairman), four non-executive directors
and four are independent non-executive directors. For the
period between September 15, 2015 and November 18,
2015, the Board comprised ten directors of whom one is
executive Director (including the chairman) and five are non-
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executive directors and four are independent non-executive
directors. For the period between November 19, 2015 and
December 6, 2015, the Board comprised of nine directors
of which one is executive Director (including the chairman),
four are non-executive directors and four are independent
non-executive directors. For the period between December
7, 2015 and December 31, 2015, the Board comprised of
ten directors of which one is executive Director (including
the chairman), five are non-executive directors and four
are independent non-executive directors. Brief biographical
details of the directors appear in the Board of Directors
section on pages 32 to 36. An updated list of directors of
the Company and their respective roles and functions are
posted on the Stock Exchange’s website and the Company’s
website.

Appointment, Re-election and Retirement of Directors
The Nomination and Corporate Governance Committee
(“NCGC”) reviews the profiles of the candidates and makes
recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
re-election and retirement of directors.

The Company recognises the importance of having the
appropriate board compaosition. In deciding the board
composition, the attributes, skills and expertise among
the directors are considered appropriate to effectively lead
and control the Group, taking into account the scope and
nature of its operations. The directors have a mix of core
competencies in areas such as accounting and finance,
business and management, industry knowledge and
marketing strategies. The size of the Board is conducive
to effective discussion and decision-making and has an
appropriate balance of independent directors to exercise
independent judgment.
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The Company also recognises and embraces the benefits
of having a diverse Board to enhance the quality of its
performance and has adopted a Board Diversity Policy (the
“Policy”) in 2013. Board diversity will be considered by the
Company from a number of aspects, including but not limited
to cultural and educational background, experience, skills,
knowledge, length of service, age and gender. The Board
composition is reviewed, considered and discussed by the
NCGC on an annual basis and it will make recommendations
to the Board after the review. The Company’s business needs
will also be taken into account in determining the optimum
composition of the Board. In reviewing and assessing the
composition of the Board as well as selecting candidate(s),
the NCGC will consider all diversity elements according to
the Policy and also devised guidelines for ideal board size,
optimum number of executive and non-executive directors
and board membership criteria. The Policy and those
guidelines shall be reviewed and revised periodically to meet
business needs of the Group.

In accordance with the Company’s Bye-Laws, at each annual
general meeting, one-third of the directors shall retire from
office. The directors to retire in every year shall be those
who have been longest in office since their last election or
re-election. Further, any director appointed by the Board
as an additional Board member or fill in a casual vacancy
shall hold office until the following annual general meeting
(*AGM”) and shall then be eligible for re-election at the AGM
immediately following their appointments. The new directors
shall not be taken into account in determining the number of
directors who are to retire by rotation at that annual general
meeting. Election and re-election of directors will be done by
separate resolution.
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The names and biographical details of the directors who
will offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming
AGM are set out in the circular accompanying the notice of
AGM advising why the Board believes the retiring directors
should be elected and the reasons why they consider, if for
independent non-executive directors, the retiring directors
to be independent to shareholders to assist shareholders in
making an informed decision on their elections.

Induction and Continuous Professional Development

Newly appointed directors of the Company will receive
induction and reference materials to enable him/her to
familiarise with the Group’s history, mission, business
operations and board and company policies. Each director
is briefed and updated from time to time to ensure that
he/she has a proper understanding of the operations and
business of the Group and that he/she is fully aware of his/
her responsibilities under statute and common law, the Listing
Rules, applicable legal and other regulatory requirements and
the governance policies of the Company.

Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development so as to refresh their knowledge
and skills for discharging their duties and responsibilities.
During the nine months ended December 31, 2015, relevant
reading materials including regulatory update and seminar
handouts, etc. have been provided to the Directors for their
reference and studying.
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A summary of training taken by the Directors since April 1,
2015 up to December 31, 2015 is set out as follows:

ATIERBAE —E—AFNA-—HBE-FT—
EF+-RA=+—HEEMEX 2 :

Training activities
including in-house
activities/briefings,

seminars/talks held
by professional
organisations
and/or reading
materials on
relevant topics

BIER (B

ABAEEE
SE - EEAS
EoE
EER BEEERE
SRR
Executive Directors: HITES -
Foo Piau Phang RFZES v
See Chi Kwok (note 1) MEEE (AfE1) N/A i
Chan Pau Shiu Yeng, Shirley (note 2) PREZ L (ft2) N/A 3
Non-executive Directors: FHITES !
Xin Kexia F 7R v
Song Rongrong R LR L8 v
Wang Yang T% v
Shi Changyun (note 3) WEE (Hi£3) v/
Qi Miao (note 4) W% (Hat4) v
Gao Huan (note 5) =8 (Kits) N/A 3@
Raymond Chan, JP (note 6) PRIESC + KF#t (M5E6) N/A i A
Independent Non-Executive Directors: BAFHITES
Yang Xiongsheng (note 7) SR (HiE7) v
Zhao Yuhong (note 8) T4 (B28) v
Li Quan (note 9) T (f1aF9) v
Duh Jia-Bin (note 10) MRE (BfaE10) v
Lo Kai Yiu, Anthony (note 11) BROB (Hat11) N/A 73 F
Kao Ying Lun (note 12) SR (MiE12) N/A i
Jack Schmuckli (note 13) Jack Schmuckli (#/:#13) N/A i@ F
Kenichi Ohmae (note 14) KRB — (KiaE14) N/A T3 A
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Notes:

(1) Mr. See Chi Kwok has resigned on July 21, 2015.

(2)  Mrs. Chan Pau Shiu Yeng, Shirley has resigned on April 15, 2015.
(3)  Mr. Shi Changyun has been appointed on September 15, 2015.
(4)  Mr. Qi Miao has been appointed on December 7, 2015.

(5) Ms. Gao Huan has resigned on November 19, 2015.

(6) Dr. Raymond Chan has retired on August 26, 2015.

(7)  Mr. Yang Xiongsheng has been appointed on August 26, 2015.
(8) Ms. Zhao Yuhong has been appointed on August 26, 2015.

(9) Dr. Li Quan has been appointed on August 26, 2015.

(10) Mr. Duh Jia-Bin has been appointed on August 26, 2015.

(11) Mr. Lo Kai Yiu, Anthony has retired on August 26, 2015.
(12) Mr. Kao Ying Lun has retired on August 26, 2015.

(13) Mr. Jack Schmuckli has retired on August 26, 2015.
(14) Dr. Kenichi Ohmae has retired on August 26, 2015.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

During the period between April 1, 2015 and December 31,
2015, Mr. Foo Piau Phang is the executive chairman of the
Company. During the period between April 1, 2015 and July
20, 2015, Mr. See Chi Kwok is the group chief executive
officer of the Company. Following the resignation of Mr. See
Chi Kwok on July 21, 2015, Mr. Foo takes up the office of
acting group chief executive officer in the interim, until a
suitable candidate is identified to fill the vacancy of the group
chief executive officer.
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Code provision A.6.7: This Code Provision stipulates, inter
alia, Independent Non-executive Directors and Non-executive
Directors, as equal Board members, should attend general
meetings and develop a balanced understanding of the views
of shareholders of the Company.

Mr. Xin Kexia, Mr. Song Rongrong, Ms. Wang Yang and
Ms. Gao Huan, being all non-executive Directors, were
unable to attend the annual general meeting of the Company
held on August 26, 2015 (“2015 AGM”) due to other business
engagement.

Dr. Raymond Chan, being the non-executive Director, and
Mr. Lo Kai Yiu, Anthony, Mr. Kao Ying Lun, Mr. Jack
Schmuckli, and Dr. Kenichi Ohmae, being all the independent
non-executive Directors, were unable to attend the 2015
AGM due to the fact that they retired on August 26, 2015.

Responsibilities of the Board and delegations to
management

The Board is responsible to the shareholders for leadership
and control of the Company and is collectively responsible for
promoting the success of the Company and its businesses by
directing and supervising the Company’s affairs.

The Board focuses on overall strategies and policies
with particular attention paid to the growth and financial
performance of the Group. The principal functions of the

Board are to:

e  establish the strategic direction and development of the
Group;

e determine the broad policies, strategic plans and
performance objectives of the Group;

° monitor management performance;
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e approve financial plans and annual budgets, major
funding proposals, key funding and investment
proposals;

e oversee the processes for evaluating the adequacy of
internal controls, risk management, financial reporting
and compliance;

e approve the nominations of directors and appointment of
key personnel; and

e assume responsibility for corporate governance.

The Board delegates day-to-day operations of the Group to
executive directors and senior executives, while reserving
certain key matters for its approval. Decisions of the Board
are communicated to the management through executive
directors who have attended at Board meetings and
circulation of minutes of Board meetings to the management.

The Board has adopted a set of guidelines to clearly divide
the responsibilities of the Board and the management.
Matters reserved for its decision and consideration include,
among others, all matters of strategic importance, corporate
governance practices, legal and regulatory compliance,
internal control and risk management, corporate strategy,
operating and capital budgets, statutory financial reports,
changes in Board members, major transactions and
investment commitments and remuneration policy of directors
and senior management, financial authorization and approval
limits for operating and capital expenditure, the procurement
of goods and services, and the acquisition and disposal of
investments.
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Independent non-executive directors

Coming from diverse business and professional backgrounds,
the independent non-executive directors of the Company
have shared their valuable experiences to the Board for
promoting the best interests of the Company and its
shareholders. The independent non-executive directors of
the Company have made significant contribution of their
skills and expertise to these Committees. All independent
non-executive directors are appointed for a fixed term of
three years and are subject to retirement by rotation and
re-election by shareholders at AGM in accordance with the
Company’s Bye-Laws.

All independent non-executive directors are expressly
identified in all corporate communications that disclose the
names of the directors of the Company. The functions of
independent non-executive directors include, but not limited
to:

e participating in Board meetings to bring in independent
judgment to bear on issues of corporate strategy,
corporate performance, accountability, resources, key
appointments and standard of conducts;

e taking the lead where potential conflicts of interests
arise;

e  serving on board committees, if invited; and

e  scrutinising the Group’s performance in achieving agreed
corporate goals and objectives, and monitoring the
reporting of performance.
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During the nine months ended December 31, 2015, the
Company has complied with Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2)
of the Listing Rules regarding the appointment of at least
three independent non-executive directors including at least
one independent non-executive director with appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or relating financial
management expertise. During the period between April 1,
2015 and August 25, 2015, Mr. Lo Kai Yiu, Anthony, Mr. Kao
Ying Lun, Mr. Jack Schmuckli and Dr. Kenichi Ohmae, being
all independent non-executive directors of the Company and
having retired on August 26, 2015, have served the Board
for more than nine years. During the period between August
26, 2015 and December 31, 2015, Mr. Yang Xiongsheng,
Ms. Zhao Yuhong, Dr. Li Quan and Mr. Duh Jia-Bin,
being appointed on August 26, 2015, are all independent
non-executive directors of the Company. In assessing the
independence of the directors, the Board has examined the
different relationships identified under the Listing Rules that
might impair the directors’ independence and objectivity. The
Board considers that all of the independent non-executive
directors are independent and is satisfied of the directors’
ability to act with independent judgment. Furthermore, each
of the independent non-executive directors has provided
to the Company an annual confirmation of independence
required by Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company
considers all its independent non-executive directors to be
independent. Each director is subject to retirement by rotation
at least once every three years. Any further re-appointment of
an independent non-executive director, who has served the
Board for more than nine years, will be subject to separate
resolution to be approved by the shareholders of the
Company.

The Company has also complied with Rule 3.10A of the

Listing Rules that the independent non-executive directors
are representing at least one-third of the Board.
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Relationship
There is no financial, business, family and other material
relationship among other members of the Board.

There has been an effective and balanced Board collectively
responsible for the Company’s activities and affairs. The
Board members have been free to discuss issues properly
put to the Board meetings and express their views and
concerns. No individual or small group can dominate the
Board’s decision-making process.

If a substantial shareholder or a director has a conflict of
interest in a matter to be considered by the Board which
the Board has determined to be material, the matter will be
dealt with by a physical Board meeting rather than a written
resolution of the Board. The Board will take into account the
exceptions to the general voting prohibition, as set out in the
Listing Rules when considering whether a director shall vote
on any board resolution approving any matters in which he
has material interests or shall he be counted in the quorum
present at the meeting.

Meetings

The Board meets regularly at least 4 times a year and
holds additional meetings as and when the Board thinks
appropriate. Board committees also hold regular scheduled
meetings to discharge their duties. Meetings via telephone
or video-conference are permitted under the Bye-Laws of
the Company. Attendance record of the Board and Board
Committees meetings during the nine months ended
December 31, 2015 is set out on page 64.

All Directors have access to the company secretary who
is responsible for ensuring that Board/Board committees
meeting procedures are observed and advising the Board/
Board committees on compliance matters.
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To address the competing time commitments of directors who
sit on multiple boards, Board/Board committees meetings
dates are scheduled well in advance at the beginning of every
calendar year. The Company has given at least 14 days’
notice for regular Board and Board Committees meetings.
For all other Board/Board committees meetings, reasonable
notices are given. Draft agendas for Board and Board
Committee meetings are prepared by the Company Secretary
and are circulated to all directors for comment before the
meetings. The directors were given the opportunities to
include matters to be discussed in the agenda for all Board
and Board Committees meetings. The company secretary is
delegated with the responsibility to prepare these agendas
and, where appropriate, take into account any matters
proposed by each director/committee member for inclusion in
the agenda.

The agenda accompanied by detailed board papers (prepared
in such form and quality as will enable the Board to make an
informed decision on matters placed before it, including but
not limited to, background or explanatory information relating
to matters to be brought before the Board and internal
financial information such as quarterly management accounts,
forecasts and budgets with material variance between
projections and actual results explained) are circulated to all
directors in a timely manner and at least three days before
the date of scheduled meeting.

Minutes of Board/Board committees meetings are recorded
in detail the matters considered and decisions reached,
including concerns raised by directors or dissenting views
expressed. Draft minutes are circulated to relevant directors/
committee members within a reasonable time after the
meetings for comments and will then be approved by the
Board/Board committees at the following meeting. Minutes
of Board and Board Committees meetings are kept by
the company secretary and are open for inspection at any
reasonable time on reasonable notice by any director.
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Directors are provided in a timely manner with complete,
adequate explanation and information about the Company
and its subsidiaries, its activities, performances and its
projects particularly including any significant variances from
a planned course of actions to enable them to make an
informed decision or assessment of the Group’s performance,
position and prospects and to discharge their duties and
responsibilities. In case when the directors have queries,
they are provided with the names and contact details of the
Group’s senior executives for separate and independent
access to them and they are able to obtain more information
than is volunteered by the management. Senior executives
are from time to time brought into formal and informal contact
with the Board at Board meetings and other events.

The Board and Board committees are provided with sufficient
resources to properly discharge their duties including
access to independent professional advisers under agreed
procedures, upon reasonable request, at the expense of the
Company.
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The following table summarises the attendance record of
individual directors and committee members for the nine
months ended December 31, 2015:

BE_ZT-RFt+_A=+t—BIENERRNE
NEZERZEEGEHESR ZLENT

No. of Meeting attended/No. of Meeting held
LEEENY/ eEENY

Nomination
and Corporate
Governance 2015
Executive Audit ~ Committee Remuneration AGM
Board  Committee  Committee ~ RHEREE  Committee —F-1F
E3e Yf7ZEE ENZEE ERZEE  FMzZEg RRBEAE
Number of meetings held BEEIRY 3 8 2 1 1 1
Executive Directors HTES
Foo Piau Phang fEE 3/3 6/6 - 1A - 17
See Chi Kwok (note 1) B (i) 17 6/6 - - - -
Chan Pau Shiu Yeng, Shirley (note 2) 8IS (fit2) - 2/2 - - - -
Non-executive Directors FHTES
Xin Kexia ok 213 - - - - 0/
Song Rongrong REL 3/3 - - - 17 0/1
Wang Yang 1% 313 - - - - 0/1
Shi Changyun (note 9) BRE (Hi#3) 17 - - - - -
Qi Miao (note 4) W3 (Hit4) - - - - - -
Gao Huan (note 5] BR (Wits) 112 - - - - o
Raymond Chan, JP (noe 6} RN kTt (it6) i 20 - . : 0
Independent Non-Executive Directors  BuFHTES
Yang Xiongsheng (note 7) 1Bk (i7) 2/2 - 11 - - -
Zhao Yuhong (note 8) WA (H:28) 2/2 - i - - -
Li Quan (note 9) T (Wit9) 212 - 1/1 - - -
Duh Jia-Bin (note 10) HRE (H210) 112 - - - - -
Lo Kai Yiu, Anthony (note 11) BEE (W#11) 1 - 17 - - 0/1
Kao Ying Lun (note 12) BEB (W#12) 1" - 11 11 11 0/1
Jack Schmuckli (note 13) Jack Schmuckli (#7i£13) 17 - 11 11 17 0/
Kenichi Ohmae (note 14) K= (Hit14) 0 - - - - 0/
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Notes:

M

(1)

(12)

(13)

(14)

Mr. See Chi Kwok has resigned on July 21, 2015.

Ms. Chan Pau Shiu Yeng, Shirley has resigned on April 15,

2015.

Mr. Shi Changyun has been appointed on September 15, 2015.

Mr. Qi Miao has been appointed on December 7, 2015.

Ms. Gao Huan has resigned on November 19, 2015.

Dr. Raymond Chan has retired on August 26, 2015.

Mr. Yang Xiongsheng has been appointed on August 26, 2015.

Ms. Zhao Yuhong has been appointed on August 26, 2015.

Dr. Li Quan has been appointed on August 26, 2015.

Mr. Duh Jia-Bin has been appointed on August 26, 2015.

Mr. Lo Kai Yiu, Anthony has retired on August 26, 2015.

Mr. Kao Ying Lun has retired on August 26, 2015.

Mr. Jack Schmuckli has retired on August 26, 2015.

Dr. Kenichi Ohmae has retired on August 26, 2015.
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Board Committees

To maximise the effectiveness of the Board and to encourage
active participation and contribution from Board members,
the Board has established four Board committees, namely
executive committee, audit committee, nomination and
corporate governance committee and remuneration
committee with specific written terms of reference that clearly
deal with their authority and duties, to oversee particular
aspects of the Company’s affairs, assist in the execution of
the Board’s responsibilities enable the Board Committees to
perform their functions properly. Board committees report to
the Board on their works and findings. They adopt as far as
practicable, the principles, procedures and arrangements of
the Board in relation to scheduling and conduct of meetings,
notice of meetings and inclusion of agenda items, recording
and availability of minutes. The written terms of reference of
Audit Committee, Nomination and Corporate Governance
Committee and Remuneration Committee, which are in
line with the CG Code, are available on the website of the
Company and the Stock Exchange and will be reviewed
from time to time. The quorum necessary for transaction of
business of each Board Committee is two.

Executive Committee (“EC”)
During the nine months ended December 31, 2015, the EC
comprises of all executive directors.

The EC meets as and when required to oversee the
day-to-day management of the Group and has all the general
powers of the Board except those matters specifically
reserved for the Board. From April 1, 2015 to April 15, 2015,
Dr. Raymond Chan and Mrs Chan Pau Shiu Yeng, Shirley
serves as members of EC and following their resignation.
During the period between April 15, 2015 and July 20, 2015,
Mr. Foo Piau Phang and Mr. See Chi Kwok serves as the
members of the EC. Following the resignation of Mr. See Chi
Kwok on July 21, 2015, Mr. Foo remains as the sole member
of the EC.

66

EFXZEE
RESEZSVREN LB EZTEKNEEIRS
HEELER  EFSCRUNEEELES
DHIRMITEZEES  BERZES REMEE
EARRBekFMEES WIS ERER
BABGEI R R EGMITRIY - B ESM
JIAZERESCRENBE  UEEARQT
FETHEZEY UHBHTEFSZBE -
EXZBQRNEFTEREHTIENAEHER -
BRERBERATEARMNESSERRESH
BRALERETHN  SRBERIAZE
HE REAEHREZRLBESFZRA  BFR
ZH - EZZEE  RENEEERZEER
FNEZBEeRaANEERE A TR Z Bk
#E - Y LANARRBE LB - I
TREH R - BEEFEREEREFH A
EABRMA e

HTEEE ([HTZER))
HE-Z—TAF+-_A=1t—HILtAEA - %
TEZEEREBHITEEAEK -

HITZEERNFERETERURERALHE
BREEEN BREEZESTSFLREZR
MEEIN WITZESHAESTEME R
N RZE-—RFNA-—BE_T—HFNA
THEHR  REXELERESLLLERE
ERRMTZEERE - R_T—RAFWAT
TREZZ-—HFtA-Z+THHAR  FEREEL
EREEEEEDHSAITRZEENKE - RiE
SHEEER-_ZT-AF LA -+ HEHER
MrELEEBERNTREGZHE—KE -



Annual Report For the nine months ended December 31, 2015 & #E=—ZT—RAF+-A=+—HI- @A

The principal duties of EC include:

e managing the business and investments by overseeing
the Group’s operations, projects, assets and liabilities,
budgets, compliance obligations and financial
performance in accordance with the policies and
directives of the Board;

e making recommendations to the Board as to the Group’s
overall policies, strategies and financial objectives in
the development of its business and ensuring their
implementation and execution; and

e providing leadership to staff and management and
nominating key personnel and ensuring appropriate
levels of authority are delegated to them.

Nomination and Corporate Governance Committee
(“NCGC”)

During the period between April 1, 2015 and April 15, 2015,
the NCGC is chaired by Mr. Jack Schmuckli and companies
two other members, namely Mrs. Chan Pau Shiu Yeng,
Shirley and Mr. Kao Ying Lun. Following the close of offers
on April 15, 2015, during the period between April 15, 2015
and August 25, 2015, the NCGC is chaired by Mr. Foo Piau
Phang and comprises two other members, namely, Mr. Jack
Schmuckli and Mr. Kao Ying Lun, which meets at least once
a year. All NCGC members, except Mr. Foo Piau Phang,
are independent non-executive directors. During the period
between August 26, 2015 and December 31, 2015, the
NCGC is chaired by Mr. Foo Piau Phang and comprises two
other members, namely, Mr. Li Quan and Mr. Duh Jia-Bin. All
NCGC members, except Mr. Foo Piau Phang are independent
non-executive directors.
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The principal functions of the NCGC include: RENTEERLZEEZ TEBRSE A

making recommendations to the Board on all new
appointments or re-appointments of directors, the
establishment of a succession plan for directors, in
particular the chairman and chief executive officer and
the composition of the Board;

identifying and nominating qualified individuals, subject
to the approval of the Board, to be additional directors
or to fill vacancy in the Board as and when they arise;

reviewing on an annual basis the Board structure, size
and composition and the independent element of the
Board;

developing the criteria for selection of directors;

assessing the independence of independent
non-executive directors;

developing and reviewing the Company’s policies
and practices on corporate governance and make
recommendations to the Board;

reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous
professional development of directors and senior
management;

reviewing and monitoring the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of
conduct and compliance manual (if any) applicable to
employees and directors; and

reviewing the Company’s compliance with the CG Code
and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

The chairman of the NCGC will report to the Board on its
proceedings and recommendations after each meeting.
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The main works performed by NCGC during the nine months
ended December 31, 2015 include reviewing the structure
and composition of the Board; assessing independence of
existing independent non-executive directors and putting
forward recommendation to the Board on re-election of
retiring directors as well as reviewing Board Diversity Policy
and recommending the same to the Board for approval.

Remuneration Committee (“RC”)

During the period between April 1, 2015 and April 15, 2015,
the RC is chaired by Mr. Jack Schmuckli and comprises two
other members, namely, Mr. Kao Ying Lun and Mrs. Chan Pau
Shiu Yeng, Shirley. All RC members, except Mrs. Chan Pau
Shiu Yeng, Shirley, are independent non-executive directors.
Following the close of offers on April 15, 2015, during the
period between April 15, 2015 and August 25, 2015, the RC
is chaired by Mr. Jack Schmuckli and comprises two other
members, namely, Mr. Song Rongrong and Mr. Kao Ying Lun.
All RC members, except Mr. Song Rongrong, are independent
non-executive directors. During the period between August
26, 2015 and December 31, 2015, the RC is chaired by
Ms. Zhao Yuhong and comprises two other members, namely,
Mr. Song Rongrong and Mr. Duh Jia-Bin. All RC members,
except Mr. Song Rongrong, are independent non-executive
directors.

The RC consults the chairman and group chief executive
officer about its proposals relating to the remuneration of
other executive directors and has access to professional
advice if considered necessary. The principal functions of the
RC include:

° recommending to the Board on the Company’s policies
and structure for the remuneration of the directors and
senior management of the Group;

° recommending to the Board the remuneration packages
of all executive directors and senior management; and

° reviewing and approving the management’s remuneration

proposals with reference to the Board’s corporate goals
and objectives.
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The chairman of the RC will report to the Board on its
proceedings and recommendations, where appropriate, for
the Board’s consideration and/or approval.

The main works performed by RC during the nine months
ended December 31, 2015 include reviewing and approving
the employees’ annual salary increment commencing from
April 1, 2015, recommending the proposed directors’ fees
paid for the nine months ended December 31, 2015.

A general description of the Group’s emolument policy
and long-term incentive schemes as well as the basis of
determining the emolument payable to each directors for the
nine months ended December 31, 2015 are disclosed on
pages 24 to 25 of this annual report.

Audit Committee (“AC”)

During the period between April 1, 2015 and August 25,
2015, the AC consists of three members, namely, Mr. Lo
Kai Yiu, Anthony (chairman), Mr. Kao Ying Lun and Mr. Jack
Schmuckli, all of whom are independent non-executive
directors. During the period between August 26, 2015 and
December 31, 2015, the AC consists of three members,
namely, Mr. Yang Xiongsheng (chairman), Ms. Zhao Yuhong
and Dr. Li Quan, all of whom are independent non-executive
directors. The Board is of the opinion that the majority of
the members of the AC possess accounting and financial
management expertise or experience to discharge their
duties.

The major duties of AC include:

e considering and recommending the appointment,
re-appointment and removal of external auditor;

e  approving the remuneration and terms of engagement of
external auditor, any questions of resignation or dismissal
of that auditor;

e reviewing and monitoring external auditor’s
independence and objectivity and the effectiveness
of the audit process in accordance with applicable
standards;
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discussing with external auditor the nature and scope
of the audit and reporting obligations before the audit
commences;

developing and implementing policy on the engagement
of an external auditor to supply non-audit services
and making recommendation of any measures for
improvements to be taken;

monitoring integrity of financial statements, annual
and interim reports and reviewing significant financial
reporting judgment contained in them. In this regard,
in reviewing the quarterly, interim and annual financial
statements and the annual and the interim reports before
submission to the Board, focusing particularly on:

() any changes in accounting policies and practices;
(i)  major judgmental areas;
(iii)  significant adjustments resulting from audit;

(iv) the going concern assumptions and any
qualifications;

(v) compliance with accounting standards;

(vi) compliance with the Listing Rules and other legal
requirements in relation to financial reporting; and

(vi) any matters that have been raised by the
Company’s staff responsible for the accounting and
financial reporting function or auditors;

reviewing the Group’s financial controls, internal control
and risk management systems;

discussing with the management the system of
internal control and ensuring that the management
has discharged its duty to have an effective internal
control system including the adequacy of resources,
qualifications and experience of staff of the Company’s
accounting and financial reporting function, and their
training programmes and budget;
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e considering major investigations of findings on internal
control matters as delegated by the Board or on its own
initiative and management’s response to these findings;

° reviewing the internal audit programme, ensuring
co-ordination between the internal and external
auditors, and ensuring that the internal audit function
is adequately resourced and has appropriate standing
within the Company and reviewing and monitoring the
effectiveness of the internal audit function;

° reviewing the external auditor’'s management letter, any
material queries raised by the auditor to management
in respect of the accounting records, financial accounts
or systems of control and management’s response and
ensuring that the Board will provide a timely response to
the issues raised;

° reviewing the Group’s financial and accounting policies
and practices;

e reviewing the arrangements the Group’s employees can
use, in confidence, to raise concerns about possible
improprieties in financial reporting, internal control or
other matters. The Committee should ensure that proper
arrangements are in place for fair and independent
investigation of these matters and for appropriate
follow-up action; and

e  reporting to the Board on matters set out above and to
consider other topics, as defined by the Board.

The AC has explicit authority to investigate into any matter
under the scope of its duties and the authority to obtain
independent professional advice. It is given full access to and
cooperation of the management. It has been provided with
reasonable resources to discharge its duties properly. In the
course of reviewing the Group’s financial information, the AC
members liaise closely with the Board and the group chief
financial officer to gather relevant information.
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The major works performed by the AC include the review
and consideration of the announcements relating to the
Group’s interim and annual results; interim and annual
reports; significant accounting and audit issues arising from
annual audit of the Group’s financial statements; budget,
periodic reports from internal audit department; internal audit
plan, external auditor’s audit and non-audit fees as well as
the assessment and recommendation of re-appointment of
auditor for the coming year.

Full minutes of the AC are kept by the company secretary of
the Company. Draft and finalised minutes of the AC meetings
are circulated to all members of the AC for their comment
and records respectively, in both cases within reasonable time
after the conclusion of the meetings.

Securities Transactions by Directors and Officers

The Company has adopted a Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors and Officers of the Group (the “Code”) on
terms no less exacting than the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies (the “Model
Code”) contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.

Having made specific enquiry of all directors, they have
confirmed that they fully complied with the required standards
set out in both the Model Code and the Code throughout the
nine months ended December 31, 2015 regarding directors’
securities transactions.

Directors and Officers as defined in the Code who is deemed
to be in possession of unpublished inside information in
relation to the Company or its shares are prohibited from
dealing in shares of the Company during the black-out
period.

Insurance

The Group has appropriate insurance cover in place in
respect of any legal actions against its directors and officers.

73

BENZEERTZIBEI(FBREENLERFR
AASETHLREEFREZAM PHRF
ERE  SFEERAKREVBREMEEZE
REFREBEREE  BE  AEEAHBZEY
WE  NERE LA 8 RSN B A 2 Tz S IE
BZER AN REEEBRE R RZE
i o

BERRBEZHESRLEAARRARME
T8 BENZEEERRNBIERMRER -
REHBERE— % ﬁ%ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%%ﬁ%&
ZEEXE  UHEFREERRIFE

EENSABEETESRS
ARPEHRMAEEEZRRABBETES
RZESRI([FA)) - B ERAE AR MR A
Wﬁm%ﬁiﬁ“ﬂ%$Lﬂﬁ% L Lokas
SR (TIREESF R ZIRRRRR ©

mﬁi %%%ﬁﬂm 5 BERRER
HE_Z—hAF+ZA=+—HIEAEREZE
hﬁ%+ﬁ%&ﬁ%%ﬁﬁ%§$ TREHR

S IEEHE ©

R BB AREAR R HEB D RELMHAR
HEERZEZRSMBME (EER TR £
IERR BB E EBAR RN

R
AEECAEENSRBERERFDEIELZ
BEEBERE ZRR -

—hFE+ZA=t—RLNEA



IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED E B AR A ]

Corporate Governance Report

TREAMES

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Financial Reporting

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the financial statements which give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs and results of the Company and of the Group.
Their responsibilities have also been stated in the section
headed “Independent Auditor’s Report” on pages 82 to 83
of this annual report. In preparing the financial statements for
the nine months ended December 31, 2015, the directors
have selected suitable accounting policies and applied them
consistently and made accounting judgments and estimates
that are prudent and reasonable in the circumstances. With
the assistance of the Finance Department, the directors
ensure that the financial statements of the Group are
prepared in accordance with statutory requirements and
appropriate financial reporting standards.

Management recognises the importance of providing the
Board with appropriate and relevant information on an
accurate and timely basis. Quarterly business review and
financial reports comparing the Group’s actual performance
with budget and highlighting major relevant issues are
provided to the Board to enable it to make an informed
assessment on the Group’s performance, position and
prospects. Under the CG Code, monthly updates are required
to be provided to all directors.

The Board endeavours to ensure a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of the Group’s position and
prospects to extend to the Group’s financial reporting
including annual and interim reports, other price-sensitive
announcements and other financial disclosures required
under the Listing Rules, and reports to regulators as well as
information required to be disclosed pursuant to statutory
requirements.

The Company publishes of its interim and annual financial

results and reports in accordance with the requirements
under the Listing Rules.
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External Auditor and Auditor’s Remuneration

The external auditor of the Company is Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu. The Audit Committee is responsible for considering
the selection, appointment, resignation or dismissal of
external auditors. The Board has no disagreement with the
Audit Committee’s view on the re-appointment of external
auditor.

The statement of Deloitte Touch Tohmatsu, the independent
auditor of the Company, regarding their reporting
responsibility on the financial statements of the Group for
the nine months ended December 31, 2015 is set out in the
section headed “Independent Auditor’'s Report” on pages
82 to 83 of this annual report. Representatives from Deloitte
Touch Tohmatsu met up with the Audit Committee meeting to
answer questions.

During the nine months ended December 31, 2015, the fees
paid to Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, the Company’s external
auditor, for audit services of the Company and its subsidiaries
amounted to HK$4.2 million (For the year ended March 31,
2015: HK$4.1 million) and for non-audit related services,
representing mainly taxation services, amounted to HK$0.1
million (For the year ended March 31, 2015: HK$0.3 million).

Risk Management and Internal Controls

The Board is responsible for maintaining a sound and
effective risk management and internal control systems of the
Group, and for reviewing their design, operational adequacy
and effectiveness.
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The Group’s risk management and internal control systems
encompass their policies, processes, tasks, and other
aspects of the Group that taken together:

e facilitate their effective and efficient operation by allowing
it to respond appropriately to significant business,
operational, financial, compliance and other risks with a
view to achieving business objectives. This includes the
safeguarding of assets from inappropriate use or from
loss and fraud and ensuring that liabilities are identified
and managed;

° help ensure maintenance of proper accounting records
for the provision of reliable financial information for
internal or external reporting; and

e help ensure compliance with relevant legislation and
regulations, and also with internal policies with respect
to the conduct of business.

The risk management and internal control systems are
designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance
of no material misstatement or loss and to manage rather
than eliminate risks of failure in operational systems and
achievement of the Group’s objectives.

The key procedures that the Board established to provide
effective risk management and internal controls are as
follows:

e A distinct organisation structure exists with defined lines
of authority and responsibilities. Division/department
heads are involved in preparing the strategic plan which
laid down the corporate strategies to be pursued in the
coming year for achieving the annual operating plan
and the annual operational and financial targets. Both
the strategic plan and the annual operating plan laid
down the foundation for the preparation of the annual
budget by which resources are allocated in accordance
with identified and prioritised business opportunities.
The annual operating plan has been approved by the
Executive Committee subject to regular review. The
strategic plan has been presented to the Board by
management subject to regular review and the annual
budget is approved by the Board yearly;
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e A comprehensive monthly management reporting
system is in place providing financial and operational
performance indicators to the management, and the
relevant financial information for reporting and disclosure
purposes. Variances against budgets are analysed,
and explained, and appropriate actions are taken, if
necessary, to rectify deficiencies noted; and

e  System and procedures are in place to identify, measure,
manage and control risks including legal, credit, market,
operational, environmental, behavioral and system risks
that may have an impact on the Group.

The Group’s Internal Audit Department (“IA”) performs audit
reviews of the risks and key controls of the Group. IA plays an
important role in monitoring the Group’s internal governance,
evaluating the quality of the risk management and internal
control systems and informing the Board whether sound risk
management and internal control systems are maintained
and operated by the management in compliance with agreed
processes and standards. To preserve the independence of
the internal audit function, the Head of IA reports directly to
the AC on audit matters and to the chief executive officer on
administrative matters.

Using a risk management-based approach audit, IA plans
its internal audit projects annually in consultation with, but
independent of, management. The audit methodology and
process adopted by IA include understanding and analysing
the business, determining risk areas within key processes;
analysing and evaluating the process control effectiveness
and communicating results and follow up. Independent
reviews of different financial, business and functional
operations and activities will be conducted with audit
resources being focused on higher risk areas. Ad-hoc reviews
will also be conducted on areas of concern identified by the
AC and the management.

7

o FIUBBAFHMANERERGE UMER
BRRHEMBMEERRER i’E?ﬂ,\,M‘“
B HERERMEERSE - YBE
EEHONLEE ]IE"EEEEEHHKHX ]
EZITBARMBAAMZ TR &

o FIUBIERREFUAER B2 EELE
Rl RE & $’$.Z/2if$ 8 -mH -
EE - RIE - TARNESRE

AEBADETE ([APEFFTE]) RAEE
2B R BB EITRIZIRE o NEREATED
RERAEEANHERLE  FFHEREELA
‘Bﬁtat AZABFEENNESSEREEERES

BRIPECEBFREZEEUREREEZRRE
BRAREESIELIEEEZEAER - BIRE
EEETIEE 2B - A FEBEBEEER
ﬁjf?i/\EE#ﬁE?ﬁﬁT?$E&WEITTBZW
HIERITHER ©

NE R BRARRERARNZEZ AL R
2IH Eflﬁiﬁﬁﬁiﬁéﬂ(amu@fﬁﬁi A TR
B) o NEBFEAAFEMZz — B EREFE
ﬁ-ﬁ EREMOWER  EXZBRFATERBRE
DR ERFEE 2 BRI R EES
Eﬁiﬁﬂi’% TRZMIK - %5 - L EERES
ZEBIRNBEEEZERET  UEPRS
Rk &E - MEZZESREEE#RITE
BRI ZEH  MEABEFNETRI -



IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED E B AR A ]

Corporate Governance Report

TREAMES

The Company has established written policies and procedures
on daily operations, covering process flow, methodology
adopted, reviewing process and reporting system. Division/
Department Heads will be notified of the control deficiencies
noted for rectification, and IA will follow up with the
implementation of audit recommendations. Significant internal
control weaknesses are brought to the attention of the AC
and if necessary to the Board, and to the senior management
for remedial actions.

During the period under review, the Board, through the AC,
has conducted reviews on a regular basis, of the effectiveness
of the Group’s risk management and internal control systems
covering all material controls, including financial, operational
and compliance controls, and risk management functions
and gave due deliberation/consideration to the adequacy
of resources, staff qualifications and experience of the
accounting and financial reporting function. The Board,
through the review of the AC, is satisfied that the Group has
fully complied with the code provisions on internal controls
during the period under review as set forth in the CG Code.
No significant control failings or weakness were reported
during the nine months ended December 31, 2015 up to the
date of this report.

Furthermore, the whistleblowing policy was adopted by the
Board for the Group’s employees, customers and suppliers to
raise concerns, in confidence, about possible improprieties in
any matters related to the Group.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHT

Shareholders Communication

The Company strives to convey to shareholders pertinent
information in a clear, detailed, timely manner and on a
regular basis and to take into consideration their views and
inputs, and address shareholders’ concerns. Their views are
communicated to the Board as a whole.

The Company communicates with its shareholders through
the publication of annual and interim reports, results
announcements and press release. All shareholders’
communications are also available on the Stock Exchange’s
website at www.hkex.com.hk or the Company’s website at
www.idthk.com.
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The AGM provides a useful forum for shareholders to
exchange views with the Board. The chairman of the Board
as well as chairmen of AC, NCGC and/or RC, or in their
absence, members of the Board committees are available to
answer shareholders’ questions.

Separate resolutions are proposed at general meetings on
each substantially separate issue, including the election of
individual directors. Votes cast on each resolution at the
general meetings are properly counted and recorded.

At each general meeting, the shareholders will be informed
the detailed procedures for conducting a poll and answers will
be provided if there are any questions from the shareholders.
The poll results are posted on the Stock Exchange’s website
and the Company’s website.

Procedures for Shareholders to Convene a Special
General Meeting (“SGM”)

The directors of the Company, notwithstanding anything in
its Bye-Laws shall, on the requisition of shareholders of the
Company holding at the date of the deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of such of the paid-up capital of the
Company as at the date of the deposit carries the right of
voting at general meetings of the Company, forthwith proceed
duly to convene a SGM of the Company.

The requisition must state the purposes of the meeting, and
must be signed by the requisitionists and addressed to the
company secretary and deposited at the Company’s principal
place of business in Hong Kong.

The request will be verified with the Company’s share
registrars and upon their confirmation that the request is
proper and in order, the company secretary will ask the Board
to include the resolution in the agenda for the SGM.

If the directors do not within twenty-one days from the date
of the deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene a
meeting, the requisitionists, or any of them representing more
than one half of the total voting rights of all of them, may
themselves convene a meeting, but any meeting so convened
shall not be held after the expiration of three months from the
said date.
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Corporate Governance Report

TREAMES

Procedures for Shareholders to Put Forward
Proposals at General Meetings

Shareholders who want to put forward proposals at an AGM
or SGM should submit a written notice of those proposals
with their detailed contact information to the company
secretary at the Company’s principal place of business in
Hong Kong. The request will be verified with the Company’s
share registrars and upon their confirmation that the request
is proper and in order, the company secretary will ask the
Board to include the resolution in the agenda for the general
meeting.

Procedures for Shareholders to Send Enquiries to the
Board

Shareholders’ enquiries must be in writing setting out their
contact information and addressed to the company secretary
and deposited at the Company’s principal place of business
in Hong Kong at Block C, 9th Floor, Kaiser Estate, 41 Man
Yue Street, Hunghom, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary is responsible to the Board for
ensuring that the Board procedures and policies are
followed and also responsible for ensuring that the Board
is fully appraised of the relevant regulatory and corporate
governance developments relating to the Group and
facilitating the induction and professional development of
directors. Mr. Kong Chun Hin Jason, the company secretary
of the Company during the period, had attended relevant
professional seminars to update his knowledge and skills. He
had complied with the Listing Rules and taken no less than
15 hours of relevant professional training.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Board recognised that effective communication to
investors is the key to establish investor confidence and
attracting new investors.

Measures taken by the Group include:

e Annual and interim reports are prepared and issued to
all shareholders within the prescribed period stipulated
by the Stock Exchange. All results announcements and
reports are posted on the Stock Exchange’s website and
the Company’s website.

e  The Group regularly releases corporate information such
as awards received, product launches and the latest
news of the Group’s developments on the Company’s
website. The public are welcome to give their comments
and make their enquiries through the Company’s website
and the management will provide their prompt response.

e  The constitutional documents of the Company can be
found on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange and there is no change in the Company’s
constitutional documents during the period.
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Independent auditor’s report

BB MRES

Deloitte.
=)

TO THE MEMBERS OF IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
IDT International Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 84 to
174, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at December 31, 2015, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the period from April 1, 2015 to
December 31, 2015, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit and to
report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong
Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free from
material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the financial position of the Group as at
December 31, 2015 and of the Group’s financial performance
and cash flows for the period from April 1, 2015 to December
31, 2015 in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

March 24, 2016
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

ReEsakAMEZEKRER

For the period from April 1, 2015 to December 31,2015 H=-ZE—HFMNA—HE=ZF—HFE+=-A=+—H

Nine-month

period ended Year ended

December 31, March 31,

2015 2015

BEZE BZE

ZE-HF —Z-AF

+=-A=+-R =B=+-—-A8

LEAfER IHFE

NOTES HK$’'M HK$’'M

Hiet BEHER BEHET

Turnover =& %88 6 536.6 1,100.4

Cost of goods sold 4 & A (428.8) 871.7)

Gross profit £ 107.8 228.7

Other income E 7t A 15.7 14.9

Other gains and losses H b Fr13 K% &8 7 (6.0) 46.5

Research and development costs #%% K 535 & F (21.8) (34.7)

Distribution and selling expenses 7 5 & #4 & 552 (91.2) (185.2)

General administrative expenses —f&1THEF X (90.5) (154.9)

Interest on bank and other borrowings $R{TEE R E {5 E 2 7 8 (0.1) (2.5)

Loss before taxation Fx#i A E5 18 8 (86.1) (57.2)

Taxation {18 11 (0.1) 9.8)
Loss for the period/year attributable to owners of the Company

AARRAE AL AEHE FEEBE (86.2) (67.0)
Other comprehensive income (expense): H b2 E Uz (Fx) :
ltems that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:

BEA e EN DB BB -
Exchange differences arising on translation of foreign operations
BERINERELRELESE 0.8 (19.5)
Total comprehensive expenses for the period/year ZKEIfE /& & HF X 4458 (85.4) (86.5)

Loss per share B E 12
- Basic and diluted — EAR K& #5E

12 (3.32) HK cents
(3.32)/BME1L

(2.59) HK cents

(2.59)78 #Al
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e PR R

At December 31,2015 R=-Z—FHE+=A=+—8H

As at As at
December 31, March 31,
2015 2015

RZZE—HF RKRZIZE-—1EF
+=—A=+—H =A=+—H

NOTES HK$’M HK$'M
Brat BEEET BEEHET

Non-current assets IERENE E

Property, plant and equipment ¥1% - #28 & :% 13 29.0 34.3
Intangible assets %2 & & 14 5.3 7.3
Goodwill & 15 33.8 33.8
Available-for-sale investments A] f i &8 & 16 0.9 0.9
Deferred tax assets & fEF:1HE & 17 2.0 2.0
71.0 78.3
Current assets RENEE

Inventories F& 18 140.4 166.7
Trade and other receivables J& Uk BR Fx & H fih & U 008 19 138.6 174.0
Forward contract assets &= 148 4 & E 20 0.1 1.0
Short-term bank deposits %2 HA$R 17 & #3173 21 - 50.7
Bank balances and cash 174568 IR & 21 169.4 185.0
448.5 577.4

Current liabilities 8 & &
Trade and other payables and accruals &1 B 7k & E A

R FIENERER 22 187.2 225.4
Taxation payable F&##: 18 0.8 1.4
Bank loans $R1TE & 23 - 18.9

188.0 245.7
Net current assets R &) & E/FE 260.5 331.7
Net assets & & F#E 331.5 410.0
Capital and reserves B2 f# &
Share capital %7 24 260.0 258.9
Reserves f#i# 71.4 151.0
Equity attributable to owners of the Company ZA &l A A E (5 331.4 409.9
Non-controlling interests FE#EA% #E %5 0.1 0.1
Total equity #4258 331.5 410.0
The consolidated financial statements on pages 84 to 174 FRAIB B FITAB IR BHRERENR T —
were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of NE=ZA=+mMA %é%ﬁ%ﬁt/ﬁ&f% 1T
Directors on March 24, 2016 and are signed on its behalf by: W TFIATRREE
MR. FOO PIAU PHANG MR. QI MIAO TAERE S & Rt
CHAIRMAN DIRECTOR E3 2=
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the period from April 1, 2015 to December 31,2015 H=-ZE—HFMNA—HE=ZF—HFE+=-A=+—H

Attributable to owners of the Company

KAREE AR
Properties Share Non-
Share Share Other  revaluation options  Translation Revenue controlling
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve Total interests Total
nE &%

Rx RGEE  HORE  EREE  BREESE  BERE  LEE6 BR  FERER  BRERE
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M
AREEr BWEER ANEEn BWEER ANEEn  B¥EER ANEEn  B¥EER  ANEEn  B%EER

At April 1, 2014
RZZ-MEMA—H 250.5 161.7 325 6.2 7.0 (81.3) 1131 479.7 0.1 479.8

Exchange differences arising

from translation of foreign

operations

BEENEBEEL

EXEH = = = = = (19.5) = (19.9) = (19.9)
Loss for the year

~EEFE - - - - - - (67.0) (67.0) = (67.0)

Total comprehensive
expenses for the year
AEERAERLEE - - - - - (19.5) (67.0) (86.5) - (86.5)

Shares issued upon exercise

of share options

TR ERERETZIRG 8.4 12.3 - - (5.8 - - 14.9 - 14.9
Release of reserve upon

disposal of properties

RN ENEMENL R = - - (7.5) - - 75 = = -
Reversal of deferred tax

previously recognised in

relation to disposal of

properties

e EIEE

BRNBEHRE - - - 1.3 - - - 1.3 - 13
Recognition of equity-settled

share based payments

RS 3 (3

R REEZNH = = - - 0.5 - - 05 - 0.5
Lapse of share options

BRERH - - - - (0.5) - 0.5 - - =

At March 31, 2015
RZZ-h%=A=1-H 258.9 164.0 325 - 1.2 (100.8) 54.1 409.9 0.1 410.0
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Attributable to owners of the Company

KRR ARG

Properties Share Non-
Share Share Other  revaluation options  Translation Revenue controlling
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve Total interests Total
BE  REE  HfttRE 0 ERE  BRERE  BERE  LEHE aE FERER  ERLE

HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HKS'M HKS'M HK$'M HKS'M
AYEEnT  EREEn E¥EEn  EREEn  BREEn  BRWEEn  EREER  BREER  BREER  RREER

Exchange differences arising
from translation of foreign

operations

BERNERERL

EFZH - - - - - 08 - 0.8 - 0.8
Loss for the period

TEBEEE - - - - - - (86.2) (86.2) - (86.2)

Total comprehensive income
(expenses) for the period
TER2ENE (B 88 - - - - - 0.8 (86.2) (85.4) - (85.4)

Shares issued upon exercise

of share options

TREREMRE TR 1.1 1.0 - - (0.4) - - 1.7 - 1.7
Release of translation

reserve upon deregistration

of a subsidiary

R #NE A A MmN

ERaERE - - - - - 5.2 - 5.2 - 5.2

Lapse of share options

BRERM - - - - (0.8 - 0.8 - - -

At December 31, 2015
RZZ-1F
+ZA=1-H 260.0 165.0 325 - - (94.8) (31.3) 331.4 0.1 331.5
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

MERERER

For the period from April 1, 2015 to December 31,2015 H=-ZE—HFMNA—HE=ZF—HFE+=-A=+—H

Nine-month
period ended Year ended
December 31, March 31,
2015 2015
BZ BZE
“B-IF —Z-EF
+=A=+-A =A=t-H
IEN{EA tEE
HK$'M HK$'M
BEEET BEEET
Cash flows from operating activities &2/ EEELZRERE
Loss before taxation Kt Al 2 518 (86.1) (57.2)
Adjustments for: 3% :
Interest income | B UA (0.9) (1.0)
Interest expenses I 857 0.1 2.5
Share-based payment expenses JAR ) BEE 2 HHHHE L - 05
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment #1% « 22 & R E 2 T E 13.5 21.7
Amortisation of intangible assets & & 2 # i 3.1 10.5
Loss (gain) on disposal of property, plant and equipment
HEME  BRRBEZESR (i) 0.5 (53.3)
Change in fair value of forward contracts ®EIA KA FEEz EBE - (1.9
Impairment losses recognised (reversed) on trade receivables
[ENRER 2 RE CRifEREREE) 0.5 (0.9)
(Reversal of) write-down of inventories 7% 2 CH{E B &R El) MU (5.1) 41.5
Loss on deregistration of a subsidiary &5k B A7) 2 E1E 5.4 =
Exchange loss [E {18 2.9 1.3
Operating cash flows before movements in working capital
EEECEDR v LEHSRE (66.1) (35.7)
Decrease in inventories F &R 30.6 55.1
Decrease in trade and other receivables &R 71 & £ b fE M sk T8 D 33.5 22.0
Decrease in trade and other payables and accruals
JE TR SR R EL At FE T OB R TR 1R B R R (38.3) (18.8)
Decrease in forward contracts &4 48 0.9 0.2
Cash (used in) generated from operations & %&/E&) (FTA) FT53R & (39.4) 22.8
Tax refunded B RERB - 3.4
Tax paid & #%18 (0.7) (2.8)
Net cash (used in) from operating activities &% 58 (FTA) FT3HE 558 (40.1) 23.4
Investing activities & & E &)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment {1 &¥5 - #22 K& TS 208 0.2 60.4
Interest received 247l 8 0.9 1.0
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BB E ¥ - #2E KR (8.9) (15.0)
Payment for patents and trademarks =5 % EiZ 2 {4 7% (1.1) (1.1)
Short-term bank deposits withdrawn 1ZEUE EA3R 17 4177 2% 50.7 78.3
Short-term bank deposits placed #i& R HIR1TE Hi17 3K - (129.0)
Net cash from (used in) investing activities R & B 1S (FTR) B4 %58 41.8 (5.4)
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Nine-month
period ended Year ended
December 31, March 31,
2015 2015
BZ Bz
—B-1f —E-%f
+=A=+-H =A=+-H
ER@A EEE
HK$'M HK$'M
BEEER BEEET
Financing activities B & /&%

Repayment of bank loans &8 #F1TE R (18.9) (183.0)
Interest paid & 7% & (0.1) (2.9)
Bank loans raised ¥{&E1TER - 105.4
Proceeds from issue of shares Z1TR{A A5 208 1.7 14.9
Repayment of obligations under finance leases 18 # #HA)E 1 - (0.1)
Net cash used in financing activities B & & 3P AE 4 % % (17.3) (65.9)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents 38 & R ERIREIE B 2R 55 (15.6) (47.3)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the period/year 8,/ Mz B & Rk ERELEE 185.0 236.7
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes EXE &) 7 52 - (4.4)

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the period/year, representing cash and
bank balances 8/ FR 2R & KERRELEER 169.4 185.0
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

e P BmRME

For the period from April 1, 2015 to December 31,2015 H=-ZE—HFMNA—HE=ZF—HFE+=-A=+—H

GENERAL

The Company is incorporated in Bermuda as an
exempted company with limited liability. The shares of
the Company are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The addresses of
the registered office and principal place of business of
the Company are disclosed in the Corporate Information
section to the annual report.

The immediate holding company of the Company is
Hongtu High Technology Int’l Inc. (“Hongtu (Seychelles)”)
which holds 50.42% of the entire issued shares of the
Company. The ultimate shareholder of the Company is
Sanpower Group Co., Ltd., which is the single largest
shareholder of Jiangsu Hongtu High Technology Co.,
Ltd. (“Jiangsu Hongtu”) and holds approximately 21.60%
of issued share capital of Jiangsu Hongtu. Hongtu
Seychelles is the indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of Jiangsu Hongtu, whose shares are listed on the
Shanghai Stock Exchange (Stock code: 600122).

The Company acts as an investment holding company
while its subsidiaries are engaged in the design,
development, manufacture, sales and marketing of
various consumer electronic products.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in

Hong Kong dollars which is the same as the functional
currency of the Company.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

During the current financial period, the reporting period
end date of the Group was changed from March 31 to
December 31 because the directors of the Company
determined to bring the annual reporting period end
date of the Group in line with that of the ultimate
holding company. Accordingly, the consolidated financial
statements for the current period cover the nine month
period ended December 31, 2015. The corresponding
comparative amounts shown for the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity,
consolidated statement of cash flows and related notes
cover a twelve month period from April 1, 2014 to March
31, 2015 and therefore may not be comparable with
amounts shown for the current period.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

The Group has applied the following amendments to
HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) for the first time in the
current period:

Amendments to HKAS 19 Defined benefit plans:
Employee contributions

Amendments to HKFRSs  Annual improvements to
HKFRSs 2010-2012 cycle

Amendments to HKFRSs  Annual improvements to
HKFRSs 2011-2013 cycle

The application of the above amendments to HKFRSs
in the current period has had no material impact on
the Group’s financial performance and position for the
current and prior period/years and/or the disclosures set
out in these consolidated financial statements.
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3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED . ERHEREEST2E BT’
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING WEZER (&)
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

The Group has not early applied the following new and
revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

effective:

HKFRS 9
HKFRS 15

Amendments to HKFRS 11

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 38

Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 41

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRS 10,

HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28

Financial instruments’

Revenue from contracts with
customers'

Accounting for acquisitions of
interests in joint operations?

Disclosure initiative?

Clarification of acceptable methods
of depreciation and amortisation?

Annual improvements to
HKFRSs 2012-2014 cycle?

Agriculture: Bearer plants?

Sale or contribution of assets
between an investor and
its associate or joint venture®
Investment entities:
Applying the consolidation
exception?

U Effective for annual periods beginning on or after January

1, 2018.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after January

1, 2016.

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to

be determined.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments”

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduces new requirements
for the classification and measurement of financial
assets. HKFRS 9 was subsequently amended in
2010 to include the requirements for the classification
and measurement of financial liabilities and for
derecognition, further amended in 2013 to include the
new requirements for hedging accounting. Another
revised version of HKFRS 9 was issued in 2014 mainly
to include a) impairment requirements for financial
assets and b) limited amendments to the classification
and measurement requirements by introducing a “fair
value through other comprehensive income” (“FVTOCI”)
measurement category for certain simple debt
instruments.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described below:

e All recognised financial assets that are within
the scope of HKAS 39 “Financial instruments:
Recognition and measurement” are subsequently
measured at amortised cost or fair value.
Specifically, debt investments that are held within
a business model whose objective is to collect the
contractual cash flows, and that have contractual
cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal outstanding are
generally measured at amortised cost at the end of
subsequent accounting periods. Debt instruments
that are held within a business model whose
objective is achieved both by collecting contractual
cash flows and selling financial assets, and that
have contractual terms of the financial asset give
rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding, are measured at FVTOCI. All
other debt investments and equity investments
are measured at their fair value at the end of
subsequent accounting periods. In addition, under
HKFRS 9, entities may make an irrevocable election
to present subsequent changes in the fair value of
an equity investment (that is not held for trading)
in other comprehensive income, with only dividend
income generally recognised in profit or loss.
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3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments” (continued)

e With regard to the measurement of financial
liabilities designated as at fair value through profit
or loss, HKFRS 9 requires that the amount of
change in the fair value of the financial liability that
is attributable to changes in the credit risk of that
liability is presented in other comprehensive income,
unless the recognition of the effects of changes
in the liability’s credit risk in other comprehensive
income would create or enlarge an accounting
mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in fair value
of financial liabilities attributable to changes in the
financial liabilities’ credit risk are not subsequently
reclassified to profit or loss. Under HKAS 39, the
entire amount of the change in the fair value of the
financial liability designated as fair value through
profit or loss was presented in profit or loss.

e In relation to the impairment of financial assets,
HKFRS 9 requires an expected credit loss model,
as opposed to an incurred credit loss model under
HKAS 39. The expected credit loss model requires
an entity to account for expected credit losses and
changes in those expected credit losses at each
reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since
initial recognition. In other words, it is no longer
necessary for a credit event to have occurred before
credit losses are recognised.

e The new general hedge accounting requirements
retain the three types of hedge accounting.
However, greater flexibility has been introduced
to the types of transactions eligible for hedge
accounting, specifically broadening the types of
instruments that qualify for hedging instruments
and the types of risk components of non-financial
items that are eligible for hedge accounting. In
addition, the effectiveness test has been overhauled
and replaced with the principle of an “economic
relationship”. Retrospective assessment of hedge
effectiveness is also no longer required. Enhanced
disclosure requirements about an entity’s risk
management activities have also been introduced.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from contracts with
customers”

HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single
comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting
for revenue arising from contracts with customers.
HKFRS 15 will supersede the current revenue recognition
guidance including HKAS 18 “Revenue”, HKAS 11
“Construction contracts” and the related interpretations
when it becomes effective.

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should
recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised
goods or services to customers in an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the entity expects
to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.
Specifically, the standard introduces a 5-step approach
to revenue recognition:

e Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

° Step 2:  Identify the performance obligations in the
contract

e Step 38: Determine the transaction price

e Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the
performance obligations in the contract

e Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity
satisfies a performance obligation

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when
(or as) a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when
“control” of the goods or services underlying the
particular performance obligation is transferred to the
customer. Far more prescriptive guidance has been
added in HKFRS 15 to deal with specific scenarios.
Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by
HKFRS 15.
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3.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

The directors of the Company are aware of the above
new and revised HKFRSs and has considered the impact
of the application. Except for the possibility that the
applicable of HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 15 in the future may
have a potential impact on the amounts reported and
disclosures made in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements. The directors of the Company anticipate
that the application of other new and revised HKFRSs
will have no material impact on the consolidated financial
statements.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the HKICPA. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (“CO”).

The provisions of the new Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap 622) regarding preparation of accounts
and directors’ reports and audits became effective
for the Company for the financial period from April 1,
2015 to December 31, 2015. Further, the disclosure
requirements set out in the Listing Rules regarding
annual accounts have been amended with reference to
the new CO and to streamline with HKFRSs. Accordingly
the presentation and disclosure of information in the
consolidated financial statements for the financial
period from April 1, 2015 to December 31, 2015 have
been changed to comply with these new requirements.
Comparative information in respect of the financial year
ended March 31, 2015 are presented or disclosed in
the consolidated financial statements based on the
new requirements. Information previously required to be
disclosed under the predecessor CO or Listing Rules but
not under the new CO or amended Listing Rules are not
disclosed in these consolidated financial statements.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain
financial instruments that are measured at fair values, as
explained in the accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date, regardless of whether that price is
directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a
liability, the Group takes into account the characteristics
of the asset or liability if market participants would
take those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair
value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in
these consolidated financial statements is determined
on such a basis, except for share-based payment
transactions that are within the scope of HKFRS 2,
leasing transactions that are within the scope of HKAS
17, and measurements that have some similarities to
fair value but are not fair value, such as net realisable
value in HKAS 2 “Inventories” or value in use in HKAS 36
“Impairment of assets”.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3
based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which
are described as follows:

° Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities that
the entity can access at the measurement date;

° Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the

asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

e Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset
or liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control
is achieved when the Company:

e has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

e has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of
control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income
and expenses of subsidiaries acquired or disposed
of during the period are included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income from the date the Group gains control until the
date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company
and to the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive
income of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests even if this
results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies into line with those used by other members of
the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and
expenses are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is
carried at cost less any accumulated impairment losses,
if any, and is presented separately in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to each of the cash-generating units (or groups
of cash-generating units) that is expected to benefit from
the synergies of the combination.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment annually or more
frequently whenever there is indication that the unit
may be impaired. If the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit is less than its carrying amount, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to
the other assets of the unit on a pro-rata basis based
on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any
impairment loss for goodwill is recognised directly in
profit or loss. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill
is not reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the
attributable amount of goodwill is included in the
determination of the amount of profit or loss on disposal.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable
for goods sold in the normal course of business, net of
discounts and sales related taxes.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Revenues from the sale of goods and moulds are
recognised when the goods and moulds are delivered
and titles have passed, at which time all the following
conditions are satisfied:

e the Group has transferred to the buyer the
significant risks and rewards of ownership of the
goods;

e the Group retains neither continuing managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership nor effective control over the goods sold;

e the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

e it is probable that the economic benefits associated
with the transaction will flow to the Group; and

e the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of
the transaction can be measured reliably.

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a
time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and
at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate
that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the financial asset to that
asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including leasehold land
and buildings held for use in the production of goods or
for the administrative purposes (other than construction
in progress) are stated in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost or revalued amount prior
to September 30, 1995 less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)
Advantage has been taken of the transitional relief
provided by paragraph 80A of HKAS 16 “Property, plant
and equipment” from the requirement to make regular
revaluations of the Group’s land and buildings which had
been carried at revalued amounts prior to September 30,
1995, and accordingly no further revaluation of land and
buildings is carried out. Prior to September 30, 1995, the
revaluation increase arising on the revaluation of these
assets was credited to the properties revaluation reserve.
Any future decreases in value of these assets will be
dealt with as an expense to the extent that they exceed
the balance, if any, on the properties revaluation reserve
relating to a previous revaluation of the same asset. On
the subsequent sale or retirement of a revalued asset,
the corresponding revaluation surplus is transferred to
revenue reserve.

Depreciation is recognised to write off the cost or
revalued amount prior to September 30, 1995 of items
of property, plant and equipment less their residual
values over their estimated useful lives using the straight
line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values
and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of
each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on disposal or retirement of an
item of property, plant and equipment is determined
as the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit
or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to
the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets
are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.
Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs
eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they are incurred.

Product development costs
Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from
development activities (or from the development phase
of an internal project) is recognised if, and only if, all of
the following have been demonstrated:

—  the technical feasibility of completing the intangible
asset so that it will be available for use or sale;

— the intention to complete the intangible asset and
use or sell it;

— the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

- how the intangible asset will generate probable
future economic benefits;

— the availability of adequate technical, financial and
other resources to complete the development and
to use or sell the intangible asset; and

— the ability to measure reliably the expenditure

attributable to the intangible asset during its
development.
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For the period from April 1, 2015 to December 31,2015 H=-ZE—HFMNA—HE=ZF—HFE+=-A=+—H

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Product development costs (continued)

The amount initially recognised for an internally-generated
intangible asset is the sum of the expenditure incurred
from the date when the intangible asset first meets
the recognition criteria listed above. Where no
internally-generated intangible asset can be recognised,
product development cost is recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which it is incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, an internally-generated
intangible asset is measured at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses (if any).

Patents and trademarks

Patents and trademarks are stated at cost less
subsequent accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment loss. Amortisation is calculated
on a straight line basis over the estimated useful
economic life of the relevant patents and trademarks.

Impairment loss on tangible and intangible
assets (other than goodwill)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible
assets with finite useful lives to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered
an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order
to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any.
When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which
the asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent
basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets
are also allocated to individual cash-generating units,
or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group
of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and
consistent allocation basis can be identified.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Impairment loss on tangible and intangible
assets (other than goodwill) (continued)
Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset for which the
estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a
cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or
a cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit)
is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset (or a cash-generated unit) in prior years. A
reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately
in profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is calculated using the weighted
average method. Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated
costs of completion and costs necessary to make the
sale.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit
plans, Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme and
state-managed retirement benefits scheme are
recognised as expenses when employees have rendered
service entitling them to the contributions.
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For the period from April 1, 2015 to December 31,2015 H=-ZE—HFMNA—HE=ZF—HFE+=-A=+—H

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit
for the period. Taxable profit differs from “profit before
taxation” as reported in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income because
of income or expense that are taxable or deductible
in other years and items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group’s current tax is calculated using
tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation
of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all
deductible temporary differences to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which those deductible temporary differences can be
utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if
the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the
initial recognition (other than in a business combination)
of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary difference associated with investments in
subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary difference and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse
in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising
from deductible temporary differences associated with
such investments are only recognised to the extent that
it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits
against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary
differences and they are expected to reverse in the
foreseeable future.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Taxation (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of the reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to
be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which
the liability is settled or the asset is realised, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
in which case, the current and deferred tax are also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity respectively.

Leases

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense
on a straight line basis over the lease term. Contingent
rentals arising under operating leases are recognised as
an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

107

FESBEX @

BIE (@)
EERBEEZREERSEALERR
5 WA KA B A R AERB R E
MRZBEEEZ A H 2 BERIELHA
B o

BELEHRBEENBBERBHNEERESR
BESBYRERIHEFE  mMAMBK
R BERESNBENHEEACERRE
BLEEmIBRE (RBUA)

ELEHRARBEREEZTERBRAEETE
HRmEHREE RO EREERE
BEREEMEEZHHER

AEARE RRIER AR N R - HE R
REMEPANSREENEERR A
BREZBERT  EHRELEREABRED
AR EMm 2 ER S B RN ER PR

RN
SEHOHESNERIRBOFRERS
i o BEHOMELZIAHENEE
THEER S



IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED EEEIEA B AF]
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For the period from April 1, 2015 to December 31,2015 H=-ZE—HFMNA—HE=ZF—HFE+=-A=+—H

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial position when
a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets
and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets comprise of financial assets
at FVTPL, loans and receivables and available-for-sale
financial assets. The classification depends on the nature
and purpose of the financial assets and is determined at
the time of initial recognition. All regular way purchases
or sales of financial assets are recognised and
derecognised on a trade date basis.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees paid or received
that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial asset, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount
on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest

basis for debt instruments other than those financial
assets classified as at FVTPL.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets at FVTPL represents financial assets
held for trading.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

° it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near future; or

° it is a part of a portfolio of identified financial
instruments that the Group manages together
and has a recent actual pattern of short-term
profit-taking; or

° it is a derivative that is not designated and effective
as a hedging instrument.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value,
with changes in fair value arising from remeasurement
recognised directly in profit or loss. The net gain or loss
recognised in profit or loss excludes any dividend or
interest earned on the financial assets and is included in
the ‘other gain and losses’ line item.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. Subsequent to initial
recognition, loans and receivables (including short-term
bank deposits, bank balances and cash and trade and
other receivables) are carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less any identified impairment
losses.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that
are either designated or not classified as financial assets
at FVTPL, loans and receivables or held-to-maturity
investments.

Available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a
quoted market price in an active market and whose fair
value cannot be reliably measured are measured at cost
less any identified impairment losses at the end of the
reporting period.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are
assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of the
reporting period. Financial assets are considered to be
impaired where there is objective evidence that, as a
result of one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future
cash flows of the financial assets have been affected.

Objective evidence of impairment could include:

e significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

e breach of contract, such as default or delinquency
in interest or principal payments; or

o it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial organisation.

For trade receivables, assets that are assessed not to
be impaired individually are, in addition, assessed for
impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence of
impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include
the Group’s past experience of collecting payments,
an increase in the number of delayed payments in the
portfolio past the average credit period, observable
changes in national or local economic conditions that
correlate with default on receivables.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the
amount of the impairment loss recognised is the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate.

The carrying amount of a financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with
the exception of trade receivables, where the carrying
amount is reduced through the use of an allowance
account. Changes in the carrying amount of the
allowance account are recognised in profit or loss. When
trade receivables are considered uncollectible, they are
written off against the allowance account. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited
against the allowance account.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in
a subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment losses was
recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss
is reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the
carrying amount of the asset at the date the impairment
is reversed does not exceed what the amortised
cost would have been had the impairment not been
recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified either as financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (continued)
Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of the Group after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued
by the Company are recognised at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments (including all fees paid or received
that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest
basis.

Financial liabilities excluding derivatives

Financial liabilities including trade and other payables
and bank loans are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest method.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date
a derivate contract is entered into and are subsequently
remeasured to their fair value at the end of the reporting
period. The resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit
or loss immediately.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when
the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of
the asset to another entity. If the Group neither transfers
nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership and continues to control the transferred
asset, the Group continues to recognise the asset to
the extent of its continuing involvement and recognises
an associated liability. If the Group retains substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred
financial asset, the Group continues to recognise the
financial asset and also recognises a collateralised
borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable and
the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and
only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or expire. The difference between the carrying
amount of the financial liability derecognised and the
consideration paid or payable is recognised in profit or
loss.
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For the period from April 1, 2015 to December 31,2015 H=-ZE—HFMNA—HE=ZF—HFE+=-A=+—H

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies)
are recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing
on the dates of the transactions. At the end of the
reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that
date. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which they arise except
for:

e exchange differences on foreign currency
borrowings relating to assets under construction
for future productive use, which are included in the
cost of those assets when they are regarded as
an adjustment to interest costs on those foreign
currency borrowings;

e exchange differences on transactions entered into in
order to hedge certain foreign currency risks; and

e exchange differences on monetary items receivable
from or payable to a foreign operation for which
settlement is neither planned nor likely to occur
(therefore forming part of the net investment in the
foreign operation), which are recognised initially
in other comprehensive income and reclassified
from equity to profit or loss on repayment of the
monetary items.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s
foreign operations are translated into the presentation
currency of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) using
exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting
period. Income and expenses items are translated at
the average exchange rates for the period. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under
the heading of translation reserve.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable
assets and liabilities acquired arising on an acquisition
of a foreign operation are treated as assets and liabilities
of that foreign operation and translated at the rate of
exchange prevailing at the end of the reporting period.
Exchange differences arising are recognised in equity
under the heading of translation reserve.

Share-based payments transactions

Share options granted to employees of the Group

The fair value of services received determined by
reference to the fair value of share options granted at the
grant date is expensed on a straight line basis over the
vesting period, with a corresponding increase in equity
(share options reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected to
ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of the original
estimates during the vesting period, if any, is recognised
in profit or loss such that the cumulative expense reflects
the revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to
the share options reserve.

When the share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in the share options reserve
will be transferred to share premium. When the share
options are forfeited after the vesting date or are still
not exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in the share options reserve will be
transferred to revenue reserve.
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For the period from April 1, 2015 to December 31,2015 H=-ZE—HFMNA—HE=ZF—HFE+=-A=+—H

5.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

Estimated impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires
an estimation of the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating units to which goodwill has been
allocated. The recoverable amount calculation requires
the Group to estimate the future cash flows expected
to arise from the cash-generating units and a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value.
Where there is a downward revision of estimated
cash flow or when the actual cash flows are less than
expected, there will be a change of recoverable amount,
a material impairment loss may arise. At December 31,
2015, the carrying amount of goodwill is HK$33.8 million
(3.31.2015: HK$33.8 million). Details of the recoverable
amount calculation are disclosed in note 15.

Income taxes

At December 31, 2015, a deferred tax asset of
HK$2.5 million (3.31.2015: HK$2.5 million) in relation
to unused tax losses has been recognised in the
Group’s consolidated statement of financial position. No
deferred tax asset has been recognised on tax losses
of HK$993.4 million (3.31.2015: HK$870.9 million)
due to the unpredictability of future profit streams. The
realisability of the deferred tax asset mainly depends
on whether sufficient future profits or taxable temporary
differences will be available in the future. In cases
where the actual future profits generated are less than
expected, a material reversal of deferred tax assets may
arise, which would be recognised in profit or loss for the
period in which such a reversal takes place. In cases
where the actual future profits generated are more than
expected, an addition of deferred tax assets may arise,
which would be recognised in profit or loss for the period
in which such an addition takes place.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

Turnover represents the amounts received and receivable
for goods sold by the Group to outside customers, net
of discounts and sales related taxes. Turnover represents
mainly Oregon Scientific branded sales (“Branded Sales”)
and Original Equipment Manufacturer and Original
Design Manufacturer sales (“OEM/ODM Sales”).

The reportable and operating segments were namely
Sports, fitness and healthcare, Smart learning products,
Time and weather, Telecommunication, as well as,
Wellness and beauty. In addition, energy and other
electronic products which are individually insignificant
were aggregated and reported under Others.

Sports, fitness
and healthcare

design, development,
manufacture, and sales and
marketing of sports, fitness
and healthcare electronic

products
Smart learning - design, development,
products manufacture, and sales and
marketing of smart learning
products

Time and weather design, development,
manufacture, and sales and
marketing of time and weather

electronic products

Telecommunication design, development,
manufacture, and
sales and marketing of

telecommunication products

Wellness and = design, development,
beauty manufacture, and sales and
marketing of wellness and
beauty products

Others = design, development,
manufacture, and sales and
marketing of energy and other
electronic products
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
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For the period from April 1, 2015 to December 31,2015 H-Z—HFMNB—HEZE=-ZT—HE+=-B=+—H
6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. SIWEE @)
The Group disaggregated its turnover based on branded REEIRDIEEE R RBEHRLE HE
sales and OEM/ODM sales and reported to the Chief Bl SUE IR D %%%ﬁji&i%zgﬁgﬁ
operating decision maker (“CODM”). No separate results FA o MEHERERERE RE
of branded sales and OEM/ODM sales were reported to VW EEREERE T T ELE ,;Qﬁ}\
the CODM.
Segment revenue and results DEHBMARELE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and NEFHIREBERARES L2 WAL XLE
results by operating and reportable segments: DT ¢
Sports, Smart Reportable
fitness and learning Time Wellness ~ segments
healthcare products and and total
5 B weather  Telecom- beauty B
’ER L B  munication R i) Others Total
feg ER RE% E: RER fag At aE
HK$'M HK$'M HKS'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HKS'M

BB BER BER BB BER BER BB BER

Nine-month period ended December 31, 2015
HE-E-RE+-A=t+-RHLNER

Segment revenue 2K A
Branded sales fi5H & 14.2 35.6 122.2 - 17.9 189.9 1.8 191.7
OEM/ODM sales R ERE / Rt RisHE 247.8 - 291 51.5 - 328.4 16.5 344.9
Total segment revenue 2 SN 262.0 35.6 151.3 51.5 17.9 518.3 18.3 536.6
Segment (loss) profit 25 (&518) E7I (3.8) (8.5) (23.7) 2.0 (6.1) (40.1) (0.1) (40.2)
Loss on deregistration of a subsidiary

TENBRRZEE (5.4)
Unallocated income #4842 2 A 0.9
Unallocated expense AEHE 2 H % (41.3)
Finance costs AR &R A (0.1)
Loss before taxation B A& (86.1)
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. DITEE @)
Segment revenue and results (continued) DEUT AR XELE (')
Sports, Smart Reportable
fitness and learning Time Wellness ~ segments
healthcare products and and total
5 e weather  Telecom- beauty THE
’ER 2 BB  munication R A8 Others Total
’E Em RER E kER aE it fam
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M
B B Vit B Vi Vit B ik
BET BER BET BET HER BET BET HET
Year ended March 31, 2015
BE-Z-R5=B=t-HLEE
Segment revenue 2 KA
Branded sales mifHE 422 65.2 193.4 - 385 339.3 9.4 348.7
OEM/ODM sales R8s / Rt REHE 569.3 = 61.2 94.3 = 714.8 36.9 751.7
Total segment revenue 04 A &5 601.5 65.2 254.6 94.3 385 1,054.1 46.3 1,100.4
Segment profit (loss) 7 #ia7] (E#E) 38 (61.9) (0.3) 07 (17.8) (65.5) (2.9 (67.8)
Gain on disposal of leasehold land and building
HERERET 2 K 6818
Unallocated income R E 2 A 1.0
Unallocated expense KR 2 X (41.2)
Finance costs B4R A (2.9)
Loss before taxation R A1E 8 (67.2)

Segment revenue reported above represents revenue
generated from external customers. There were no
inter-segment sales in the period/year.

The accounting policies of the operating segments are
the same as the Group’s accounting policies described
in note 4. Segment profit (loss) represents the profit (loss)
earned by each segment without allocation of interest
income, loss on deregistration of a subsidiary, gain on
disposal of leasehold land and building, unallocated
expense such as central administrative cost and finance
costs. This is the measure reported to the Group’s
CODM, for the purposes of resource allocation and
performance assessment.

No segment assets and segment liabilities are presented
as such amounts are not reviewed by the Group’s CODM
for the purpose of resource allocation and performance
assessment or otherwise regularly provided to the
Group’s CODM.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
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For the period from April 1, 2015 to December 31,2015 H=-ZE—HFMNA—HE=ZF—HFE+=-A=+—H

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

6. PEER @

Other segment information HihoEZEER
Sports,
fitness Smart Time Wellness  Reportable
and learning and Telecom- and segment Unallocated
healthcare products weather  munication beauty total Others items Total
25 2R BT R R RER CEE K
kit HZEm xR EH 5 HHeE At AE2ER b
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M
BEEEL BY¥EEn B¥EER E¥EEn EMEEn AY¥EER B%EsSn  B¥EEn  E¥EER
Nine-month period ended
December 31, 2015
BZ-E2-1F
TZA=t-RLAEA
Amounts included in the measure
of segment profit or oss:
7R B A TAIE -
Depreciation and amortisation
REREH
- property, plant and equipment
-NE  BELRE 44 28 44 0.8 1.1 13.2 0.3 - 135
- intangible assets
- BVAE 0.1 1.0 13 - 0.1 2.5 0.6 - 3.1
(Reversal of) write-down of inventories
(BE) #AEE (5.1) (1.8) 55 (0.1) 2.2 @.7) (1.4) - (5.1)
Loss on disposal of property, plant
and equipment
LEWE  #ERREEE 0.2 0.1 0.2 - - 0.5 - - 05
Impairment losses on trade receivable
W2 RERE - - 0.5 - - 0.5 - - 0.5
Year ended March 31, 2015
Bz-Z2-1F
ZASt-HLEEE
Amounts included in the measure of
segment profit or loss:
DR E A REEE AT :
Depreciation and amortisation
REREH
- property, plant and equipment
-NE  BELRE 7.0 46 6.5 1.2 1.9 212 0.5 - 217
- intangible assets
-EVAE 0.6 3.5 5.0 = 0.4 9.5 1.0 = 10.5
Write-down of inventories
MREE 1.4 7.6 8.9 1.2 9.3 38.4 3.1 = 415
Gain on disposal of property, plant
and equipment
HEME  BERRE NG - - - - - - - (53.9) (53.9)
Reversal of impairment losses on
trade receivable
RERH R ERRAD (1.2) 0.2 0.1 - - (09 - - (0.9)
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Geographical information

The Group’s operations are located in Asia Pacific,
Europe and Americas (representing the United States
of America and Latin America). The Group carries out
its manufacturing and trading operations in Hong Kong
and other parts of the PRC. The Group also operates
marketing offices in Europe, the United States of
America, Latin America and other Asia Pacific countries.

Information about the Group’s revenue from external
customers is presented based on the location of
customers are detailed below:

6.

DEERE @)

i EE R
AEBZEBURBAR - BUMNREN
(BERRETEM) - KREBREE RS
BoARE ([ E) Hibih R T8 R
TEHER - AEERERN =B -
TEMNREMTABRRRE TIEHENR
Ey

AEBRBINAEL 2 WEHREE P
& D - B

Revenue from
external customers

REIREF 2@
Nine-month

period ended Year ended
December 31, March 31,
2015 2015
Bz BZE
—E-HF —E-HF
+=A=+—H =A=+—H
Fh{EA LtEE
HK$’'M HK$'M
BEEET BEEHET
Americas M 170.8 357.9
Europe BUM 247.5 454.9
Asia Pacific T8 K& 118.3 287.6
536.6 1,100.4

Non-current assets of the Group excluding deferred tax
assets and financial instruments are substantially located
in the PRC including Hong Kong.

Information about major customers

The Group has a very wide customer base, no single
customer contributed over 10% of the total revenue of
the Group for the period/year.
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For the period from April 1, 2015 to December 31,2015 H=-ZE—HFMNA—HE=ZF—HFE+=-A=+—H

7. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 7. HbprE RE#E
Nine-month
period ended Year ended
December 31, March 31,
2015 2015
BZE BZE
—E-HE —E-RE
+=ZA=+—HB =A=+—H
IEN@EA tHEE
HK$’'M HK$'M
BEEET BEEET
Impairment losses (recognised) reversed in respect of trade receivables
FEM R 2 RE (BE) #E (0.5) 0.9
Loss on deregistration of a subsidiary (Note 1) T35 M B A &2 &8 (A1) (5.4) -
Recovery of bad debt written off 2 ¥ #5328k 2 W@l 2.9 =
(Loss) gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment
LEWE - wBRRRE2 (BE) W (0.5) 53.3
Net exchange losses (Note 2) [E 3 &5 1B F(E (f1:72) (2.5) (7.7)
(6.0) 46.5
Notes: FEE -
1. Included in the loss on deregistration of a subsidiary were 1. BREEZENBARZEERT  ERANE
exchange difference released from translation reserve of BnERERBE2BETT
HK$5.2 million.
2. Included in the net exchange losses in prior year were gain 2. BREGFEZEREBEBRFEY  RIE
arising from changes in fair value of forward contracts of HNRARBELIMESE 2 WaE ABK1.3
HK$1.3 million (current period: HK$nil). BB (AEAfE - &) -
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8. LOSS BEFORE TAXATION 8. BEiIAIER
Nine-month
period ended Year ended
December 31, March 31,
2015 2015
BZE BZE
—E-HE —ZT-HF
+=ZA=+—HB =A=+—H
IEHR@EA tHEE
HK$’'M HK$'M
BEEET BEEET
Loss before taxation has been arrived at after charging: B AIEEE
IR N AIBIE -
Directors’ emolument (note 9) EE®#% (#/779) 2.2 9.9
Retirement benefits scheme contributions for other staff
HAth B TRIKIRIE T B LK 15.8 17.2
Share option benefits expenses for other staff E b 8 T 7 i& M55 - 0.5
Salaries for other staff EftE T2 T#& 170.5 262.6
Other benefits for staff other than directors BrEE =45 - B T & EAthiEF 1.5 12.4
Other staff costs Hfth 8 T XA 187.8 292.7
Total staff costs 8 T\ A 42%8 190.0 302.6
Less: Staff costs included in research and development costs
W SRR RFEER 28 IKAE (5.7) (7.1)
184.3 295.5
Amortisation of product development costs (included in research and
development costs) EmMAZEKANEH (A BHELFEER) 1.6 8.3
Amortisation of patents and trademarks = 71| [z 12 # 4 1.5 2.2
Auditors’ remuneration #z £l B & 4.2 4.1
Cost of inventories recognised as expense (including reversals of
inventories amounting to HK$5.1 million (3.31.2015: write-down of
inventories HK$41.5 million))
ERRRASCFERA (BEFEREREGRE - @EABKS18ET
(Z2—RF=A=+—H MRFEREB4158ET)) 428.8 871.7
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment #12 - #22 L RIEZITE 13.5 21.7
Operating lease rentals in respect of & &7 )7 &
- office equipment and motor vehicles — ##/A = &% & & /RE 0.4 1.8
- rented premises — T E % 26.0 36.9
and after crediting to other income: &2t A MR ALIT :
Interest income F 24 A 0.9 1.0
Sales of moulds and scraps #5 &% & & Bk} 5.7 2.9
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For the period from April 1, 2015 to December 31,2015 H-Z—HFMNBE—RAEZE=Z—HE+=-A=+—8H

9. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 9. EEM &

EMOLUMENTS
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the 18 EffekEMNTI18E (ZE—AFE=A=1+
(8.31.2015: 7) directors and the chief executive of the —H 7B EEZSAZHMEWNT :

Company were as follows:

Basic  Retirement

salaries benefits Share-

and scheme based

allowances contributions payments
Fees BEX#e BHREFN URGAREE Total
e )59=4: HE REEN PANEN e
HK$'M HKS$’'M HKS$’'M HK$’'M HK$'M

BEEET BWEER B¥EEn BRWEEx  EWEER

For the nine-month period ended
December 31, 2015
BE-2-AF+=-A=t—AHL

@A
Executive directors: $7iTZ % -
Mr. Foo Piau Phang (Note 1)

HRELE (M7t1) - - - - -
Mr. See Chi Kwok (Note 2)

EEBEE (HF2) - 1.3 - - 1.3
Mrs. Chan Pau Shiu Yeng, Shirley (Note 3)

RéE &+ (H523) - 0.1 - - 0.1

Non-executive directors: FEH7TEE :
Mr. Xin Kexia (Note 1)

FERREE (Mit1) - - - - -
Mr. Song Rongrong (Note 1)

REBHAE (HiF1) - - - - -
Ms. Wang Yang (Note 1)

Fimat (Bat1) - - - - -
Mr. Shi Changyun (Note 4)

HRELE (Hit4) - - - - -
Mr. Qi Miao (Note 5)

WEFEE (H1525) - - - - -
Ms. Gao Huan (Note 6)

=mEXt (Hite) - - - - -
Dr. Raymond Chan (Note 7)

BRIESE T (H7t7) - - - - -
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 9. EEM<E @)
EMOLUMENTS (continued)

Basic  Retirement

salaries benefits Share-

and scheme based

allowances contributions payments
Fees EXge BAER UROREE Total
e JSQ=1:' B LN PAE e
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M

EREEL EWEER E¥EER BWEER EWEER

Independent non-executive directors:

BUFHTEF -
Mr. Yang Xiongsheng (Note 8)

ISIERs S (H1378) 0.1 - - , 0.4
Ms. Zhao Yuhong (Note 8)

HWFA L (H778) 0.1 - - - 0.1
Dr. Li Quan (Note 8)

FREE T (H7t8) 0.1 - - - 0.1
Mr. Duh Jia-Bin (Note 8)

HRELE (H728) 0.1 - - - 0.1
Mr. Lo Kai Yiu, Anthony (Note 9)

BROBSEE (B1519) 0.1 - - - 0.1
Mr. Kao Ying Lun (Note 9)

=mEBEE (B59) 0.1 - - - 0.1
Mr. Jack Schmuckli (Note 9)

Jack Schmuckli (#7729) 0.1 - - - 0.1
Dr. Kenichi Ohmae (Note 9)

KA —1EL (H529) 0.1 - - - 0.1

0.8 1.4 - - 2.2
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For the period from April 1, 2015 to December 31,2015 H=-ZE—HFMNA—HE=ZF—HFE+=-A=+—H

9. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
EMOLUMENTS (continued)

9. EEXME @

Basic Retirement
salaries benefits Share-
and scheme based
allowances contributions payments
Fees BEXFe BARER URGOAEE Total
we K2 HE S PASE we
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M
AEBET A¥EEx AB¥EEr A¥%asn AB¥EER
For the year ended March 31, 2015
BEE-_Z-HF=A=+—-HLEE
Executive directors: #i77& %
Dr. Raymond Chan (Note 7)
BREXEL (B5t7) 0.1 3.6 - - 3.7
Mrs. Chan Pau Shiu Yeng, Shirley (Note 3)
BREEE LA+ (H523) 0.1 1.6 - - 1.7
Mr. Leon Leong (Note 10)
RIS (K5E10) 0.1 2.8 - - 2.9
Independent non-executive directors:
BUHHTESE -
Mr. Lo Kai Yiu, Anthony (Note 9)
BRUBEE (B5t9) 0.4 - - - 0.4
Mr. Kao Ying Lun (Note 9)
=R E (H779) 0.4 - - = 0.4
Mr. Jack Schmuckli (Note 9)
Jack Schmucklife & (#7:£9) 0.5 = = = 0.5
Dr. Kenichi Ohmae (Note 9)
ARIH—1EL (#1i79) 0.3 - - - 0.3
1.9 8.0 - = 9.9
Note 1:  Appointed on April 1, 2015 a1 : RZZE—RAFWOA—BZEE-
Note 2:  Appointed on April 1, 2015 and resigned on July 21, W2 M-E—HAFNA—HZEAAAR
2015 AZMITEE R-ZE—HFLH
Z+—HEfT -
Note 3:  Resigned on April 15, 2015 &3 : MN-E—RFWEATHBEIE-
Note 4:  Appointed on September 15, 2015 Wid . RZZE—RFNLATHBZEE-
Note 5:  Appointed on December 7, 2015 &5 : RZZE—RAF+-AEBRZ(E-
Note 6: Appointed on April 1, 2015 and resigned on Wie : N-E—AFMNA—HEZEIN=
November 19, 2015 T—RFT—HATNLBEHE-
Note 7:  Re-designated to non-executive director on April 1, 57 0 RZZE—RFWMNA—BRAEFEHT
2015 and retired on August 26, 2015 %i&ﬁé:?*ﬁﬁj\ﬂ —+"H
;& °
Note 8:  Appointed on August 26, 2015 s : M-ZE—RAFNA-F+BZE-
Note 9:  Retired on August 26, 2015 9 : RZZT—RFNAZ+ A HERE-
Note 10: Resigned on January 9, 2015 EE10: RZZE—RF—ANBEHE -
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
EMOLUMENTS (continued)

Mr. Foo Piau Phang is also the chief executive of
the Company and his emoluments disclosed above
include those for services rendered by him as the chief
executive.

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above
were mainly for their services in connection with the
management of the affairs of the Company and the
Group.

The emoluments of the non-executive directors and
independent non-executive directors shown above were
mainly for their services as directors of the Company.

EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

The aggregate emoluments of the five highest paid
individuals included one (3.31.2015: three) executive
directors of the Company. One of them was also the
chief executive of the Company during the year ended
March 31, 2015, whose emoluments were included in
note 9 above. The emoluments of the remaining four
(8.31.2015: two) highest paid individuals are as follows:

9. EXME @

B RENRANRENITHAR - Lt
FIEENHNEE BRE L ETRAME
HZBRF °

EXFRAAEENME T ER RS AR
FRAARRAEEEBOREMS -

EXFARIERTES KRB FRTESH
Mo X R RS EEARANEZHORE

ms e

ARR R FNEEEP —F (=
—hF=A=+—"H: =8) BXARI#H
FTEE -BE-_T-—ARF=F=+—8H1It
FE - HP—RRABARNQRITHAEE -
HMeE s R EXHE9 - HHEE (=
T—RAF=ZA=1+—H WB) M
AL ZB&IT

Nine-month
period ended Year ended
December 31, March 31,
2015 2015
BZE BZE
—E—REF —E-HEF
+=—A=+—H =A=+—H
FhEA LtEE
HK$’'M HK$'M
BERET BEHET
Basic salaries and allowances & &4 K285 5.6 2.8
Bonus fE4L 0.2 0.4
5.8 3.2

Bonus is determined with reference to the individual
performance during the period.
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For the period from April 1, 2015 to December 31,2015 H-Z—HFMNB—HEZE=-ZT—HE+=-B=+—H

10. EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (continued) 10. EEENE (@)

The emoluments of the remaining four (3.31.2015: two)
highest paid individuals are within the following bands:

H#pmE (CE—RAF=A=+—"H: MW
%) E—E%’%@H}\iZ@ﬂ@M TLARIEE :

Number of employees

EE&E
Nine-month

period ended Year ended
December 31, March 31,
2015 2015
BZE BZE
—ZE—RF —E-—HEF
t=A=+-8 Z=ZA=t-H
FAEA LtEE
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 7 #1,500,001 7T % ##2,000,0007T 3 1
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 7 #1,000,001 7T % ##1,500,0007T 1 1

During the period/year, no emoluments were paid by
the Group to the five highest paid individuals (including
directors and employees) as an inducement to join or
upon joining the Group; and HK$0.4 million (3.31.2015:
HKS$nil) were paid by the Group to the five highest paid
individuals as compensation for loss of office.
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11. TAXATION 1. 518
Nine-month

period ended Year ended

December 31, March 31,

2015 2015

BZE BZE

—E-HfF —E-RF

+=—A=+—-H =BA=+-—H

IEN@EA tHEE

HK$’'M HK$'M

BEEET BEEET
The charge comprises: XX H&4F :
Hong Kong Profits Tax &#&F 158

— current period/year — AHIE FE 0.5 3.5

— overprovision in prior years — X FE B iRz (0.4) (1.0)

0.1 2.5

Deferred taxation (note 17) EERIE (f17£17) - 7.3

0.1 9.8
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For the period from April 1, 2015 to December 31,2015 H-Z—HFEMNA—-HE=-E—HAE+=-B=+—H

11. TAXATION (continued)

The charge for the period/year is reconciled to the loss

11. 838 (&)

ANEARFE RIS R AT 2 B R Y

before taxation as follows:

ARA0R

Nine-month
period ended Year ended
December 31, March 31,
2015 2015
BZE BZE
—E—RE —E-FEF
+=HA=+—H =A=+—H
LEAEA LtEE
HK$’'M HK$'M
BEEET BEHET
Loss before taxation Bkt Al & 18 (86.1) (67.2)
Tax credit at the domestic income tax rate of 16.5%
LM TS E16.5% & 2 FiTEE % (14.2) (9.4)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax purpose
NEHBFA R 2 RIBZE 1.3 6.6
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purpose
BERVIBAZHIBZE (1.4) (10.4)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised
AEERTEBR s HATE 23.8 44.9
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries operating in
other jurisdictions
REMBDEEEBELLEWMBARIMEARE IR 22 (5.2) (23.8)
Utilisation of tax losses previously not recognised
AR AIARBERER 2 RIBEER (3.2) (3.3)
Overprovision in prior years
NEFEREBRA (0.4) (1.0)
Others
H A, (0.6) 6.2
Tax charge for the period/year
EARE S FERRIEX 0.1 9.8
Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of RAHERFE - BBFESH DA
estimated assessable profits for the period/year. Taxation JERB R F1Z16.5%5TH - A el A=

arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates

prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax
(“EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT

Law, the tax rate for the PRC subsidiaries is 25%.
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12.LOSS PER SHARE 12.8REEB
The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share REARE S EERNANTES AFGERER
attributable to the owners of the Company for the RS EE TR N Y BUEETE

period/year is based on the following data:

Nine-month
period ended Year ended
December 31, March 31,
2015 2015
Bz BE
—E—REF —E-HEF
+=HA=+—H =A=+—H
Fh{EA LFE
HK$’'M HK$'M

AWEER BEEET

Loss: 518 :

Loss for the period/year attributable to owners of the Company and
loss for the purposes of basic and diluted loss per share

AARBEBAFGEERANGESRER B SRR ER (86.2) (67.0)
Number of ordinary shares: TBERMEE :

As at As at

December 31, March 31,

2015 2015

R=Z2-HF R=-FT—-5HF
+t=A=+-H =A=+-H

Number of ordinary shares for the purposes of basic and

diluted loss per share FLAGTE TR E AN R #8514 B 18 v T @A AR 2,599,993,088 2,588,973,088
The computation of diluted loss per share does not REABRMEFETERDRZHEKT
assume the exercise of the Company’s outstanding share FHERESETREERD Rt EARE
options as the inclusion of those options would result in M,/ FEZEREEEERR  TERRK
decrease in loss per share for the period/year. ZETIREREITE -
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For the period from April 1, 2015 to December 31,2015 H=-ZE—HFMNA—HE=ZF—HFE+=-A=+—H

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. 9% - MBIRRE
Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures
land and and Plant and
buildings equipment Motor machinery Construction
HELH# A vehicles MERME  in progress Total
kEF H£ERZE AE ST =S FEEIR #HEE
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M
BEEREr A%a8r AB¥eErx A%agn AB¥esEr A%EET
COST OR VALUATION
A ERGE
At April 1, 2014
RZZT—FMNA—H 21.8 323.8 4.0 314.9 0.3 664.8
Currency realignment [& 5 782 - (6.4) (0.1) (0.3) - (6.8)
Transfer 7% - 0.3 - - (0.3) -
Additions N E = 4.2 0.5 10.4 = 156.1
Disposals & 21.2) (28.7) (1.0) (26.5) = (77.4)
At March 31, 2015
R-E—RFE=A=+—H 0.6 293.2 3.4 298.5 - 595.7
Currency realignment [& & 78 % - (0.8) (0.1) (0.1) = (1.0)
Additions ARE = 0.8 - 8.1 - 8.9
Disposals & - (14.2) (1.3) (27.8) = (43.3)
At December 31, 2015
RZE-—RE+=-A=+—H 0.6 279.0 2.0 278.7 = 560.3
DEPRECIATION #7&
At April 1, 2014
RN_T—NEMA—A 13.5 307.1 3.6 292.3 - 616.5
Currency realignment [& 5 787 - 6.1) 0.1) (0.3) = (6.5)
Provided for the year
REFR 1.3 8.4 0.2 11.8 - 21.7
Eliminated on disposal
HE R H (14.5) (28.4) (1.0) (26.4) - (70.3)
At March 31, 2015
RZZE—hAF=A=+—H 0.3 281.0 2.7 277.4 - 561.4
Currency realignment [& 5 752 - (0.8) 0.1) .1) = (1.0)
Provided for the period
REAREH 1R - 4.4 0.2 8.9 - 13.5
Eliminated on disposal
HE R = (14.2) (1.3) (27.1) - (42.6)
At December 31, 2015
RZZE-—RE+-A=1—H 0.3 270.4 1.5 259.1 - 531.3
CARRYING VALUES BREI{E
At December 31, 2015
RZE-—RFE+HA=+—H 0.3 8.6 0.5 19.6 - 29.0
At March 31, 2015
R-EBE—RFE=A=+—H 0.3 12.2 0.7 21.1 - 34.3
Note: At the end of the reporting period, the cost of Wi : EREHEER  E2TERNERE
property, plant and equipment that were fully ARz W NEEABES07.2
depreciated but still in use amounted to HK$507.2 BELT(ZCE—RE=A=+—H0 : &

million (3.31.2015: HK$534.9 million). 534 9F BT o
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(continued)

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of property,
plant and equipment, less their residual values over their
estimated useful lives, using the straight line method, at
the following rates per annum:

Leasehold land and Over the shorter of the

buildings term the lease, or 25 years
Furniture, fixtures and 10% - 25%

equipment
Motor vehicles 10% — 20%
Plant and machinery 10% - 20%

The estimated useful lives and depreciation method are
reviewed at each period/year end, with the effect of any
changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective
basis.

The leasehold land and buildings are located in Hong
Kong under medium-term leases.

133

13. 1% - HBRFHE @)

W - B RREHNESE BT
PR 45 SRR LT 4 (B SHRHT 8 - DAMISHAR
£ BEZFERMT -

HE T RET TS s 254 -
LABAE & A
FRIFA - HENEE 10% - 25%

RE 10% — 20%
R R B ik 22 10% - 20%

AR FRRTETENGFHR F
RIS - BB R ERBETIRZ
EBEARR o

HELREFRETHBRORERRFE
2% -



IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED EEEIEA B AF]

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

e R R R MY

For the period from April 1, 2015 to December 31,2015 H=-ZE—HFMNA—HE=ZF—HFE+=-A=+—H

14.INTANGIBLE ASSETS 14. B EE
Product
development Patents and
costs trademarks Total
EmBR AR BERREE FEEE]
HKS$'M HK$'M HKS$'M
BEBETT BEBETT BEAET
COST B AME
At April 1, 2014 A =—Z—MFm@M A/ —H 360.9 17.4 378.3
Additions RE - 1.1 1.1
Written off Hfi $4 (336.6) - (336.6)
At March 31, 2016 R=—ZE—HRF=FA=+—H 24.3 18.5 42.8
Additions ‘RE — 1.1 1.1
At December 31, 2015 A-ZE—HRF+_A=+—H 24.3 19.6 43.9
AMORTISATION AND IMPAIRMENT #84 & Rl &
At April 1, 2014 R=Z—WFMW A —H 350.1 11.5 361.6
Amortised for the year 754 € #$4 8.3 2.2 10.5
Elimination on written off {54 2 ¥ 44 (336.6) - (336.6)
At March 31, 2015 R=—Z—HF=HA=+—H 21.8 13.7 355
Amortised for the period 7~ HA & £ 1.6 1.5 3.1
At December 31, 2015 R-—Z—AF+-_H=+—H 23.4 15.2 38.6
CARRYING VALUES BREE
At December 31, 2015 R —ZT—RF+-_A=+—8H 0.9 4.4 5.8
At March 31, 2015 R=Z—R&F=A=+—H 2.5 4.8 7.3
The above intangible assets, which have finite useful NEBmEEENTRAFHAER - THEAT
lives, are amortised on a straight line basis over the HAA B AR R 5 -

following periods:

Product development costs 2 years E AR 26
Patents and trademarks 5 - 10 years B R EE 52104
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15. GOODWILL 15. 158
HK$'M
B EEIT
At April 1, 2014, March 31, 2015 and December 31, 2015
RZZE—WFNA—H - ZE—hAF=-A=+—HRZZ—HF+=-A=+—H 33.8
The carrying amount of goodwill allocated to the units BMEZEEEE FTZEFEM 2B RN
are as follows: ™
As at As at
December 31, March 31,
2015 2015

R-ZE—H1F HKZE—1F
+=—A=+—H =A=+—8H
HK$'M HK$'M
BEHET BEEET

Time and weather consumer electronic products unit (“CGU A”)

KERRREFHEEREM ([BIFREMAD 17.5 17.5
Telecommunications consumer electronic products unit (“CGU B”)
EREFEEEMEM ([AEREMB]) 16.3 16.3
33.8 33.8
During the period ended December 31, 2015 and year BHE-ZT—hAF+-_A=+—RHIEAER
ended March 31, 2015, management of the Group RZZFE-—RAF=RA=1+—HBLFE  &*&
determines that there is no impairment of any of its BErvERERTCEBRSHEZRIRELAH
CGUs containing goodwill. EmNIBRME -
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15.

16.

GOODWILL (continued)

The recoverable amounts of the CGU A and CGU B have
been determined based on a value in use calculation.
The calculation uses cash flow projections based on
financial budgets approved by management for the next
year and for the following four years based on average
growth rate of 3% per annum. Cash flows beyond the
five-year period are extrapolated using zero growth rate.
Management estimates discount rate of 12% for both
CGU A and CGU B using a risk-free rate, the market
return and CGU specific factors. The key assumptions
are annual growth rates, estimated future selling prices
and direct costs which are estimated are based on
past practices and expectations of future changes in
the market. Management believes that any reasonably
possible change in any of these assumptions would not
cause the aggregate carrying amount of both CGUs to
exceed the aggregate recoverable amount of respective
CGUs.

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

The amount represents 2.92% (3.31.2015: 2.92%)
unlisted equity investments in a private entity that was
established in Korea. They are measured at cost less
impairment at the end of the reporting period because
the range of reasonable fair value estimates is so
significant that the directors of the Company are of the
opinion that their fair values cannot be measured reliably.
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17. DEFERRED TAXATION 17 ELERTH
The followings are the major deferred tax (liabilities) TNREH| DA RERAE R EFREHEE
assets recognised and movements thereon during the MRZETEELEHRE (BER) EBELHEE
current and prior reporting periods: BB
Accelerated Product Unrealised
tax  development Revaluation profits on
depreciation costs of Tax inventories
iR Em properties losses 7EZ Total
RIEHE RERA MEE HIEEE AEREF B
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M

ckEEr  A¥AERL  A%eBEn  A¥AER A%BEn AREER

At April 1, 2014

RZZE-—MEMA—A 0.5 2.2) (1.3) 513 5.7 8.0
(Charge) credit to profit or loss

for the year

AEFEA (Nk) st ABR (0.5) 1.7 = 2.8) (5.7) (7.9)
Credit to equity 5t AEzS - - 1.3 = = 1.3

At March 31, 2015 and
December 31, 2015
R-ZE-AF=A=1+—H

R=2-RE+-A=1-A - (05) - 25 § 2.0
The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances IS mE 2 EERBESROITWOT ¢

for financial reporting purposes:

As at As at
December 31, March 31,
2015 2015

R=-Z2-12% RZ-ZF-1F
+t=A=+—-HB =R=+-—H

HK$’'M HK$'M
BEEET BETET
Deferred tax assets iEIERIIEE &= 2.0 2.0
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For the period from April 1, 2015 to December 31,2015 H=-ZE—HFMNA—HE=ZF—HFE+=-A=+—H

17. DEFERRED TAXATION (continued) 17 EFERIIE (@)

By reference to financial budgets, management believes
that there will be sufficient future profits or taxable
temporary differences available in the future for the
realisation of the deferred tax assets.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has
unutilised tax losses of HK$1,008.5 million (3.31.2015:
HK$886.0 million) available for offset against future
profits. A deferred tax asset has been recognised
in respect of HK$15.1 million (3.31.2015: HK$15.1
million) of such losses. No deferred tax asset has been
recognised in respect of the remaining HK$993.4 million
(3.31.2015: HK$870.9 million) due to the unpredictability
of future profit streams. Included in the unrecognised
tax losses are losses of HK$78.2 million (3.31.2015:
HK$51.5 million expire in the years of 2015 to 2019) that
will expire in the years of 2016 to 2020. Other losses
may be carried forward indefinitely.

18. INVENTORIES

EEEL2ERMBRER  HEKBRH
ZARBHEMI ARG BERAE R ERA
ERETEHRIREE

RIEREER - AEEB R A AHIE
EEE¥1,008588 T (ZE—HF=
A=+—8: #%886.08 8 ) A ik
HBERET - ZBEMRENEPBEE151
BBET(CE—RHF=ZA=+—H : &%
15188 ERRBEEREEE - &
THB®EIGBIAEE L (ZE—HF=H
=+—H: BH¥8709BE L) HNAK
BA R TR AMERRASELEREE
E- AERKEBEEEHR - —X2E
T FHEEER BEAETS2EE
T (CE—RF=A=+—8 : B#¥515
BELER -_ZE—RAFZ=2_ZT—NLFHHE
FIHR) - EMSErER L -

18.7E

As at As at
December 31, March 31,
2015 2015

R=2-12% RZ-F-1F
+t=A=+—-H =A=+-H

HK$’'M HK$’'M

BEEET BEEET

Raw materials R} 59.8 71.7
Work in progress £ & 12.8 22.5
Finished goods &A% & 67.8 72.5
140.4 166.7
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19. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables (net
of allowance for doubtful debts) presented based on the
invoice date which approximate the respective revenue
recognition date at the reporting date.

19. F& W iR 70 % L At FE UK R

RBEBER BURERMGRERE
% RBEZEHEY (B HREERERA
HEZRHEE) 2REDNIT :

As at As at
December 31, March 31,
2015 2015

R-B—HF R-B-HF
t=A=+-8 Z=H=t-H

HK$'M HK$'M

BETET BETHEBTT

0 to 30 days 0Z30H 52.6 60.7
31 to 90 days 31 HZ90H 42.7 19.0
Over 90 days 90H A 4.6 7.9
Trade receivables & BR 99.9 87.6
Other receivables E fih & Ug i I8 38.7 86.4
Total trade and other receivables J& Uk Bk 2k Kz E b & U 2k T8 4258 138.6 174.0

The Group normally allows credit period of 30 to 60 days
to its trade customers. Customers with long business
relationship and strong financial position are allowed to
settle their balances beyond the normal credit terms up
to 90 days.

The Group’s management closely monitors the credit
quality of trade receivables and considers the trade
receivables that are neither past due nor impaired to
be of a good credit quality based on the good payment
history of the related debtors from historical experience.
Based on the payment pattern of the customers of the
Group, trade receivables which are past due but not
impaired are generally collectible. Included in the Group’s
trade receivable balance are debtors with aggregate
carrying amount of HK$10.6 million (8.31.2015: HK$14.2
million) which are past due at the reporting date for
which the Group has not provided for impairment loss
as the directors assessed that the balances will be
recovered based on their past settlement records. The
Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.
The average age of these receivables is 51.0 days
(8.31.2015: 29.1 days).
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For the period from April 1, 2015 to December 31,2015 H=-ZE—HFMNA—HE=ZF—HFE+=-A=+—H

19. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 19. FEURBRFX % H fit FE U FR 38 ()

(continued)

The amount of other receivables mainly represented
rental deposit of HK$12.4 million (3.31.2015: HK$14.4
million), deposit paid to suppliers of HK$3.7 million
(3.31.2015: HK$8.8 million), value-added tax recoverable
HK$3.3 million (8.31.2015: HK$22.7 million) and project
cost receivable from customers of HK$5.5 million
(3.31.2015: HK$15.8 million).

Ageing of trade receivables which are past due but not
impaired:

HEWAREBETERHS KRS EK124
BEL(ZE—AF=A=+—QH: &%
1446587T) BNHERESAEE37TE
BT (ZE—RFE=A=1+—8 :8%s88
BET)  BUCEERRIBSKIIEET
(ZZE—RE=ZA=+—H : BK¥20278
L) REWEFTIRBENESYS 88
T(ZE—RAF=A=+—H: #%¥158

BET) °

BB BB ARRE 2 FEU R < ARk

As at As at

December 31, March 31,

2015 2015

R=-Z—H1F R=-Z-&F

+=A=+t-B =A=+-H

HKS$'M HK$'M

BEEET B EETT

Overdue less than 30 days #HIS0H K 8.3 7.8
Overdue 31 to 90 days A H#i31 H =90 H 1.6 3.0
Overdue more than 90 days #EI90H A £ 0.7 3.4
10.6 14.2

The Group estimates the future discount cash flow
of trade receivables and provided fully for those
receivables considered not recoverable because based
on historical experiences such receivables are generally
not recoverable, except for some major customers
with longer credit terms at the discretion of senior
management.
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19. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 19. ERER X R H A BN FIE (&)

(continued)

Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts on trade FEUGBR N REBRE B 2 &
receivables:
As at As at
December 31, March 31,
2015 2015

RZE—HF RKRZ=ZZE-—-1EF
+=ZA=+—HB =B=+-—H

HK$’'M HK$'M
BEEET BEBET
Balance at beginning of the period/year & 4 )45 & 14.7 21.3
Currency realignment [& ¥ 3% (2.0) (5.7)
Impairment losses recognised &K AR X 2 R (B &5 18 0.5 =
Impairment losses reversed in respect of trade receivables
U BR TR 2 R (B s 1R 7 B - (0.9)
Balance at end of the period/year Hi /4% 4k 4 13.2 14.7
The balance of the allowance for doubtful debts are TEHR » REBREH&ESGAENEBENLD
individually impaired trade receivables which have been BHEQOHA S REAREFBW EEAL S
overdue more than 90 days and/or have no material ZIEIWEED « REBWERZEESHES
transactions with the Group during the period. The F A GG o

Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.
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For the period from April 1, 2015 to December 31,2015 H-Z—HFMNB—HEZE=-ZT—HE+=-B=+—H

19. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 19. EUWBR T & HL b FE U FR 38 ()

(continued)

Included in trade and other receivables are the following FEUSBE 3 N H Ah FE UK R TB BL 3R TN 5] LA FE 8
amounts denominated in currency other than the EFEEE e EBE AN B FEBE IR
functional currency of the group entities to which they 15
relate:
As at As at
December 31, March 31,
2015 2015
R-ZB—HF R-ZE—-HF
+=A=+-B =A=+-§
HK$’'M HK$'M
BEBEET BEEHET
USD 7T 52.9 46.9
Euro BXZ 0.8 1.4
53.7 48.3
20. FORWARD CONTRACT ASSETS 20. BHIEHNEE
As at As at
December 31, March 31,
2015 2015
R=ZB—1F R-E-IF
+=—A=+—H =A=+—H
HK$’'M HK$'M
BEEET BEHET
Forward foreign exchange contracts & #iMNE & %Y
— Derivative financial assets — T4 &R E E 0.1 1.0

AEBUEBTETERATEZ AR
SEBEREEITE P - REBFIZTE

The Group has used currency derivatives to minimise
the exposure of significant future transactions and
cash flows. The Group is a party to a variety of foreign ZEHINES KN EEEERRR - FTEMA
currency forward contracts in the management of its ZTAFTEUAREETEMSEHNER.E
foreign exchange rate exposures. The instruments B e

entered are primarily denominated in the currencies of

the Group’s principal markets.
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20.FORWARD CONTRACT ASSETS

(continued)

The ranges of the total nominal amounts of the
outstanding forward foreign exchange contracts to which
the Group is committed at the end of the reporting
periods are as follows:

As at December 31, 2015
Notional amount Maturity
Sell EURO1,000,000 April 29, 2016

Exchange rates
USD/EURO1.09470

Sell EUR0500,000 June 15, 2016 USD/EURO1.10150

As at March 31, 2015
Notional amount Maturity
Sell EURO500,000 August 19, 2015 USD/EURO1.25080

Exchange rates

Sell EUR0O200,000 September 14, 2015 USD/EURO1.24320

Sell EUR0500,000 December 24, 2015 USD/EURO1.09800

The above foreign exchange contracts will be settled in
net amount on maturity date.

As at December 31, 2015, the fair value of the Group’s
currency derivatives is estimated to be forward contract
assets of HK$0.1 million (3.31.2015: HK$1.0 million).

During the year ended March 31, 2015, gain arising
from changes in the fair value of the Group’s currency
derivatives amounting to HK$1.3 million (period ended
December 31, 2015: HK$nil) has been recognised in
profit or loss.
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20. R EHNEE (#)

MARKERT S MR R 8 2 = EINE & 4
REREHEE A AEESRENEEN
T~

R-ZZE-—HF+=ZA=+—H

HELHE 28R Ex

SHHH1,000,000 ZE—R~F  Fjx,/BE1.09470
B MA=+R8

JHIH500,000 —T—A~F  Fiu/B#E1.10150
5473 ~NHTHE

R-ZB-—HF=A=1+—H

mESE  HHA B

EH500,000 —E—REF X/ B#E1.25080
Bl AV:Rwil=

EH200,000 —E—RE X5/ BE1.24320
B NLA+ImA

HH500,000 —E—RF  Fjr,/BZE1.09800
B +-A=+mA

A ESMNESKIRNBIH B G AFRREE o

W_BE—RHE+_-_A=1+—8 A&EBE2
BEEGTETERRMANEEZHAAR
BEABKIIEEL (ZE—RAF=A=
+—HB : BE108ET) °

HIEI—E—AF=A=1+—HIEE K
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B13EET (BHE—ZE—hAF+_A=+
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For the period from April 1, 2015 to December 31,2015 H=-ZE—HFMNA—HE=ZF—HFE+=-A=+—H

21.SHORT-TERM BANK DEPOSITS/BANK 1. EHBRTEHER RITER

BALANCES AND CASH EEE
Bank balances and cash which comprise cash held by IRITEBEESRHEAERZEAEZREN
the Group and short-term bank deposits with an original CHISR TR BEEGERZEREIER A=
maturity of three months or less are at prevailing market B ASAT - mTmsH Rt & - 5
interest rates in the range of 0.07% to 6.00% (3.31.2015: KNF0.07EZE6.00E (ZE—HF=H
0.01% to 3.55%) per annum. =+—H : 0.01EE3.55E) ¢
Included in short-term bank deposits and bank balances CHIR T E RSB TAG RIS B
and cash are the following amounts denominated in THABEETE 2GS AN E
currency other than the functional currency of the group WEHE 2 FRIE
entities to which they relate:
As at As at
December 31, March 31,
2015 2015
R-ZE—HF RKR=ZT—HF
+=A=+—B =ZA=+—8H
HK$’'M HK$'M
BEEERT BERSTT
USD 27T 85.3 741
Renminbi AR 35.7 40.7
Euro ERZE 6.1 49.9
GBP &5 1.5 3.1
128.6 167.8
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22. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND
ACCRUALS

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables
presented based on the invoice date at the end of the
reporting period:

REH

2.BENRAREAMEMNRERRA

RBEREER - ENERRRBEREHZ

S| 2 BREQ D ATIATE -

As at As at

December 31, March 31,

2015 2015

R=ZZ2-—1F RZZE-IF

+=A=+—H =A=+—H

HK$’'M HK$'M

BEEET BEEET

0 to 30 days 0230H 37.7 33.7

31 to 90 days 31 HZE90H 20.4 25.4

Over 90 days 90H A 5.0 5.6

Trade payables JE{TFERX 63.1 64.7

Other payables and accruals EffEfT 58 K T8I E A 124.1 160.7
Trade and other payables and accruals

JEAH BR AR N Ho M FE AN BR X S FRAR B R 4258 187.2 225.4
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For the period from April 1, 2015 to December 31,2015 H=-ZE—HFMNA—HE=ZF—HFE+=-A=+—H

22. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND
ACCRUALS (continued)

The amount of other payables mainly represented
receipt in advance from customers of HK$42.3 million
(3.31.2015: HK$81.6 million), accrued expenses of
HK$33.5 million (3.31.2015: HK$35.6 million) and
provision for staff cost of HK$31.6 million (3.31.2015:
HK$29.1 million).

Included in trade and other payables are the following
amounts denominated in currency other than the
functional currency of the group entities to which they

2.BARARHEMEMNRERRA

REMA |

HhENRBEBITERTAKEFS KA LK
Q23FEL(ZE—RAF=A=+—H8:
EH81.6EBIT) BIREBABKI35H
BErx(ZE—RF=A=1+—8: #K
35.68 B T) & B T Ak 7 # & 75 %31.6
BET(ZE—RAF=A=1+—H: &%

i —

29.1TE&TT) °

FEAS R S B At FE A SR IB B 46 T 51| LA A BE
SEERNEERUIN EBHEZR
17 :

relate:
As at As at
December 31, March 31,
2015 2015
R=Z—82F RKR_Z—LF
t=RA=+—-HB =ARA=+—H
HK$’'M HK$’'M
BEEET BERETT
USD %7t 22.6 24.9
Renminbi AR 0.3 1.5
JPY BT - 0.6
Euro BRZE 0.1 1.0
23.0 28.0
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23.BANK LOANS 23.fR1ITEX
As at As at
December 31, March 31,
2015 2015

R-2-HE R-B-1F
+=g=+-8 =A=+-"
HK$’'M HK$’M
BEEET  BEEER

The bank loans are repayable as follows*: ZB{8i& 2 B & 58*

Within one year —F 2 A - 16.2
More than one year but not exceeding two years % A —518 N A8 N F - 2.7
- 18.9

Comprising: B#E :
Amount due within one year B —FERNEEHNLE - 16.2
Amount that are not repayable within one year from the end of
the reporting period but contain a repayment on demand clause
(shown under current liabilities) fEZENR R & BEAE B s —FNEE
BHEBFARERERGR FIR/RBDEE) O - 2.7
Total amount shown under current liabilities 7| &R 8 & & 2 %8 - 18.9

These amounts due are based on the scheduled * RBERLBIHNESENERBERZETE

repayment dates set out in the loan agreements. EEHHAKIE -
As at March 31, 2015, the bank loans were unsecured R-TE—RF=A=+—H8  ZZHTE
and denominated in Hong Kong dollars, the functional RRBITESZ REER R VBEEE M
currency of the relevant group entities. They carried BEDEEEEER 2 NEER - 5MiZ
interest at Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate (“HIBOR?) BBRITREFREIN1.38EE2.25FE 2 F
plus 1.38% to 2.25% per annum. The fair value of the FERFE - RITERZ AR BEEEEZ
bank loans approximated the corresponding carrying BREERR -
amount.
The effective interest rates (which are also equal to NRZZE—ARE=A=1+—8  ZZHTE
contracted interest rates) on the bank loans ranged from RZEBEME (TTEERFTOFE) N F
1.77% to 2.99% per annum as at March 31, 2015. FRA1T7EZE2.99 -

147



IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED EEEIEA B AF]

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

e R R R MY

For the period from April 1, 2015 to December 31,2015 H=-ZE—HFMNA—HE=ZF—HFE+=-A=+—H

24. SHARE CAPITAL 24. B A
Number of shares Amount
R E B S5
HK$'M
BEEET
Authorised: J&E AN
At April 1, 2014, March 31, 2015 and December 31, 2015
NZZE—NHFMNA—H —E—hAF=A=1+—AHAK
—E-AFt+-A=+—H
— ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each — & EIEE0.107T 2 @D 3,500,000,000 350.0
— ordinary shares of US$0.10 each — &R EE0.103E L 2 T @R (% 10,000 -
Issued and fully paid: B 377 &R RA
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each S EEE0.107T 2 L@
—at April 1, 2014 —R=ZZF—MFMH—H 2,504,521,088 250.5
— issue upon exercise of share options — 1T{F B I MEFT 31T 2 B 1D 84,452,000 8.4
—at March 31, 2015 —R=Z—RF=A=+—H 2,588,973,088 258.9
— issue upon exercise of share options — 1T{E B I MEFT 31T Z BZ 1D 11,020,000 1.1
— at December 31, 2015 — R =_ZE—AF+=-_A=+—H 2,599,993,088 260.0
No dividend was paid or proposed for the period/year, RAERE,/FE  BERMKEZRAS
nor has any dividend been proposed since the end of fRENEREHAERARBYEREZRNRKR

the reporting period. Bo
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25. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

2002 IDT Option Scheme & 2012 IDT Option
Scheme

The Group offers share options to attract, motivate and
retain key employees who contribute to the growth of the
Group. At the special general meeting held on August
28, 2002, the Company adopted a share option scheme
(“2002 IDT Option Scheme”). At the annual general
meeting held on August 29, 2012, the Company further
adopted another share option scheme (“2012 IDT Option
Scheme”). Both share option schemes will continue in
operation for a maximum of ten years from the date of
adoption.

Pursuant to these schemes, the board of directors of the
Company offered to grant options to selected eligible
participants, including full-time employees and full-time
executive directors of the Company or employees or any
of its subsidiaries.

At March 31, 2015, the number of shares in respect
of which options had been granted and remained
outstanding were 17,798,000 under 2002 IDT Option
Scheme and 6,500,000 under 2012 IDT Option
Scheme, representing 0.7% and 0.3% of the shares
of the Company in issue at that date. There were no
outstanding share options under both schemes as at
December 31, 2015.

The limit on the total number of shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted
and yet to be exercised, together with all outstanding
options granted and yet to be exercised under any
other share option scheme(s) of the Company, must not
exceed 30% of the number of the Company’s issued
shares from time to time. Subject always to the aforesaid
overall 30% limit, the total number of shares which may
be issued upon exercise of all options to be granted,
together with all options to be granted under other share
option scheme(s) of the Company, must not exceed
10% of the issued share capital of the Company on
the adoption date. Such 10% limit may be refreshed or
exceeded if approved by shareholders in general meeting
subject always to the aforesaid overall 30% limit.
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25. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) 25. B IR E (m)

2002 IDT Option Scheme & 2012 IDT Option
Scheme (continued)

The total number of the Company’s shares issued
and which may be issued upon exercise of all options
granted to a participant in any 12-month period
immediately preceding the date of grant shall not exceed
1% of the number of shares in issue as at date of such
grant. If the grant of options is offered to a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-executive director
of the Company or any of their respective associates,
the total number of the Company’s shares issued and
which may be issued to such participant upon exercise
of all options granted in any 12-month period up to and
including the date of grant shall not exceed 0.1% of the
number of shares then in issue and having an aggregate
value in excess of HK$5,000,000.

The subscription price for an option granted shall be the
highest of (i) the closing price of the Company’s shares
on the date of grant; (ii) the average closing price of the
shares for the five business days immediately preceding
the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of a share.

The vesting period of the share option is from the date of
grant until the commencement of the exercisable period.

An offer for grant of an option must be accepted within
28 days from the date of offer, and HK$1 is payable
as consideration on acceptance. An option shall be
exercisable during the period as determined by the
board of directors of the Company or its authorised
committee, which shall commence on a date after the
expiry of a 6-month period after the date of grant and
not exceed 10 years from the date of such grant.
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25. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) 25. IR AEST S (@)
2002 IDT Option Scheme & 2012 IDT Option —EECEFENR_FE-_FEBRERK
Scheme (continued) BERRERTE (@)
The movements of share options under the 2002 IDT —EE-_FEHBEBRERESZIT 2ER
Option Scheme during the period from April 1, 2015 to B ZE—AFENA—HE-_ZET—FRE+
December 31, 2015 and the balances at December 31, —A=+T—HZEHBHBEARNR_ZE—AHF
2015 are set out below: +-_R=+—"HZ2EB&HWET :
2002 IDT Option Scheme Number of share options
“EECEEREREREDS BREZR
Outstanding Outstanding
at at
Date of grant Exercisable period Exercise 4.1.2015 Lapsed Exercised 12.31.2015
Riti A TEHE price RZE-T1F during duing R=E-EF
Participants (M/D/Y) (M/D7Y) per share mA-H the period the period +=HA=+—H
28E (A/B/%) (B/B/%&) BRiTEE ERITEE AP S BRTE i R{TRE
HK$
BT
Directors £% 11.30.2005 12.1.2006 - 11.30.2015 0.529 7,280,000 (7,280,000) - -
Employees €2 11.28.2005 11.29.2007 - 11.28.2015 0.548 676,000 (416,000) (260,000) =
11.28.2005 11.29.2008 - 11.28.2015 0.548 676,000 (416,000) (260,000) =
12.1.2010 12.1.2012 - 11.30.2020 0.222 625,000 (375,000) (250,000) =
12.1.2010 12.1.2013 - 11.30.2020 0.222 625,000 (375,000) (250,000) -
12.12.2011 12.12.2013 - 12.11.2021 0.104 500,000 (500,000) - -
12.12.2011 12.12.2014 - 12.11.2021 0.104 500,000 (500,000) - -
4.18.2012 4.18.2015 - 4.17.2022 0.136 500,000 = (500,000) -
Other participants 11.28.2005 11.29.2007 - 11.28.2015 0.548 208,000 (208,000) = =
Hf2EAL 11.28.2005 11.29.2008 - 11.28.2015 0.548 208,000 (208,000) - -
12.01.2010 12.01.2012 - 11.30.2020 0.222 750,000 (500,000) (250,000) -
12.01.2010 12.01.2013 - 11.30.2020 0.222 750,000 (500,000) (250,000) -
12.12.2011 12.12.2013 - 12.11.2021 0.104 2,250,000 (500,000) (1,750,000) -
12.12.2011 12.12.2014 - 12.11.2021 0.104 2,250,000 (500,000) (1,750,000) -
17,798,000 (12,278,000  (5,520,000) -
Exercisable at the end
of the period
WEARE AT 17,298,000 -
Weighted average
exercise price HK$0.341 HK$0.418 HK$0.170
IEFITRE AR  AKo418T  EK0.170T =
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25. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

2002 IDT Option Scheme & 2012 IDT Option
Scheme (continued)
The movements of share options under the 2002 IDT

—H%+ZA=1+—H

5. @R EFTE (m)

—EE-_ER-F-—SHAEE
MR8 (30
—FERBIRERETE T 2B

Option Scheme during the year ended March 31, 2015 i BAESZEE_%E TE=RA=+—HIEE
and the balances at March 31, 2015 are set out below: 2HEERERN _E—FHRAE=A=+—H
Z BB BRI
2002 IDT Option Scheme Number of share options
ZRECFERERERESS BERiE"A
Outstanding Lapsed/ Outstanding
at  Reclassification forfeited at
Date of grant  Exercisable period Exercise 4.1.2014 during during Exercised 3.31.2015
RLAH TEHE price  RZE-ME the year the year during RZZ-1F
Participants (M/D/Y) (M/DrY) per share mA-H FREA £ theyear =A=t-H
S8% (B/B/%) (B/B/%) BRTRE HATE oIS 45 ERfR AT
HK$
BB
Directors £ 11.30.2005  12.1.2006 - 11.30.2015 0.529 9,360,000 = - (2,080,000) 7,280,000
11.28.2005  11.29.2007 - 11.28.2015 0.548 416,000 (416,000) = = =
11.28.2005  11.29.2008 - 11.28.2015 0.548 416,000 (416,000) = = =
12.1.2010 12.1.2012 - 11.30.2020 0.222 8,500,000 (2,500,000) = (6,000,000) =
12.1.2010 12.1.2013 - 11.30.2020 0.222 8,500,000 (2,500,000) - (6,000,000) -
12.12.2011 12.12.2013 - 12.11.2021 0.104 10,500,000 (1,500,000) - (9,000,000) -
12.12.2011 12.12.2014 - 12.11.2021 0.104 10,500,000 (1,500,000) = (9,000,000) =
Employees (€8 11.28.2005  11.29.2007 - 11.28.2015 0.548 1,274,000 208,000 (182,000) (624,000) 676,000
11.28.2005  11.29.2008 - 11.28.2015 0.548 1,274,000 208,000 (182,000) (624,000) 676,000
3.24.2010 3.24.2012 - 3.23.2020 0.275 1,500,000 (1,500,000) = = =
3.24.2010 3.24.2013 - 3.23.2020 0.275 1,500,000 (1,500,000) - - -
12.1.2010 12.1.2012 - 11.30.2020 0.222 8,260,000 1,000,000 (1,125,000) (7,500,000) 625,000
12.1.2010 12.1.2013 - 11.30.2020 0.222 8,260,000 1,000,000 (1,125,000) (7,500,000) 625,000
12.12.2011 12.12.2013 - 12.11.2021 0.104 7,125,000 1,000,000 (1,000,000) (6,625,000) 500,000
12.12.2011 12.12.2014 - 12.11.2021 0.104 8,375,000 1,000,000 (1,750,000) (7,125,000) 500,000
4.18.2012 4.18.2014 - 4.17.2022 0.136 2,250,000 - (500,000) (1,750,000) -
4.18.2012 4.18.2016 - 4.17.2022 0.136 2,250,000 = (750,000) (1,000,000) 500,000
Other participants ~ 11.28.2005  11.29.2006 - 11.28.2015 0.548 312,000 - - (312,000) -
Et2EAT 11.28.2005  11.29.2007 - 11.28.2015 0.548 312,000 208,000 - (312,000) 208,000
11.28.2005  11.29.2008 - 11.28.2015 0.548 = 208,000 = = 208,000
3.24.2010 3.24.2012 - 3.23.2020 0.275 = 1,500,000 = (1,500,000) =
3.24.2010 3.24.2013 - 3.23.2020 0.275 - 1,500,000 - (1,500,000) -
12.01.2010  12.01.2012 - 11.30.2020 0.222 750,000 1,500,000 - (1,500,000) 750,000
12.01.2010  12.01.2013 - 11.30.2020 0.222 750,000 1,500,000 = (1,500,000) 750,000
12.12.2011 12.12.2013 - 12.11.2021 0.104 3,250,000 500,000 - (1,500,000) 2,250,000
12.12.2011 12.12.2014 - 12.11.2021 0.104 3,250,000 500,000 - (1,500,000) 2,250,000
98,864,000 = (6,614,000)  (74,452,000) 17,798,000
Exercisable at the
end of the year
REGERATE 72,239,000 17,298,000
Weighted average
exercise price HK$0.211 HK$0.175 HK$0.183 HK$0.341
MEFETEE 02117t - BotrsT  AK018sT  A%03MT
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25. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) 25. IR AEST S (@)
2002 IDT Option Scheme & 2012 IDT Option —EECEFENR_FE-_FEBRERK
Scheme (continued) BERRERTE (@)
The movements of share options under the 2012 IDT —E-—FEFHBEBRERESZT CER
Option Scheme during the period from April 1, 2015 to B ZE—AFENA—HE-_ZET—FRE+
December 31, 2015 and the balances at December 31, —RA=+—BZzEHEAER_E—0E
2015 are set out below: +-_R=+—"HZ2EB&HWET :
2012 IDT Option Scheme Number of share options
—E-—FERERERESE BREL A
Outstanding Outstanding
at at
Date of grant Exercisable period Exercise 4.1.2015 Exercised Lapsed 12.31.2015
REAH TEHE price RZZ-HE during during R=ZE-H%F
Participants (M/DYY) (M/D7Y) per share mA-H the period the period +=A=1—H
SHE (B/B/%) (B/R/%) BRTHEE AT BRI BRAN AT
HK$
BT
Employees &2 3.27.2013 3.27.2015 - 3.26.2023 0.130 500,000 (500,000) - -
6.27.2013 6.27.2015 - 6.26.2023 0.134 2,500,000 (2,500,000) - -
7.7.2014 7.7.2015 - 7.6.2024 0.172 750,000 (250,000) (500,000) -
7.7.2014 7.7.2016 - 7.6.2024 0.172 750,000 (250,000) (500,000) =
Other Participants 12.3.2012 12.3.2013 - 12.2.2022 0.131 1,000,000 (1,000,000) - -
Hth28E AT 12.3.2012 12.3.2014 - 12.2.2022 0.131 1,000,000 (1,000,000) - -

6,500,000 (5,500,000) (1,000,000) =

Exercisable at the end

of the period

REARB AT 2,500,000 =
Weighted average

exercise price HK$0.142 HK$0.136 HK$0.172

IEFHTRE Be0.142m %0136 AK0IT2R =
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25. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

2002 IDT Option Scheme & 2012 IDT Option
Scheme (continued)

The movements of share options under the 2012 IDT
Option Scheme during the year ended March 31, 2015
and the balances at March 31, 2015 are set out below:

25.

B AESTE ()

—EE_ER-E-—_FEHER
B ERE (@)

—E - EERERERE R T B
EABE-_T—RE=A=1+—HILFE

Z BB BRI

2012 IDT Option Scheme Number of share options
“E-CEERERERET S BREHUE
Outstanding Lapsed/  Outstanding
at forfeited at
Date of grant  Exercisable period Exercise 4.1.2014 Granted Exercised during 3.31.2015
REAH gd i price R-E-ME during during theyear RZB-TE
Participants (M/D/Y) (M/D/Y) per share A—-H the year the year £R ZA=t-H
S8% (B/B/%) (B/B/%) BRAEE H AT EREH ERffE KM/ EH EER N
HK$
BT
Employees [ES 12.3.2012 12.3.2013 - 12.2.2022 0.131 2,500,000 = (1,750,000) (750,000) =
12.3.2012 12.3.2014 - 12.2.2022 0.131 2,500,000 - (1,750,000) (750,000) -
3.27.2013 3.27.2014 - 3.26.2023 0.130 1,250,000 = (1,250,000) = =
3.27.2013 9.27.2014 - 3.26.2023 0.130 500,000 = (500,000) = =
3.27.2013 3.27.2015 - 3.26.2023 0.130 750,000 = (250,000) = 500,000
6.27.2013 6.27.2014 - 6.26.2023 0.134 2,500,000 - (2,500,000) - -
6.27.2013 6.27.2015 - 6.26.2023 0.134 2,500,000 - - - 2,500,000
7.7.2014 7.7.2015 - 7.6.2024 0.172 - 1,750,000 (1,000,000) - 750,000
7.7.2014 7.7.2016 - 7.6.2024 0.172 - 1,750,000 (1,000,000) = 750,000
Other Participants ~ 12.3.2012 12.3.2013 - 12.2.2022 0.131 1,000,000 = = = 1,000,000
Htp28AL 12.3.2012 12.3.2014 - 12.2.2022 0.131 1,000,000 - - - 1,000,000
14,500,000 3,500,000  (10,000,000) (1,500,000) 6,500,000
Exercisable at the
end of the year
REERATE 4,750,000 2,500,000
Weighted average
exercise price HK$0.132 HK$0.172 HK$0.140 HK$0.131 HK$0.142
MEFHEE 7101821 Ao A¥otdor  BK013IT  AK0142m
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25. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

2002 IDT Option Scheme & 2012 IDT Option
Scheme (continued)

The 2002 IDT Option Scheme expired on August 27,
2012. Options granted under the 2002 IDT Option
Scheme prior to such expiration will continue to be valid
and exercisable in accordance with the terms of the
2002 IDT Option Scheme.

The Company used the Black-Scholes option pricing
model (the “Model”) to value the share options granted
under the 2012 IDT Option Scheme during the year
ended March 31, 2015. The Model is one of the
commonly used models to estimate the fair value of
the option. The value of an option varies with different
variables of certain subjective assumptions. Any change
in the variables so adopted may materially affect the
estimation of the fair value of an option.

Details of the fair values of share options determined at
the date of grant using the Model with the inputs are as
follows:

25. B IR RERT S (@)

—ERE_ER-_T-—FHAER
R E ()

“ET S ERBERBRETIN T
“HENAZTERER - R L HRATR
BE_TE_FERBERBREAEIREZ
BRESEBAERNAIRE_TT_F8
PR AEET 8l Z fRFR T IATTIE

RZZE-—RFE=A=+—HEERLHZ
[ - _FERBERBRE S BhE
ERAEFAREEREN ([ZERX]) #
ThE - ZRAR/ET —BERNHER
AREEGHEEERN - PHEZEEPRRRE T
TBERNZHEEH - IRBZEHME
2E) A ARBEZAEIREERE
EDN-Z

DB B T AR A 2 A0 R
IR - ARFIBANERMT :

Share options granted on July 7, 2014 £ =

—NFELtAtERHZEBRE

Share price at grant date
ERE B ZRE
Exercise price
1T1E(E
Expected volatility
T8 B
Expected life
TR AR
Risk-free rate
=
Expected dividend yield
TE AR B K
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HK$0.172
PE¥50.1727T
HK$0.172
BE0.1727T
60.144% — 65.157%
60.144%%265.157%
3 — 4 years

3E4F

0.868% — 1.219%
0.868%%21.219%
0%

0%
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25. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) 25. FE PR T8 (|)

2002 IDT Option Scheme & 2012 IDT Option
Scheme (continued)

The fair value at date of grant was HK$0.0748 per
option for those exercisable from July 7, 2015 to July 6,
2024 and HK$0.0801 per option for those exercisable
from July 7, 2016 to July 6, 2024.

Expected volatility was determined by using the historical
volatility of the Company’s share price over the previous
3 to 4 years. The expected life used in the model has
been adjusted, based on management’s best estimate,
for the effects of non transferability, exercise restrictions
and behavioral considerations.

The Group recognised total expense of HK$0.5 million
for the year ended March 31, 2015 in relation to share
options granted by the Company.

In accordance with the terms of the above two share
option schemes, upon the making of a general offer to
all shareholders, other than Jiangsu Hongtu, Jiangsu
Hongtu High Technology (Hong Kong) Co. Limited and
Hongtu (Seychelles) and parties acting in concert with
any of them (other than Dr. Raymond Chan, Mrs. Chan
Pau Shiu Yeng, Shirley, Integrated Display Technology
Limited and Raymax Time Company Limited) to acquire
the shares and such offer is declared unconditional, the
option holders are entitled to exercise the options at any
time until whichever is the earlier of (i) the date of expiry
of the option period, or (ii) the late day of the period of
14 days after the date on which the Offer, when made in
accordance with the Composite Document, becomes or
is declared unconditional (i.e. 8 April 2015), after which
the option shall lapse.

All share options under both schemes were exercised or

lapsed during the period, no share option is outstanding
as at December 31, 2015.
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CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to stakeholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of bank
loans and equity attributable to owners of the Company,
comprising issued share capital and reserves.

The management of the Group reviews the capital
structure on a regular basis. As part of this review,
the management of the Group considers the cost of
capital and the risks associates with the capital, and
takes appropriate actions to adjust the Group’s capital
structure.

26. EA AR ER

AEBZEAEEE ERERARENRZH

EROARELE  RFEBELER
B EB R RRERRAL R - NEH
Z RESEBAEFEARR o

AREZAREBEERTERRAA
A AR (28D BTRA R
%) -

AEEEEETHERELER - (FR%
B —#n AEBEEBEREALZ
RARNERZ B WERBUEE 5 HEHR
BAKE 2 EARRE -

27.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 27. €W T H

Categories of financial instruments SRTEER
As at As at
December 31, March 31,
2015 2015
R-ZE-HF RIE—EHHF
+t=A=+—H =A=+-—H
HKS$’'M HK$’'M
BEEET BEEHET

Financial assets & @l & &

Loans and receivables (including cash and cash equivalents)

BERkEWZIE (BEREe MERBFSER) 273.6 370.1
Derivative financial assets $74 4 gt & &= 0.1 1.0
Available-for-sale financial assets At & & @& E 0.9 0.9

274.6 372.0
Financial liabilities % @& &
Amortised cost # 518 Ak A 67.8 86.5
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27.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 27. €@ T B (@)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade
and other receivables, available-for-sale investments,
short-term bank deposits, bank balances and cash,
trade and other payables, forward contract assets and
bank loans. Details of these financial instruments are
disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated with
these financial instruments and the policies on how to
mitigate these risks are set out below.

The financial instruments are fundamental to the
Group’s daily operations. The management manages
and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented on a timely and effective
manner. There has been no change to the Group’s
exposure to market risks or the manner in which it
manages and measures the risk.

Market risk

Currency risk

Several subsidiaries of the Group have foreign currency
sales and purchases, which expose the Group to foreign
currency risk. The Group also entered into foreign
exchange forward contracts during the period.

The management monitors foreign currency exposures

and will consider hedging significant foreign currency
exposures should the need arise.
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27.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 27. €@ T H (#)

Financial risk management objectives and MEEREEEENBER (&)
policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

Currency risk (continued)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency
denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities
including bank balances and cash, trade and other

misEE (&)
B (&)
AEBEINEEECERKEENERRE
BRRITERIA S - RYTRF N EAME
WORRTR -~ LA B JEA<F R 3% B L b A 5R0R

receivables, and trade and other payables at the end of RERERZEEmEWT :
the reporting period are as follows:
Liabilities Assets
afE BE

As at As at As at As at
December 31, March 31, December 31, March 31,
2015 2015 2015 2015
R-Z—82F R-Z-HF R-ZF—HF RKR=-Z-HF
+=BA=+—8H =A=+—H +=A=+—H =A=+—H
HK$’'M HK$'M HK$’'M HK$'M
BEBEET BEEET BEEET BEEHETT
USD 7T 22.6 24.9 138.2 121.0
Renminbi A K 0.3 1.5 35.7 40.7
Euro BX7# 0.1 1.0 6.9 51.3
GBP & - - 1.5 3.1
JPY HT - 0.6 - -
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27.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 27. €@ T B (#)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

Currency risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a 5%
(8.31.2015: 5%) increase and decrease in the functional
currency of the respective group entities against
the relevant foreign currencies. 5% (3.31.2015: 5%)
sensitivity rate represents management’s assessment
of the reasonably possible change in foreign exchange
rates. The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding
foreign currency denominated monetary items and
adjusts their translation at the period/year end for a
5% (3.31.2015: 5%) change in foreign currency rates.
The analysis has excluded USD denominated monetary
items as HKD, the functional currency of the group entity
holding these monetary items, is pegged to USD. The
directors consider that the currency risk in this regard is
minimal. A positive number below indicates an increase
in post-tax loss for the period/year where functional
currency strengthens 5% against the relevant foreign
currencies. For a 5% weakening of functional currency of
the respective group entities against the relevant foreign
currencies, there would be an equal and opposite impact
on the post-tax loss and the balances below would be
negative.

REREEBEZERBER (#)

mizEkE (&)

Bk (&)

BRE DT
TRFNEAEAEESSEHEE TR
W EB R BEEIINEABERBESS (ZF
—ARAE=ZA=+—"H :5%) ZEKE -
5% (ZE—RF=A=+—"8 :5%)
BRERREEREBHINEIEXRSIER LE
&) 2 5l - RE D MEBIEIRA AINE
FEMNEEEER @ WRE FXKZ5%
“E-—RF=A=1+—H:5%) MINE
FHFABERENHER - ZHMUTEIE
ETEEZLERIER  RERRHEHEE
BETEE v SBER e B T HE
ELHE c EERAHN AR EERK
BHTRE - THEHRRHNEEE L
EAINEAESRERZBHE " FEHE
BritigEERIE I - MBS EHEEEEE
e EM S EHINEREY @ B Ek
MeBREXEERERZZE T 5
EHRBERBE -

Effect on post-tax
result for the period/year

HEANE  FERRAXAZE

December 31, March 31,

2015 2015

—E—RF —E—HF

t=A=t-B =A=t+-8

HK$’'M HK$'M

BEEET BEEBT

Renminbi AR 1.5 1.6
Euro B{ZE 0.3 2.1
GBP % 0.1 0.1
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27.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

Currency risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis (continued)

For the outstanding foreign exchange contracts, if the
market bid forward foreign exchange rate of USD against
the relevant currencies had been 5% higher/lower and
other factors remain constant, post-tax loss for the
period/year would decrease/increase by HK$0.6 million
(3.31.2015: HK$0.5 million).

In management’s opinion, the analysis is used for
reference purpose and is unrepresentative of the inherent
currency risk as the period/year end exposure does not
reflect the exposure during the period/year.

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed primarily to cash flow interest
rate risk in relation to variable-rate bank balances and
bank borrowings (see notes 21 and 23 for details of
these bank balances and bank borrowings). The Group
currently does not have policy on hedging of interest rate
risks. However, the management monitors interest rate
exposures and will consider hedging significant interest
rate risk should the need arise.

The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is mainly
concentrated on the fluctuation of the Hong Kong
Interbank Offered Rate arising from the Group’s Hong
Kong borrowings at variable rates.
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27.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 27. €@ T B (@)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

Interest rate risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for bank loans at
the end of the reporting period. The analysis is prepared
assuming bank loans at the end of the reporting period
were outstanding for the whole period/year. A 50 basis
points (3.31.2015: 50 basis points) increase or decrease
is used and represents management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points higher/lower
and all other variables were held constant, the Group’s
post-tax loss for the year ended March 31, 2015 would
decrease/increase by HK$0.1 million. This was mainly
attributable to the Group’s exposure to interest rates on
its variable-rate bank borrowings. The Group does not
have any outstanding borrowing as at December 31,
2015.

For bank deposits, no sensitivity analysis is performed as
the range of possible change in interest rates for bank
deposits is considered as insignificant.

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the inherent interest rate risk as the
period/year end exposure does not reflect the exposure
during the period/year.
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27. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 27. €M I A (@)
Financial risk management objectives and R EEEENRBE (@)
policies (continued)
Credit risk EERE

As at December 31, 2015, the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial loss
to the Group due to failure of Group entities to perform
their obligations in relation to each class of recognised
financial assets is the carrying amount of those assets as
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position.
In order to minimise the credit risk, the management
of the Group has delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits, credit approvals and other
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is
taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group
reviews the recoverable amount of each individual trade
receivable regularly to ensure that adequate impairment
losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this
regard, the directors of the Company consider that the
Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit
risk on trade receivables, with exposure spread over a
number of counterparties and customers spread across
diverse industries and geographical areas.

The credit risk for bank deposits is considered minimal
as such amounts are placed in banks with high credit
ratings.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management
to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the
effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The management
monitors the utilisation of bank borrowings and ensures
compliance with loan covenants.
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27.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 27. €@ T B (#)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

REREEBEZERBER (#)

Liquidity risk (continued) TREESRKE ()

The following table details the Group’s remaining TRIFVIZBRENETIEDR AEES
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities based on HBEZATANTEA - HIESTES R
the agreed repayment terms. For non-derivative financial BEMmMS ;Z%%)}ifﬁ}ﬁjﬁg$’i =K =g
liabilities, the table has been drawn up based on the SR HHE S RABEZARMLRERER

undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on
the earliest date on which the Group can be required to
pay. Specifically bank loans with a repayment on demand
clause are included in the earliest time band regardless
of the probability of the banks choosing to exercise

EmE - IRITIEEING AR 2 REE K
R REEEBROBRRFIH—E

PNEBRITITEEER 2 AJgE M - T E A
FMESRAGBZIAHMBERREREZE
AE - ZRERBRANERAEHRERE -

their rights. The maturity dates for other non-derivative
financial liabilities are based on agreed repayment dates.
The table includes both interest and principal cash flows.

Liquidity and interest risk tables

///L;@jﬁi&f/ Z:‘%

Weighted Carrying
average On demand Total amount at
effective or within 3 undiscounted period/year

interest rate months cash flows end
InfEFEg BERSR RERTR B, R
BERA= =EARN RERELHE BRE{E
% HK$’'M HK$’'M HK$’'M
% BE¥EERxT B¥EERT BEIER
12.31.2015
Non-derivative financial liabilities
FTECRMERS
Trade and other payables
P 1 Bl R e L A AF 3K - 67.8 67.8 67.8
3.31.2015
Non-derivative financial liabilities
TESRMERE
Trade and other payables
JRE AT R SRR B L A e A~ kIR - 67.6 67.6 67.6
Bank loans — variable rate $R17E K — F & FI=X 2.37 18.9 18.9 18.9
86.5 86.5 86.5
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27.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

Liquidity and interest risk tables (continued)

Bank loans with a repayment on demand clause are
included in the “on demand or within 3 months” time
band in the above maturity analysis. As at March 31,
2015, the aggregate amount of the bank loans amounted
to HK$18.9 million (12.31.2015: HK$nil). Taking into
account the Group’s financial position, the directors
did not believe that it is probable that the banks will
exercise their discretionary rights to demand immediate
repayment. The directors believed that the bank loans
will be repaid within one year after the reporting date
in accordance with the scheduled repayment dates set
out in the loan agreements. At that time, the aggregate
principal and interest cash outflows will be HK$19.2
million which is analysed as follows:

27. €M T H @)

MEREEEERBEK (&)

RBESRR (&)

B ERRFIEERFZ (&)
RALEIER O - BEREERIERTZ
RITERDBEN [EEk3EARN] &
B -R-_ZT—HE=ZRA=+—8 " ETE
RZ B4 BEBEKIBIEE L (& —
AF+-_A=+—H:E8) ZEINLE
B2 AR - EEMTEERITTIAA
BEITE R EFAEZREINGER - EEF
MEGERITEREREEREZ —FA
B BMERERELHATIRAZETEIER
B B ZREAe KRS HAES
W19 2B ETT °

Weighted
average Total
effective  Less than 1103 3 months 1to5 undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 1 month months to 1 year years cash flows amount
JilLERS2 REEH
BRFAE JSR-@BR —-EAZE=@R =@AZ-% —E1F RITRELE REE
% HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M
% BEAERL BERET B¥EER B%EERT BEAEr  BYEER
3.31.2015
Bank loans
BITER 2.37 3.1 4.7 1.4 - 19.2 18.9
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27.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 27. €@ T B (#)

Fair value
The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities
are determined as follows:

e the fair values of financial assets and financial
liabilities (excluding derivative instruments) are
determined in accordance with generally accepted
pricing models based on discounted cash flow
analysis.

e the fair values of derivative instruments are
calculated using discounted cash flow analysis
using the applicable forward rates for the remaining
duration of the instruments.

The directors consider that the carrying amount of
financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at
amortised cost in the consolidated financial statements
approximates to their fair values.

Fair value measurements recognised in the consolidated
Statement of financial position

DREE
CREAERSRABZ AR BEETH
"

s TRMEERERARB (TREMET
H) 2R BE DREEBEXH
EERENTRBASRONETE

e PIHETHZARBENZRZIANT
BRI BB FE A R R BIE R B A i
EEIE,%UILE $ﬁ7§§5f€ °

EERRNEE M BHRER P ABHRAA
Rk TREENGRABIREERRE
NABEEE -

R E BRI R ER A7 (BB 2

As at December 31, 2015
R-ZE—RF+=-A=+—H

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F—& FH E=R B
HK$'M HK$’'M HK$’'M HK$’'M
BE¥EERT #B¥EERT BYEEBERT BY¥EER
Financial assets €@ &&=
Forward contract assets REJ& N EE - 0.1 - 0.1
As at March 31, 2015
R-B-HF=ZA=+—H
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F—& F& E=R B
HK$'M HK$’'M HK$’'M HK$’'M
BE¥EAERT #B¥EERT BYEEBERT BY¥EER

Financial assets €& E
Forward contract assets = HI& L& E -

1.0 - 1.0

There were no transfers between Levels 1 and 2 in the
period/year.
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27.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The fair values of the Group’s financial
assets that are measured at fair value on a
recurring basis

Some of the Group’s financial assets are measured at fair
value at the end of each reporting period. The following
table gives information about how the fair values of
these financial assets are determined (in particular, the
valuation techniques and inputs used). As well as the
level of the fair value hierarchy into which the fair value
measurements are categorised based on the degree
to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are
observable.

27. €M T H @)

BREEUHEENDAABETEZE
SEEMEEZQINEE

AREETEREERNSRERRRAA
BEE  TREHUSEREEZIAR
BENFEE EMN CEEMRER 2
B LB ABE)  WEREBEQIAEE
AEZBABBZABREEAAEER
EBFAZLAABESR -

Fair value

hierarchy Valuation technique(s) and

Financial assets AREE key input(s) Fair Value as at
SREE B4 REFEREERARIE RABER
December 31, March 31,
2015 2015
—E—RF —E—HF
+t=A=+t-A =A=t+-A
HK$’'M HK$'M
BEEET BEEBT
Foreign currency forward Level 2 Fair value of forward contract 0.1 1.0

contracts classified as
forward contract assets in
the consolidated statement
of financial position

is determined by discounted
cash flow that future cash flow
is estimated based on forward
foreign currency rates (from

observable yield curves at the
end of the reporting period)

and contract foreign currency
rates, discounted at a rate that
reflects the credit risk of various

counterparties.
RiFaMBRARFIBER FZ&K
EHBEZINERREL

BERMAENZ AR BETIREIRR
EREETE - RARASRIIREER

HIGMNESEE R (RERI|EHRZA
BBt HR) ROEINEER -
YizRREEFHEERRZ X

T AR M &5t o
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28. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

At the end of the reporting period, the Group was

—H%+ZA=1+—H

8. RE MK AIE

RBEHEER  XEERBETAIEEZ

committed to make the following future minimum lease IR BT AN A R ZIEFB AR IE T -
payments under non-cancellable operating leases which
fall due as follows:
As at As at
December 31, March 31,
2015 2015
R-ZE—HF R-ZE-&HF
+=A=+—B =HA=+—H
HKS$’'M HK$’'M
BEEET BEBET
Office equipment and motor vehicles ¥ A ERERSTE
Within one year —F 2 A 0.1 0.5
In the second to fifth year inclusive — 2 HER (BIEEEMRE) - 0.2
0.1 0.7
Rented premises HHE ¥ ¥
Within one year —F 2 A 28.4 21.9
In the second to fifth year inclusive —Z2HER (BIEEEMRE) 62.9 156.3
After five years 114 0.1 =
91.4 37.2
Operating leases relate to office equipment, motor KERO AR AERE - 7i$&7’rﬁf
vehicles and rented premises with lease terms of WE B BHWBPE—Z-F (=
between 1 to 6 years (3.31.2015: 1 to 5 years). The AFE=A=+—H: —ZRH%F)- 1‘5’%.

Group does not have an option to purchase the leased
asset at the expiry of the lease period.

Certain retail outlets include payment obligations with
rentals varied with gross revenue. The additional rental
payable (contingent rents) is determined generally by
applying pre-determined percentages to future expected
sales less the basic rentals of the respective leases. The
contingent rents were excluded from the above amounts.
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29. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

The Group principally operates defined contribution
retirement schemes for all qualifying employees,
including directors. The assets of the schemes are held
separately from those of the Group in funds under the
control of independent trustees.

The retirement scheme cost represents contributions
payable to the funds by the Group at rates specified in
the rules of the schemes. Where there are employees
who leave the schemes prior to vesting fully in the
contributions, the contributions payable by the Group
are reduced by the amount of forfeited contributions.

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme (the “MPF” Scheme) for all qualifying employees
in Hong Kong. All qualifying employees are required to
participate in the MPF Scheme. Mandatory benefits are
being provided under the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Company’s PRC subsidiaries
are members of the state-managed retirement benefits
scheme operated by the PRC government. The
Company’s PRC subsidiaries are required to contribute
a certain percentage of their payroll to the retirement
benefits scheme to fund the benefits. The only obligation
of the Group with respect to the retirement benefits
scheme is to make the required contributions under the
scheme.
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30. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 30.EEALTRRS

BRUEMBRREMBEAFANZERS

Apart from the transactions and the balances with

related parties disclosed elsewhere in these financial R aEBAAN » AN @Fﬁﬁ/img 1fg:E
statements, the Group also entered into the following EITUATEAR
significant transaction with related parties during the
period/year:
Nine-month
period ended Year ended
December 31, March 31,
2015 2015
BZE BZE
—E-HEF —E-RE
+=A=+—8” =A=+—H
IEHA@EA tHEE
HK$’'M HK$'M
BEEET BEEET
Sales of goods to certain fellow subsidiaries )% T 58 A 585 & & 5.7 =
Compensation of key management personnel =2 &2 A S Ei £
— Short-term benefits %2 Hi1& F| 6.4 10.4
- Post-employment benefits Bk 1% 12 7 0.3 0.7
6.7 111

The remuneration of key management is determined
by the remuneration committee having regard to the
performance of individuals and market trends.
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31. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES M1.ETEHRBLT
R-_E—FRE+-_A=+-—BKRKR_-_Z—
AE=ZA=+—AAQAAETENBA
AHAEARAHEEEZEHEE - KRHuger
Electronics GmbHA & 2~ 7] il & #F &
99.83%4h e RZE—HF+_A=+—
AR-—T—RE=-A=-+—B2HEM0

As at December 31, 2015 and March 31, 2015, the
Company’s principal subsidiaries, are all indirectly wholly
owned by the Company except Huger Electronics GmbH
which is 99.83% indirectly owned by the Company.
Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at
December 31, 2015 and March 31, 2015 are as follows:

B

Place of

incorporation/
establishment

Nominal value

of issued
ordinary share/
registered capital

Name of subsidiary B3l CB/TEE  Principal activities

il NGR=e e B it B RAEEZMER FEXH

Manufacturing business #i& %7

IDT Holdings (Singapore) Pte. Limited Singapore $$35,122,525  Investment holding

IDT Holdings (Singapore) Pte. Limited I N #35,122,525  IREHER

Cheer Win Electronics (Shenzhen) Co. Ltd. PRC US$4,440,000 Manufacture and sales of consumer

BEIET (FI) BRAE (Note) electronic products

REMETF(RINERRAR (A1) I 4,440,000%7T HENHESFHEEM

Huger Electronics GmbH Germany DM83,500,000 Marketing and distribution of consumer

Huger Electronics GmbH =EE 3,500,0005 % electronic products

HERDHEFHEEM

IDT Technology Limited Hong Kong HK$2  Trading of consumer electronic products

EREMAERAH BB BT KHETHEBEM

BRET OFJ) BRAT (Note) PRC HK$35,000,000 Manufacture of consumer electronic

ERETFORINERRR (i) HE 7 #35,000,0007T products and plastic parts and
provision of surface mount technology
assembly services

SERTHEEMRERBHH RIEHKRE

ARl

IDT Electronic Products Limited Hong Kong HK$2  Trading of consumer electronic products

ERETIEBRAR e BT KHETHEBEM

IDT Communication Technology Limited Hong Kong HK$2  Trading of telecommunication products

BREMMRERAR EE BT KHEEHEMD
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31. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued) M1.FTEMEBLT @)

Place of

incorporation/
establishment

Nominal value

of issued
ordinary share/
registered capital

Name of subsidiary BRI BE{TL® Principal activities

Wi 2 R & B3 3t B ROEE,/ZMER FEEHR

Sales and distribution business

Oregon Scientific Brasil Ltda Brazil BRL11,332,974  Marketing and distribution of consumer

Oregon Scientific Brasil Ltda B 11,332,974 F 2 8 electronic products
EERAHEFHEER

Oregon Scientific (Deutschland) GmbH Germany DM2,550,000 Marketing and distribution consumer

Oregon Scientific (Deutschland) GmbH =B 2,550,0005 5% electronic products
EBEROHEFHEER

Oregon Scientific France S.A.R.L. France EUR1,000,000 Marketing and distribution of consumer

Oregon Scientific France S.A.R.L. EE 1,000,000 electronic products
EBERAHEFHEER

Oregon Scientific Global Distribution Hong Kong HK$2  Marketing and distribution of consumer

Limited BE BT electronic products

BT RRERA A EBERAHEFHEER

Oregon Scientific Hong Kong Limited Hong Kong HK$500,000 Marketing and distribution of consumer

BAREABRAA B 7 #£500,0007C electronic products
EBERAHEFHEER

Oregon Scientific Ibérica, S.A. Spain EUR300,000  Marketing and distribution of consumer

Oregon Scientific Ibérica, S.A. AT 300,000 7% electronic products
EBERAHEFHEER

Oregon Scientific Italia S.p.A. [taly EUR2,156,000 Marketing and distribution of consumer

Oregon Scientific Italia S.R.L. ERF 2,156,000 & electronic products

Oregon Scientific (U.K.) Limited
Oregon Scientific (U.K.) Limited

Oregon Scientific, Inc.
Oregon Scientific, Inc.

United Kingdom

ENE]

United States of

America

X
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GBP2,400,002
2,400,002 6%

US$2,060,000
2,060,000% 7T

EERDHEETHEEM

Marketing and distribution of consumer
electronic products
EERDHEFHEEM

Marketing and distribution of consumer
electronic products
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31. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

31.TEWBLA T (@)

Place of
incorporation/
establishment

Nominal value

of issued
ordinary share/
registered capital

Name of subsidiary Eali g B%{TEE Principal activities

MELRER L3 B RAEEZMERX TEEH

Sales and distribution business
(continued) SHER DX ()

Oregon Scientific SmartLiving Limited Hong Kong HK$2  Marketing and distribution of consumer

BATEELEERAA B8 B2 electronic products

EERDHEFHEBER

Oregon Scientific Enterprise (Shanghai) PRC US$3,400,000  Marketing and distribution of consumer
Company Limited i 3,400,000 7T electronic products
BEEES (L8) BRAT (Note) KERDHEFHEED

BETRES (L&) BRAR (#i2)

Oregon Scientific Trading (Beijing) Company PRC US$900,000  Marketing and distribution of consumer
Limited H 900,000 7T electronic products
BAEEEE (tRr) BRAE (Note) EERDHEFHEEMD

BEEEE (tR) BRAR (#i2)

Oregon Scientific (Guangzhou) Trading Co., PRC HK$3,500,000  Marketing and distribution of consumer
Ltd. H ##3,500,0007T electronic products
BMNTERBATESERAF (Note) EERDHEEFEEEM

BMNTERBELESERAF (Hit)

IDT (Japan) Limited Japan JPY30,000,000 Trading of consumer electronic products

IDT (Japan) Limited AR 30,000,000H RHEEFHEER

Nature Bird Company Limited Hong Kong HK$2  Marketing and distribution of of wellness

RAABARAT BE BT and beauty products

HERDHRERERER

Corporate 2 7 %%

Integrated Display Technology Limited Hong Kong HK$6,000,000  Provision of group administrative services

BRRREBRAA 5 6,000,000 REEEITHRS

IDT Electronic Technology (Shenzhen) PRC USD6,300,000  Provision of group research and
Company Limited H 6,300,000 7T development services
BRE TR ORJI) AR AF (Note) RESEWRE LA ERS

BRETRE ORY) ARRE (#it)

Note: These are wholly foreign owned enterprises established in M5t : RAPBIRZ 2 ZINEDRE -

the PRC.
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1. TEWBLA T (@)

31. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

All of the above subsidiaries operate principally in their
respective place of incorporation/establishment.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affect
the results or assets of the Group. To give details of
other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors,
result in particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities

outstanding at the end of the reporting period, or at any
time during the period.

174

PREFEMBARGEEREFMK
SRR B AR o

FRARHEFER AU AEERERE
EERFEERNEZMBRR -EFEERR
AR E AR 2 EMBBRIT
Eo

R EHEEE AR A RREEAERA
EMBRARHEEMNHAREREZERE
% o



Annual Report For the nine months ended December 31,2015 F£#{ #Z -~ FT—FHF+_-_F=+—HIL @A

Financial Information of the Company

KRR BER

Financial information of the Company at the end of the RFEHELEER - AR BERBIE
reporting period includes:
As at As at
December 31, March 31,
2015 2015
R-ZE-HFE RIE—EHF
+=—A=+—H =BA=+-—H
HK$’'M HK$’'M
BEEET BEHET
ASSETS &&E
Interests in subsidiaries (Note 1) KB A ERS (f1aE71) 289.0 291.4
Other receivables £ 1t & U k18 0.4 0.4
Bank balances and cash $R17#& RIE S 0.1 1.9
289.5 293.7
LIABILITIES &f&
Other payables E b f& {518 2.7 4.7
NET ASSETS EEFE 286.8 289.0
CAPITAL AND RESERVES B4 K 45
Share capital f& 7 260.0 258.9
Reserves (Note 2) & (f1:£2) 26.8 30.1
TOTAL EQUITY #4458 286.8 289.0
Notes: BIeE -
1. Interests in subsidiaries 1. RMBATINER
As at As at
December 31, March 31,
2015 2015
R=-B—FF A—E—REF
+=A=+-8 =ZA=+-8
HK$’M HK$'M
BETHET BETHET
Unlisted shares, at cost 3F_ETR%D © #AKAE 204.8 204.8
Amounts due from subsidiaries (Note) FEULHI B A FIFKE (f51) 84.2 86.6
289.0 291.4

Note: The amounts are unsecured, non-interest bearing and
with no fixed repayment terms.
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Notes: (continued) BosE : (88)
2. Reserves of the company 2. ARATEE
Share
Share Other options Revenue
premium reserve reserves reserve Total
B4IEE Hittf#E  BRERE W A Bz
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M
BERET AaEr B¥asr ABasr BEEER
At April 1, 2014 R=Z—HFMA—H 151.7 126.3 7.0 (260.2) 24.8
Loss and total comprehensive
expenses for the year
REEBEREEFAZ BT = = - (1.7) (1.7)
Share issued upon exercise of
share options #1715 12.3 - (5.8) - 6.5
Recognition of equity-settled
share based payments
TR LARE 25 2 A M ARR (5 A 28 2 1T 5K - - 0.5 - 0.5
Lapsed of share options B #2524 - - (0.5) 0.5 =
At March 31, 2015
RZE—RF=A=+—H 164.0 126.3 1.2 (261.4) 30.1
Loss and total comprehensive
expenses for the period
NEEEE R 2 ER Y 858 = = = (8.9 (8.9)
Share issued upon exercise of
share options #7177 1.0 = (0.4) - 0.6
Lapsed of share options &A% # 25 = = (0.8) 0.8 -
At December 31, 2015
RZE—hF+=-A=+—H 165.0 126.3 - (264.5) 26.8
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